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JOllIBEE FOODS CORPORATION (JFC) continues to create 
lasting and memorable moments with family and friends as 
it shares the joy of eating locally and around the world. With 
its store network exponentially growing in numbers, JFC has 
set its sights on bigger dreams for future expansions. JFC 
seizes the dream of putting up each brand in interesting key 
locations across the globe, to delight the diverse palates of the 
international market. Visualizing these aspirations with artistic 
renderings, JFC shares its imagination and bold dreams towards 
its Drive to A Greater Future. 

DRIVE TO a gREaTER FUTUREJollibee Foods
CORPORATION
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CHaIRMaN’S MESSagE

“Despite the slowdown in Global, 
Asian and Philippine economies in 
2011, Jollibee Foods Corporation 
achieved a continued robust sales 
growth. System-wide sales, a measure 
of all sales to consumers both from 
company-owned and franchised stores, 
grew by 17.0% to P82.2 billion, higher 
than the 10.2% growth in 2010 and the 
highest system-wide sales growth in 
seven years.”
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Drive Toward a greater Future
To My Fellow Stockholders, 

In 2011, a series of events shocked the world and rattled the global 
economy: the Arab Spring uprisings in the Middle East, the Japan earthquake, 
tsunami and nuclear power plant disasters, the flood in Thailand, the Greek 
debt crisis, the political fighting in the United States that prevented the 
government from effectively addressing its massive fiscal deficit and debt, and 
the slowing down in the growth of the China economy.

These events impeded economic recovery and reduced global growth from 
4.1% in 2010 to 2.9% in 2011. The United States and Euro Zone economies grew 
by only 1.6%. Asia (excluding Japan) likewise decelerated from a 9.3% growth in 
2010 to 7.5% in 2011. 

The Philippine economy was not spared. Its Gross Domestic Product (GDP) 
still rose but at half the growth rate of the previous year, from 7.6% in 2010 
to 3.7% in 2011. The remittance of Overseas Filipino Workers continued to 
grow but also at a decreased rate from 8.2% in 2010 to 7.2% in 2011. The fiscal 
budget deficit was put under tight control but at the cost of lower government 
spending and lower investments that contributed to lower GDP growth rate. 
Meanwhile, inflation rate rose from 3.9% in 2010 to 4.7% in 2011.

On the positive side, the government’s drive to strengthen integrity 
and good governance grew tax collection by 9.9%. The country’s savings rate 
remained one of the highest in the region at 14%, building domestic liquidity 
and making money estimated at Php 1.8 trillion available for investments. The 
country’s Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) industry grew strongly by 20%. 

 These further strengthened the country’s economic fundamentals, built 
the confidence of both domestic and foreign investors on the prospects of 
the country and led the london-based Fitch Ratings Agency to upgrade the 
country’s credit rating with possibilities for further upgrades in the future. 

Despite the slowdown in Global, Asian and Philippine economies in 
2011, Jollibee Foods Corporation (JFC) achieved a continued robust sales 
growth. System-wide sales, a measure of all sales to consumers both from 
company-owned and franchised stores, grew by 17.0% to P82.2 billion, 
higher than the 10.2% growth in 2010 and the highest system-wide sales 
growth in seven years. Sales in the Philippines rose by 16.7% driven mainly 
by the acquisition of Mang Inasal in November 2010 and the acquisition 
of the Burger King franchise in the Philippines in September 2011. These 
acquisitions contributed 10.8% points to JFC’s sales growth rate. Foreign 
business continued to become bigger with an 18.3% sales growth rate, led 
by China with 25.8% and Southeast Asia and the Middle East with 25.2%. 

Our thrust in building sales is centered in creating greater value for 
our customers and adapting to intensifying competition.  let me provide 
some perspectives on food inflation. In the past five years, from 2007 to 
2011, world food prices had gone up significantly. According to the Food and 
Agriculture Organization (FAO), an agency of the United Nations, the world 
food prices as of December 2011 were 56.7% higher than those in December 
2006. Food prices had gone up across all categories from grains to meat 
and poultry, to vegetable oil, to milk and dairies. These were driven by 
increasing population, declining land areas that were devoted to agriculture, 
increasing energy cost, mainly petroleum-based, and climate change that 
had caused more droughts and floods than in previous decades disrupting 
the volume of harvests.

Food inflation had exerted pressure on household income, particularly 
in the emerging markets and on the profit margins of businesses in the 
food sector, and had made competition in the food industry even tougher. 

2011 Annual Report 3



The value of what businesses could offer to consumers had become even 
more critical than before.

To increase the value of what our restaurants could offer to our 
consumers, Jollibee Foods Corporation introduced new products, further 
improved its existing products, reduced the prices of some of its products, 
further improved its services, renovated existing stores, transferred stores to 
better locations and sharpened its advertising and marketing to effectively 
communicate to our consumers the better value and quality of our products 
and services.

We continued to invest heavily in store network expansion, opening 
260 new stores in 2011, the highest number of new store openings in JFC’s 
33-year history: 167 were in the Philippines, bringing the total store network 
in the country past the 2,000 mark. Overseas, we built 93 new stores, also 
the most we opened in a single year abroad. In total, we spent P3.7 billion in 
capital expenditures, also the highest level in the company’s history. These 
included investments for new stores, store renovations and commissaries 
and supply chain facilities. 

We began the construction of the Distribution Center in the Philippines 
that will be operational in the second quarter of 2012. We built and 
started operating the Jollibee Food Processing in Anhui Province, China 
and the Research and Development Center in Shanghai.  We also built the 
organization capability of our China Country Headquarters in anticipation of 
our continued expansion there in the years ahead.

Our Company concluded a number of acquisitions in 2011 to further 
build its business portfolio. In the United States, we acquired the majority 
shareholding in Chow Fun Holdings, llC and also bought the assets and took 
over the operations of Chowking that had 20 stores.  In the Philippines, we 
also invested in the majority ownership of PERF Restaurants, Inc., operator of 

the Burger King franchise in the Philippines.  This acquisition enabled Jollibee 
Foods Corporation to have presence in the fast growing premium price 
segment of the hamburger category in the Philippine fast food market.  

In Vietnam, JFC initiated the process for owning a 50% share of the 
business of the SuperFoods Group, which owns and operates various brands, 
mainly Highlands Coffee Shops and Packaged Coffee Products in Vietnam 
and the Pho 24 Vietnamese noodle that SuperFoods eventually acquired in 
January 2012 with restaurants in Vietnam, Indonesia, Philippines, HongKong, 
Cambodia and Japan.  JFC’s joint venture with the SuperFoods Group, 
eventually completed in January 2012, aims to offer Asian mass consumers 
high quality coffee and café experience at affordable prices through the 
Highlands Coffee Shops and Highlands Packaged Products and Vietnamese 
food at affordable prices through the Pho24 brand and restaurants.

In total, JFC invested P3.7 billion in acquiring new businesses and in 
acquisition-related activities, the most we spent for acquisitions in JFC’s history.  
Thus, we spent a total of P7.4 billion in 2011 for our long term investments – 
the highest level in any one year in JFC’s history, consisting of P3.7 billion in 
capital expenditures and P3.7 billion in acquisition-related activities.

In the face of challenges to our profit margins brought mainly by food 
inflation, we had to take more aggressive cost improvement actions. We 
closed 130 stores, 110 in the Philippines - mostly aging stores in obsolete 
trading areas.  We reduced the number of employees in our main offices in 
the Philippines to reduce expenses.  As importantly, we eliminated some 
duplication in our business portfolio.  We closed Manong Pepe that served 
affordable Filipino food, since Mang Inasal also serves Filipino food. We also 
divested our share in the Caffe Ti-Amo franchise, a Korean restaurant brand 
offering coffee and gelato (or Italian ice cream), since we had initiated the 
acquisition of 50% of SuperFoods that owns and operates Highlands Coffee. 

CHaIRMaN’S MESSagE
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All these brought strong results in building our business and our 
organization capability.  Our efforts certainly brought very good progress 
in improving the value of our products, services and restaurant experience 
to our consumers. They also increased the capacity and productivity of our 
commissaries and support groups in the main offices. 

Against rising food costs and inflation and decelerating economic 
growth and even with its aggressive drive to enhance value to consumers, 
Jollibee Foods Corporation was able to generate in 2011 profit that was 
comparable to the previous year.  Net Income attributable to the Equity 
Holders of JFC reached P3.2 billion with Earnings Per Share of P3.138. These 
were about equal the amounts generated in 2010 of P3.2 billion and P3.118, 
respectively.  Our Net Income Margin decreased slightly from 6.0% of 
Revenues in 2010 to 5.2% in 2011, while Return on Equity declined slightly 
from 18.8% in 2010 to 17.1% in 2011.

We believe strongly that in the long run, our profit and return to 
shareholders will become even better. Better than what they were in 
2011 and better than what they were in previous decades. The superb 
performance of our JFC stock price, we believe, is a vote of confidence of our 
investors in our company and in our country.

As we continued to build our business and our organization capability, 
we intensified our efforts to fulfill our corporate social responsibilities 
mainly through the Jollibee Foundation. In 2011, the Busog, lusog, Talino 
or BlT feeding program served 15,936 pupils from 444 schools in 95 
sites to improve their nutrition. In agriculture, the Foundations’ Farmer 
Entrepreneurship Program trained over 400 farmers from Nueva Ecija, 
Pangasinan, Quezon, Bukidnon and Misamis Oriental and enabled farmer 
cooperatives from 5 areas to supply vegetable products to JFC and other 
business institutions. In community building, we continued to provide 

support to Gawad Kalinga Villages in las Pinas, Southern leyte and Butuan 
through education programs.  In environmental protection, over 400 of our 
employees helped in the reforestation of 16 hectares of the Marikina and Ipo 
Watersheds. In disaster relief, we provided assistance to families and the 
rehabilitation of public school buildings affected by Typhoon Sendong. And 
in education development, we provided scholarship assistance and potential 
future employment to 95 students. These accomplishments were possible 
with the support of and cooperation of various institutions. Today, our 
Jollibee Foundation is being recognized by several private and government 
institutions as a model for excellence for non-profit organizations particularly 
in the school children feeding and farmer development programs. We look 
forward to even greater contribution from the Jollibee Foundation in serving 
the needy of our society in the years ahead.

I encourage my fellow employees to keep their focus and commitment in 
building a greater future for our company. And I certainly thank them for all 
their hard work in making our achievements in 2011 possible. 

 We are also grateful to you, our shareholders, suppliers and business 
partners for your continued support and confidence in the Company.

 let us continue to drive toward a greater future!

TONY TaN CaKTIONg
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
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REVVINg Up FOR 
gREaTER SUCCESS 

TAKING OFF FROM a strong 2010 finish, Jollibee 
maintained its lead position in the local fast food 
industry, overcoming challenges such as increasing 
costs of raw materials and stiffer competition. In 
2011, business grew further with system wide sales 
reaching P41.4 billion, up by 7.8 percent over 2010. 
A total of 40 new stores were opened, bringing the 
official store count to 745 by the end of the year – 
still by far the biggest and most extensive fast food 
network in the country.     

Jollibee opened the year with a new addition 
to its 39ers line up – the Sweet & Sour Meatballs – 
which boosted sales of its formidable low-priced rice 
meal business.  Two new offerings became instantly 
popular among the teens and young adult market: 
the Jollibee Floats and the Flavored Crispy Fries. The 
Corned Beef Pandesal as well as the Chicken Sausages 
and Pancake combos provided excitement to the 
breakfast menu. The Choco Crumble Sundae and the 
Strawberry Sundae, meanwhile, delighted dessert 
lovers. And to end the year on a high note, Jollibee 
introduced the Hash Brown Burger, the first of its 
kind sandwich format which intrigued and excited 
many palates, and the Grilled Pork Tenders, a welcome 
addition to its growing rice meal portfolio.    

The superiority of Jollibee’s core products was 
fortified through the “I Am Young. I Am Pinoy. I 
Yum” Pinoy Pride campaign featuring the Jollibee 
Yumbassadors and Chickenjoy’s “Walang Kapalit ang 
Saya at Sarap” that highlighted the irreplaceable joy 
it brings to Filipino families. The latter inspired the 
launch of the first ever Jollibee Family Values Awards 
that sought to recognize exemplary Pinoy families 
across the nation. 

Jollibee’s highly successful children’s show, 
Jollitown, maintained its number one slot among 
weekend kids TV programs in its new home station, 
ABS-CBN. With the year-long and fun-filled activities 
held nationwide, Jollibee Kids Club was able to 
generate the highest membership recruitment ever on 
a single year.   

Mindful of its social responsibility, Jollibee 
completed the construction of 26 public classrooms 
in far-flung provinces together with the Jollibee 
Franchisees Association and the Jollibee Foundation. 
It also produced colourful Jollibee-themed murals in 
16 public hospitals across the country to help cheer up 
sick patients in the children’s ward. For the 17th year 
of Maaga ang Pasko, Jollibee enjoined Filipino families 

to become Jolly Toy Scouts.  Jollibee was able to collect 
over 300,000 toys and books –  via a campaign blitz 
that encouraged recruitment of new Jolly Toy Scouts 
nationwide and the participation of donor families. 

To re-assert its brand dominance, Jollibee 
launched a new tagline “Ang Saya ng langhap-Sarap” 
that captured how Jollibee has always been the 
place where every member of the family feels happy 
and at home.  This was amplified via a television 
commercial featuring a new jingle performed by brand 
ambassador Sarah Geronimo.  Jollibee’s fresh visual 
identity was also heightened via a new layout of the 
menu board and through its new packaging designs. 
New and renovated stores also sported a fresh and 
more contemporary look. 

All these initiatives are but preparations for 
what Jollibee hopes to accomplish at the end of the 
finish line.  Providing the best tasting food, delivering 
superior customer service and adhering to excellence 
in all aspects of its operations will thus remain part 
of Jollibee’s battle cry as it continues to spread the 
unique and fun Jollibee experience to Filipinos and to 
the rest of the world. 
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CONqUERINg NEw gROUNDS 

2011 WAS A BANNER YEAR for Jollibee’s international 
operations as it further strengthened its foothold in 
the global fast food landscape and solidified its image 
as one of the fastest growing international brands. 
Total international store network stood at 78 by 
yearend representing a 16.4% growth from 2010. 

In Vietnam, a major milestone was celebrated 
last December with the opening of the 30th store at 
Vincom Center, long Bien District in Hanoi.  Before 
the year ended, Jollibee Vietnam had a store count of 
31, the highest recorded store network of Jollibee in a 
single foreign market.  It was also adjudged as one of 
the 30 Best Restaurants in the country in 2011 -- the 
only fast food and foreign-owned restaurant to be 
included in the list. 

In Brunei, Jollibee’s strategy of streamlining its 
product offerings and focusing on core categories 
at the start of the year paid off. This translated 
into faster and higher transactions. New products 

introduced were the Chicken Barbecue, Triple 
Choco Sundae and Flavored Fries to the delight of 
its customers. last June, His Excellency President 
Benigno Aquino III also visited Jollibee Muara Branch 
as part of the President’s business itinerary. This was 
the first Jollibee store outside the Philippines that 
was visited by the President since he assumed office, 
clearly an acknowledgment of Jollibee’s vital role in the 
Philippine economy.

In Saudi Arabia, Jollibee opened Jollibee Al Batha, 
its first store in Riyadh, which is home to around 
800,000 Filipinos. New products were introduced and 
various promotions launched that appealed to the 
mainstream market such as the Chickenjoy, Fries and 
Bun Combo Meal as well as the 6SR Meal Deals and 
Save More promotions which strengthened Jollibee’s 
value proposition. 

In Qatar, the very strong performance of the 
Jollibee Al Meera mall outlet has drastically increased 

sales. Visitors in the mall also significantly improved 
as more customers lined up at Jollibee for its signature 
offerings. New products and promos launched 
included the Coke Float as well as the Irresistible 
Summer Promo and Jolly Treats. 

In the USA, Jollibee opened its second store in the 
island of Hawaii at the Ala Moana Center in Honolulu. 
Jollibee Woodside Queens also played host to US 
Ambassador to the Philippines Harry Thomas, Jr and 
his mother during their visit in August.

Ready and all geared up to penetrate new 
markets in the coming years and further spread 
the unique Jollibee experience, Jollibee will continue 
serving great-tasting and affordable food adhering 
to the highest standards of quality, cleanliness and 
service that have endeared the brand to thousands of 
customers across the globe.              
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BREaKINg BaRRIERS 

GREENWICH, the Philippines’ favorite pizza chain, 
dominated the pizza market in 2011 with the 
introduction of its biggest and most significant pizza 
crust innovation in its history.  likewise, it further 
strengthened its best-value-for-money proposition 
and reinforced its key business channels. 

The year 2011 proved to be the culminating 
year for Greenwich, a year of reaping the benefits 
of extensive research, in-depth market studies, and 
broad consumer testing. Greenwich perfected the 
three key pizza purchase drivers, one by one, year 
after year.  It overloaded its pizza toppings in 2008, 
created the cheesiest pizzas in 2009, and leveled up 
its pizza experience with the meatiest and cheesiest 
pizzas in 2010. All these efforts led to the launch 
of the most-awaited pizza crust innovation that 
completed the ultimate pizza experience for Filipinos. 
In 2011, Greenwich introduced its new pizza crust 
making its pizzas better than ever! 

Greenwich heavily invested in the research and 
development of its crust innovation that included 

international benchmarking. And the consumer 
results validated it.  Greenwich pizzas, with the new 
freshly made crust, were preferred over all other pizza 
brands. It then made significant investments in the 
stores and the commissary, and executed an intensive 
training across the country led by certified dough 
masters.  The roll-out was completed in 10 months. 
To support this crust innovation, Greenwich launched 
an awareness-building tri-media campaign focusing 
on the product and all its deliciousness. The campaign 
showcased the better-than-ever pizza favorite – the 
Ultimate Hawaiian Overload - made with the freshly 
made crust.  Since then, pizza sales growth has 
increased by 20%.  

Consistently attuned to what its consumers want 
and need, Greenwich launched the ‘Presyong Kaibigan’  
campaign mid-year and made pizzas and pastas 
even more affordable. This best-value-for-money 
proposition presented its customers more reasons to 
enjoy Greenwich pizzas and pastas in the company of 
friends, whether in or out of the store. This campaign 

immediately resulted to an increase in average 
transaction count per store by at least 18%.

Offering best-tasting products plus great 
value through the brand’s ‘Presyong Kaibigan’ was 
a winning combination. Greenwich made it more 
accessible to its customers through its key business 
channels. Delicious and high value-for-money offers 
were launched in take-out (Double Double, where 
customers could buy 2 pizzas for P299) and in delivery 
(Buy 1 Take 1, where customers enjoyed a free pizza 
for every one order). Store conversions to the new fast 
casual look continued, and better-looking Greenwich-
to-go kiosks were placed in prime locations. 

This 2012, Greenwich’s relentless efforts to create 
iconic products continue as it wins the hearts of new 
customers and strengthens brand love and loyalty 
even further. Truly, a favorite ng barkada. 
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SURgINg TO HIgHER pEaKS

IN THE YEAR 2011, Chowking further asserted its 
dominance as the undisputed No. 1 quick service 
Chinese restaurant chain in the country. During the 
second half of the year, Chowking demonstrated a 
strong resurgence, posting consistent double-digit 
sales growth which made it the fastest-growing 
brand of Jollibee Foods Corporation (JFC). Chowking’s 
performance led all other JFC’s domestic business 
units, pulling up total Philippine sales by 19.7% in the 
third quarter. 

The 2011 resurgence of Chowking was driven 
by accelerated transaction count growth, spurred by 
improvements in all fronts of the business: Brand, 
Taste, Value, Retail and Service. The ultimate goal was 
to be the leader in the quick service restaurant (QSR)  
business by delivering great-tasting, value-for-money 
Chinese food.

The Chowking brand strengthened its Chinese 
roots and heritage, bringing back familiar and well-
known visual properties such as the Chinese chefs 
and Chinese cues. It maximized both traditional and 
new non-traditional media channels to effectively 
build trial and loyalty amongst its target market.

Chowking also continued to improve its key 
products, led by its new and improved fried chicken – 
the Chowking Chinese-Style Fried Chicken which then 
became a growth pillar for the brand. Apart from this, 
other key products were also improved such as Pancit 
Canton, Sweet & Sour Pork, Noodles, Dimsum and 
Chao Fan, among others, all aimed  to provide great 
taste to Chowking guests.

Furthermore, Chowking enhanced its image as 
a modern Chinese QSR brand. In 2011,  the brand 
unveiled its all-new store design which boasts of 
premium, modern Chinese fixtures and murals, a 

dimsum and desserts express counter, and new store 
uniforms designed by the world-renowned designer 
Cesar Gaupo. Through these store enhancements, 
Chowking was able to afford its guests a sense of 
pride and joy in dining.

Massive efforts were made to improve food, 
service and cleanliness in stores nationwide. 
Chowking continued to improve kitchen productivity, 
enabling stores to have faster food serving time and 
equipping them to serve more guests during peak 
hours.

With these thrusts, Chowking continues its 
resurgence in 2012. As Chowking enters the year of 
the Dragon, it is poised to once again dominate and 
cement its presence as a strong force that will shape 
the future of the QSR market in the Philippines.
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ExpaNDINg FOR 
SUpERIOR gROwTH

CHOWKING INTERNATIONAl banked on the successes 
it achieved in 2010 to overcome numerous challenges 
brought about by the economic slump and political 
tensions in many developed countries. It not only 
maintained its strong presence, it also made superior 
achievements in 2011. 

Chowking UAE did one of its most significant 
initiatives in 2011 when it strengthened its FSC/QM 
(Food, Service and Conditions/Cleanliness and Quality 
Management) installation. This finally aligned and 
updated it with Jollibee Foods Corporation’s FSC system 
standards.

Four of its existing 15 stores were renovated while 
one new store opened in Al Nahda bringing its total 
store count to 16 by yearend.

It also promoted the brand through print 
advertisements and offered affordable food combos 
such as “Super Value Rice Meals,” “Unbelievable 
Combos” and “lauriat Price Off,” that boosted the 
stores’ transaction count (TC). These efforts increased 
rolling base sales by 6%, with all stores registering a 14% 
growth rate.

In support of the UAE government’s campaign on 
going green, plans were laid out to build a bigger and 
better commissary following the principle of green 
engineering. 

Chowking Qatar made its presence felt via its active 
participation in community special events such as the 
Qatar Food Expo and the Philippine Independence Day 
annual celebration. It also did campaigns to promote its 
delivery and party/function services. FSC activities were 
also launched anchored on the programs laid down by 
JFC Corporate QM. Such initiatives contributed to a rise 
of 8.5% in rolling base sales and a remarkable all stores’ 
growth rate of 57%.

The brand aims to be the benchmark in the area 
of customer satisfaction, market share and people 
development. It has currently two stores and an 
additional two stores will open in the early part of 2012. 

Chowking Indonesia started 2011 by going back 
to basics. It updated and standardized each product’s 
gross profit, renegotiated with suppliers for best pricing 
and reasonable payment terms, and reviewed its 
product’s price points, which all step up TC in the stores.

The introduction of its Value Kings, the modification 
of the Menu Kumplit (equivalent to Chowking 
Philippines’ lauriat), Breakfast Meals and new products 
like Beef Broccoli and Black Pepper Shrimp helped to 
reinforce customers’ perception of the brand having 
affordable and better value menu offerings.

With the assistance of the office of the Philippine 
Embassy in Jakarta, Chowking also continuously 

supported the Filipino community in Indonesia by 
hosting special events like World Boxing matches 
featuring Philippine boxing hero Manny Pacquiao that 
endeared the brand to Filipinos and Indonesians alike, 
thus ensuring their continued patronage. 

For Chowking USA, 2011 marked the year it 
exceeded its rolling base sales for the first time in over 
a year with an unprecedented rolling base growth rate 
of 4.8%. 

Product improvements and in-store campaigns 
contributed to this milestone achievement, such as the 
launch of King Kong Meals; Celebration Platters; the 
Power Breakfast Meal; The Hot Chow Combo Meals; 
and the lauriat Meals.

Chowking USA also introduced bright new menu 
boards and under counter laminates to make product 
selection easier and more appetizing for customers. 
Training and development programs were also offered 
to its staff to upgrade customer service and enhance 
overall customer dining experience. 

With Chowking International stores’ consistent 
execution of superb FSC standards, the unwavering 
commitment of Chowking International team members, 
coupled with the vibrant economy where the Chowking 
stores are located, indeed, Chowking International is all 
geared up to be better, faster and stronger in 2012.
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REINFORCINg CUSTOMER 
SaTISFaCTION

REBOUNDING FROM a weak and challenged first 
semester, Red Ribbon presented a stellar performance 
in the second half of the year which led to overall 
top-line and bottom-line improvements in 2011.  
The company registered PhP3.7 billion system-wide 
sales which translated to an 8% sales growth and a 
phenomenal 95% profit growth versus 2010!

Inspired by its revitalized business positioning, 
2011 marked the launch of product campaigns which 
drove sales growth and were also recognized for their 
outstanding market performance.  Dedication Cakes, 
which posted a volume growth of 256% versus last 
year, bagged the Bronze Prize from the Araw Awards 
for Excellence in Performance in the Digital Category.  
Triple Chocolate Roll, which delivered a volume growth 
of 305% versus 2010 and established a record as the 
highest-selling cake in Red Ribbon’s history, took 

home the Gold Trophy in Jollibee Foods Corporation’s 
Award for Marketing Excellence.  Both of these 
products plus the introduction of leche Flan Roll, 
Mocha Choco Crumble, Yummy Cheese Roll, Mango 
Cream Pie, and various licensed Birthday Cakes, all 
paved way for achieving the highest rolling-base 
growth in four years.

Red Ribbon implemented bold programs on 
simplification, streamlining, and optimization of its 
product and store portfolio, systems, processes, and 
organization, which contributed to profit growth.  
Production and design simplification, reinforced by 
manufacturing conveyorization and automation, led 
to commissary efficiency.  Through reformatting, 
resizing, relocation, and even closure, store portfolio 
was streamlined to further enhance store profitability.  
The product line-up of key categories was reduced 

from 1,770 to just 180 stock keeping units to achieve 
a more efficient product portfolio.  The restructuring 
of Main Office Support and Operations functions led 
to a leaner and more efficient organization.  Without 
compromising the high quality of Red Ribbon products, 
cost optimization programs were applied which 
resulted to a total savings of PhP14 million in raw 
materials and production costs.  All these programs 
propelled the company to an unprecedented profit 
growth - the highest in its history.

Buoyed by its outstanding performance in 
2011, Red Ribbon is positioned to deliver an even 
stronger showing in 2012 as a leading mass-premium 
bakeshop that is committed to make everyday 
moments of the family memorable and priceless.
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CREaTINg MORE REaSONS 
TO CELEBRaTE

IN 2011, RED RIBBON Bakeshop USA continued its 
store network development by adding four new 
stores. In February, another San Diego location was 
opened with the Chula Vista outlet. The very first store 
in Orange County in Anaheim City was inaugurated, 
receiving a very warm welcome from the local Filipino 
community. The brand further expanded into new 
territories with two new stores in Hawaii – the first is 
in Waipahu and another in Honolulu before the year 
ended.

Red Ribbon USA continued to improve, adapt 
and broaden its offerings for the consumers’ evolving 
needs and tastes. With the market becoming more 
value conscious because of the economic crisis, 
Perfect Pair was launched in May. Priced at a 
competitive $3.95, Perfect Pair offered combos of 
Palabok with ArrozCaldo or Siopao and ArrozCaldo 
with Siopao or Empanada. This affordable and 
satisfying meal accounted for a sizable number of 
repeat customers.

Familiar favorites were again introduced to appeal 
to the tastes of the Filipino market, but this time with 
new additions to the baked goods selection. In March, 
the Ube Mamon was introduced, which helped push 

the entire Mamon line’s incremental sales up by at 
least 12%. In August, a new bread loaf line featuring 
Ube and Red Monggo flavors was launched.

In the last quarter of the year, Red Ribbon USA 
offered the Bundle Pack Promo of Buy 6 pcs Get 1 pc 
free for the Ensaimada and all Mamon variants. This 
initiative gave the best selling products a boost in 
sales and encouraged customers to return for more 
purchases. 

As the year ended, Red Ribbon USA had one last 
sweet surprise for the market. In October, a new cake 
box was unveiled, which consumers find refreshingly 
clean and simple.  A seasonal version of the design 
was launched in time for Christmas. The new holiday 
look helped to associate Red Ribbon with the season 
and the brand as a source for gift ideas.

Despite the nation’s economic downturn, Red 
Ribbon Bakeshop USA is positive that things are 
looking up, for itself and its consumers alike. After 
all, at Red Ribbon USA, there are more reasons to 
celebrate, whether small (discovering a hearty and 
affordable meal) or big (enabling a true Filipino 
gathering even in the USA).
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CELEBRaTINg SUCCESS 

THE YEAR PROVED to be a tough year for all food 
retailers as the Chinese Government enforced food 
safety regulations and clamp down on food safety 
violators. While some established brands encountered 
problems and several even lost brand trust, Yonghe 
King passed the year with a clean record. Successfully 
meeting China’s high food safety standards and 
regulations were made possible with Yonghe King’s 
determination to improve existing menu recipes, 
operational procedures and identity gaps. 

This success not only enhanced the brand image 
but also increased its competitive advantage.

It opened 70 new restaurants, the highest in its 
history, to end the year with a total of 265. 

Besides opening a restaurant at Shanghai 
Hongqiao and Guangzhou Bai Yun airport in 2010, 
Yonghe King penetrated the Beijing-Shanghai Express 
Train line with restaurants opening at Shanghai, 

Beijing, Nanjing and Suzhou station. Not just one but 
two restaurants were opened in Shanghai and Nanjing 
station at the arrival and departure halls - a first for 
Yonghe King.   

The year witnessed the introduction of the 
G3 décor package. The theme is in line with the 
old philosophy of ‘traditional yet modern and 
contemporary,’ so as to keep pace and stay relevant 
with the 1980 and 1990 generations, Yonghe King’s 
core customer base now and in the future.

To meet its Chinese customers’ needs for a 
balanced meal or snack that goes with the seasons, 3 
types of pudding were introduced in summer: mango, 
red bean and aloe vera with red sugar to create a 
portfolio of 3 cold and 2 hot desserts. It was an instant 
hit, enthusiastically welcomed by customers. Dessert 
is now another strong menu item aside from rice, 
noodle, dimsum and beverage.   

Another milestone achievement of Yonghe King 
was being voted ‘2011 C-BPI (China Brand Power 
Index) Number 1 Brand in the Chinese Quick Service 
Restaurant’ category by the China Brand Research 
Center. This is an independent institute, supported by 
the Chinese government in conducting brand research 
and recognizing the top brand in each category. The 
survey was conducted in over 30 cities using brand 
power and brand loyalty as main criteria. 

The year ended favorably with system wide sales 
crossing the 1-billion Renminbi mark. 

Not resting on its laurels, Yonghe King will pursue 
its goals with more zeal by focusing on its customers 
and responding to their ever-changing needs, a key 
to becoming the favorite place to eat Chinese food in 
China. 
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TRIUMpH THROUgH 
RE-INVENTION

IN 2011, HONG ZHUANG YUAN took great strides 
in the restaurant business industry. Through re-
invention and change, the brand gained even more 
strength and set the stage to accomplish its goal – to 
be a leader in a new category of restaurants classified 
between fast casual and casual – a neighborhood 
restaurant.

A new prototype restaurant was launched in July 
with an innovative design. Sporting a traditional yet 
modern look, the restaurant used burgundy red as 
the main color. The restaurant’s facade, decor, seats, 
crew uniform, and table ware were altered to match 
the new brand image. All the visuals will likewise be 
changed in all 50 restaurants within two to three 
years.

With support from the talented Master Sun (one 
of the Top Ten famous chefs in China), Hong Zhuang 
Yuan keeps on improving the taste of its products, 
at the same time introducing new ones in its menu. 

Aside from being a famous place to go to for congee, 
Hong Zhuang Yuan also aspires to be a place of choice 
for friends and family gatherings. 

In addition, Hong Zhuang Yuan also continues 
to develop its current service model to improve 
operations, from fast food service to casual dining 
service, from systematic service to exceptional 
personal service, from robotic efficiency to personal 
care and hospitality, all vital ingredients to ensure 
future growth.

Indeed, 2011 was an excellent year as the brand 
continues to evolve. Customers had indicated their 
appreciation of the changes, judging from a sales 
growth of 12% higher than 2010. By maintaining its 
unique identity and consistently delivering great value 
to its customers, Hong Zhuang Yuan had established a 
foothold in the restaurant business, serving as a solid 
foundation for a stronger 2012. 
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gROwINg THROUgH 
INNOVaTIONS

FOR MANG INASAl, 2011 was characterized by 
dynamic activity and rapid growth. The year saw the 
opening of 84 stores as well as the historic opening of 
its 400th store in Greenhills, giving the brand a total of 
429 stores at year end. This dynamic pace translated 
to a sales growth of nearly 40% versus 2010 as a result 
of a wide range of marketing efforts and strategic 
thrusts.  

As the year’s kickoff campaign, the “I love Mang 
Inasal” generated solid awareness and brand affinity 
through the use of billboards placed strategically 
all over the country. The strategy proved to be so 
successful that Mang Inasal used billboards for all 
its campaigns throughout 2011 to efficiently and 
effectively deliver its key messages.  The “I love Mang 
Inasal” campaign culminated with the Grand Gadget 
Giveaway promo, and a bloggers night that brought 
the country’s preeminent food bloggers together to 
build goodwill, and greater love for Mang Inasal. 

The second major launch of the year was the 
introduction of Paborito Meal (PM) 1.5 or Spicy Paa 
which to date is Mang Inasal’s 4th highest selling 
product.  The Spicy Paa launch capitalized on a tie-in 
with BDO to generate additional awareness and 
exposure. It also maximized raw material usage 
by creating an additional product out of the readily 
available chicken leg. 

Mang Inasal activated a new business channel in 
2011: The Bulilit Party Package opening the brand to 
the celebration of children’s birthday parties.  It also 
launched an aggressive guerilla marketing campaign, 
Project Geronimo, which involved precisely placed buy-
one-take one leafletting to neutralize one of its fast 
growing competitors.  Such effort led to a 49% traffic 
decline in that competitor’s targeted stores. 

The year ended with “The More The Many-er” 
campaign which introduced a range of exciting new 
products.  The campaign was unique in that it built 

buzz and excitement through teasers on TV, climaxed 
with an all-out media blast that bombarded the city 
with news about the brand’s delicious new offerings.

On the cost-savings front, Mang Inasal used 
as leverage Jollibee Foods Corporation’s purchasing 
clout to achieve the most competitive prices on 
chicken parts bringing savings to franchisees and the 
corporation as a whole.  Jollibee Corporate Media also 
initiated support for Mang Inasal in the latter part of 
2011 to bring its media value rates at par with the 
most competitive companies in the country.

The dynamic pace of 2011 sets the tone for 
greater growth in 2012 and the years beyond.  looking 
to a bright future, Mang Inasal will build on these 
efforts, and at the same time focus its strategic 
thrusts to become one of the greatest brands within 
the JFC portfolio and the fast food industry as a whole. 
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STEppINg Up FOR a 
BRIgHTER FUTURE

THE YEAR 2011 commemorates the seventh year 
of operation of Jollibee Foundation. Many valuable 
lessons gained from the past years will help the 
Foundation as it embarks on a new cycle.

One is being innovative and bold in thinking 
outside the box. A management system was 
put in place in what is commonly regarded as an 
“unsustainable” school feeding. For school year 
2011-2012, the Busog, lusog, Talino (BlT) school 
feeding program gained many partners making it 
possible to reach 15,936 pupils from 444 schools 
in 95 sites. local Implementing Partners (lIP) 
administered the program in coordination with the 
Department of Education, the local Government Unit 
and Jollibee Foods Corporation (JFC) stores near the 
areas. Community ownership drove the program’s 
sustainability. With the Foundation’s time-bound 
financing scheme, local partners found innovative 
ways to provide needed resources. In 2011, 30% of BlT 
resources came from local government units, civic 
organizations and private individuals. In addition to 
serving as BlT volunteers, employees of JFC joined an 
employee-giving campaign dubbed as “Give Me 5” and 
contributed to success of the program. 

Sincere collaboration with partners of similar 
values has made possible many things that seemed 
initially, unattainable. In Agriculture Development, 
more than 400 farmers from Nueva Ecija, Pangasinan, 
Quezon, Bukidnon and Misamis Oriental received 
training and technical assistance in production, 
finance and marketing. Farmers’ cooperatives from 
these five areas have successfully supplied products 
such as onions, calamansi, salad tomatoes, and 
assorted vegetables to JFC and other institutional 
markets. Cross visits among farmers were also carried 
out to share successes and promote best practices. 
The project is in partnership with the Catholic Relief 
Services (CRS), which provided agro-enterprise 
training for small farmers, and the National livelihood 
Development Corporation (NlDC), which facilitated 
their access to financing through its loan conduits. 
Jollibee Foundation assisted in opening market 
opportunities from institutional buyers. 

Innovation and collaboration also extended 
to the other programs of the Foundation. College 
and Technical Training Scholarships continued to 
provide employment-driven scholarship assistance 
so that 92 aspiring but financially disadvantaged 

students can secure jobs after their graduation. 
Support for the three Jollibee-Gawad Kalinga villages 
in las Piñas, Southern leyte and Butuan was 
sustained with specific programs in Education. In 
Environment Protection, over 400 employees helped 
reforest Marikina and Ipo Watersheds in Antipolo 
and Bulacan, covering over 16 hectares. In Disaster 
Relief, the efforts of the Foundation and JFC brands 
provided immediate relief assistance to families 
affected by Typhoon Sendong. Funds raised from 
coinbanks placed in all JFC stores nationwide will help 
rehabilitate public schools affected by the typhoon.

Armed with these lessons and successes, the 
Foundation is embracing its next cycle with renewed 
will and commitment to collaborating with those who 
will take the same challenge.
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NOURISHINg pUpILS 
THROUgH DaILY 
LUNCH SCHOOL FEEDINg

SUppORTINg aND 
LINKINg SMaLL FaRMERS 
TO INSTITUTIONaL 
SUppLY CHaINS

NURTURINg THE 
ENVIRONMENT wITH 
TREE pLaNTINg
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(in P’000, except Number of Stores, Personnel, Ratios, Per Share Data and Outstanding Shares) 
     
FOR THE YEAR 2008 2009 2010 2011
     
Consolidated Systemwide Sales  58,162,821  63,729,418  70,254,305  82,170,085 
Gross Revenues  43,891,559  47,957,693  53,371,725  62,554,927 
Net Income  2,321,817  2,666,900  3,212,536  3,253,803 
Net Income (Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent)  2,319,088  2,664,623  3,197,794  3,231,667 
Payroll and Benefits  7,242,127  8,433,014  9,215,090  9,956,398 
Personnel  39,599  38,932  41,260  39,162 
Number of Stores     
          Jollibee*  700  743  784  823 
          Chowking*  418  431  438  430 
          Greenwich  231  226  223  205 
          Red Ribbon*  239  242  259  242 
          Yonghe King  141  160  200  265 
          Delifrance  26  24  -    -   
          Chun Shui Tang  2  -    -    -   
          Manong Pepe’s  9  15  12  -   
          Hong Zhuang Yuan  38  41  52  52 
          Caffe Ti-Amo  -    -    3  -   
          Mang Inasal  -    -    345  429 

Burger King     23 
Chow Fun     3 

*  Domestic and International     
     
AT YEAR-END     
     
Total Assets  27,125,701  29,727,493  33,746,007  38,908,227 
Total Property & Equipment  8,274,919  8,350,573  8,770,519  10,557,402 
Total Equity  14,139,831  16,285,206  17,681,443  20,222,454 
Current Ratio  1.45  1.45  0.99  1.10 
Debt Ratio  0.48  0.45  0.48  0.49 
     
PER SHARE DATA     
     
Basic Earnings Per Share  2.27  2.61  3.12  3.14 
Diluted Earnings Per Share  2.25  2.58  3.08  3.10 
Cash Dividend  0.84  0.85  2.25  1.07 
Book Value  13.81  15.73  17.05  19.47 
     
SHARE INFORMATION     
     
Outstanding Shares (net of Treasury Shares)  1,023,558,148  1,035,010,816  1,036,991,478  1,038,505,893 
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The management of JOLLIBEE FOODS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES (the Jollibee Group) is 
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements for the years 
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework 
indicated therein.  This responsibility includes designing and implementing internal controls relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and 
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.  

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements and submit the same 
to the stockholders.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors, appointed by the stockholders has examined the 
consolidated financial statements of the Jollibee Group in accordance with Philippine Standards on 
Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation 
upon completion of such examination.

Signed under oath by the following:

TONY TAN CAKTIONG
Chairman of the Board
Chief Executive Officer

 YSMAEL V. BAYSA MARILOU N. SIBAYAN
 Vice-President for Corporate Finance Comptroller
 and Chief Finance Officer 

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
CITY OF PASIG                                )S.S

Before me, a notary public in and for the city named above, personally appeared the following:

Name Competent Evidence of Identity

Tony Tan Caktiong SSS Number:  03-5003942-0

Ysmael V. Baysa SSS Number:  03-4228219-1

Marilou N. Sibayan SSS Number:  03-9964176-9

Who are personally known to me and to me known to be the same persons who presented the foregoing 
instrument and signed the instrument in my presence, and who took on oath before me as to such 
instrument.

Witness my hand and seal this 12th day of April 2012.

Doc. No. 63
Page No. 14
Book No. VI
Series of 2012
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The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Jollibee Foods Corporation
10th Floor, Jollibee Plaza Building
No. 10 Emerald Avenue, Ortigas Centre, Pasig City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Jollibee Foods Corporation and 
its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2011 
and 2010, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity 
and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.  
We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the  
financial position of Jollibee Foods Corporation and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, 
and their financial performance and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 2011 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Ramon D. Dizon
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 46047
SEC Accreditation No. 0077-AR-2 (Group A), 
 February 4, 2010, valid until February 3, 2013
Tax Identification No. 102-085-577
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-17-2009, 
 June 1, 2009, valid until May 31, 2012
PTR No. 3174592, January 2, 2012, Makati City

April 12, 2012

Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co.
6760 Ayala Avenue
1226 Makati City
Philippines

Phone: (632) 891 0307
Fax: (632) 819 0872
www.sgv.com.ph

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001,
 January 25, 2010, valid until December 31, 2012
SEC Accreditation No. 0012 - FR-2 (Group A),
 February 4, 2010, valid until February 3, 2013
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 December 31

2011
2010

(Note 2)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6, 30 and 31) P6,655,312,875 P8,170,489,301
Receivables (Notes 7, 30 and 31) 2,388,617,052 2,098,921,220
Inventories (Note 8) 2,860,103,279 2,134,467,159
Other current assets (Note 9) 1,354,914,695 1,168,579,617
  Total Current Assets 13,258,947,901 13,572,457,297
Noncurrent Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets (Notes 10, 30 and 31) 120,649,438 176,283,046
Interest in and advances to a joint venture (Note 11) 3,188,515 21,622,471
Property, plant and equipment (Note 12) 10,557,401,796 8,770,518,572
Investment properties (Note 13) 772,468,616 777,719,894
Goodwill and other intangible assets (Note 14) 8,584,085,504 7,990,646,296
Operating lease receivables (Note 29) 26,838,873 33,086,384
Deferred tax assets (Note 24) 967,614,484 920,139,371
Other noncurrent assets (Notes 15, 30 and 31) 4,617,032,092 1,483,533,516
  Total Noncurrent Assets 25,649,279,318 20,173,549,550

P38,908,227,219 P33,746,006,847

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade payables and other current liabilities (Notes 16, 30 and 31) P10,165,594,869 P9,172,703,711
Income tax payable 154,717,083 167,751,504
Short-term debt (Notes 18, 30 and 31) 900,000,000 1,842,030,865
Current portion of:
 Long-term debt (Notes 18, 30 and 31) 777,301,991 2,341,125,065
 Liability for acquisition of businesses (Notes 11, 30 and 31) 104,763,179 170,194,278
  Total Current Liabilities 12,102,377,122 13,693,805,423
Noncurrent Liabilities
Provisions (Note 17) 30,500,639 30,500,639
Noncurrent portion of:
 Long-term debt (Notes 18, 30 and 31) 3,942,742,029 51,588,581
 Liability for acquisition of businesses (Notes 11, 30 and 31) 212,334,110 141,254,668
Pension liability (Note 25) 278,674,514 212,089,188
Operating lease payables (Note 29) 1,343,261,889 1,166,944,342
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 24) 775,883,149 768,381,238
  Total Noncurrent Liabilities 6,583,396,330 2,370,758,656
  Total Liabilities 18,685,773,452 16,064,564,079
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company (Note 30)
Capital stock (Note 19) 1,054,953,233 1,053,438,818
Subscriptions receivable (17,177,884) (17,177,884)
Additional paid-in capital (Note 26) 2,914,463,925 2,773,682,164
Cumulative translation adjustments of foreign subsidiaries (187,186,852) (317,022,645)
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale financial assets (Note 10) 102,626,829 107,164,577
Excess of cost over the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired (Note 19) (542,764,486) (542,764,486)
Retained earnings (Note 19):
 Appropriated for future expansion 1,200,000,000 1,200,000,000
 Unappropriated 15,174,359,248 13,042,709,169

19,699,274,013 17,300,029,713
Less cost of common stock held in treasury (Note 19) 180,511,491 180,511,491

19,518,762,522 17,119,518,222
Non-controlling Interests (Note 11) 703,691,245 561,924,546
  Total Equity 20,222,453,767 17,681,442,768

P38,908,227,219 P33,746,006,847

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Years Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009

REVENUES
Net sales P59,266,444,340 P50,506,967,113 P45,344,123,164
Royalty, franchise fees and others (Note 20) 3,288,482,719 2,864,757,569 2,613,570,160

62,554,927,059 53,371,724,682 47,957,693,324
COST OF SALES (Note 21) 51,403,358,818 43,254,730,460 38,388,328,254

GROSS PROFIT 11,151,568,241 10,116,994,222 9,569,365,070

EXPENSES 
General and administrative expenses (Note 22) 5,939,317,810 5,271,066,845 5,315,585,612
Advertising and promotions 1,310,113,894 1,246,592,522 952,455,995

7,249,431,704 6,517,659,367 6,268,041,607

INTEREST INCOME (EXPENSE) (Note 23)
Interest income 179,763,236 163,081,118 163,680,615
Interest expense (291,342,791) (193,201,203) (218,909,754)

(111,579,555) (30,120,085) (55,229,139)

EQUITY IN NET EARNINGS (LOSS) OF A JOINT VENTURE (Note 11) 299,710 (2,181,411)  –

OTHER INCOME (Note 23) 566,813,617 618,898,399 409,084,936

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 4,357,670,309 4,185,931,758 3,655,179,260

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 24)
Current 1,187,563,865 1,040,927,979 986,027,893
Deferred (83,696,480) (67,532,217) 2,251,622

1,103,867,385 973,395,762 988,279,515

NET INCOME 3,253,802,924 3,212,535,996 2,666,899,745

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Translation adjustments 133,206,626 (215,377,701) (124,186,353)
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale financial assets - net (Note 10) (4,537,748) 17,259,983 70,024,540

128,668,878 (198,117,718) (54,161,813)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P3,382,471,802 P3,014,418,278 P2,612,737,932

Net Income Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company (Note 28) P3,231,666,940 P3,197,793,977 P2,664,623,109
Non-controlling interests 22,135,984 14,742,019 2,276,636

P3,253,802,924 P3,212,535,996 P2,666,899,745

Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company P3,356,964,985 P2,999,265,317 P2,610,461,296
Non-controlling interests 25,506,817 15,152,961 2,276,636

P3,382,471,802 P3,014,418,278 P2,612,737,932

Earnings Per Share for Net Income Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company (Note 28)
Basic  P3.138  P3.118  P2.610
Diluted  3.096  3.077  2.581

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company (Note 30)

Capital Stock 
(Note 19)

Subscriptions 
Receivable

Additional 
Paid-in Capital 

(Note 26)

Cumulative
Translation 

Adjustments 
of Foreign 

Subsidiaries

Unrealized 
Gain on 

Available-for- 
Sale Financial  

Assets  
(Note 10)

Excess of Cost  
over the  

Carrying Value 
of Non-controlling 
Interests Acquired  

(Note 19)

Retained Earnings (Note 19)
Cost 

of Common
Stock Held in 

Treasury 
(Note 19) Total

Non-controlling 
Interests 

(Notes 2 and 11)

Total 
Equity 

(Note 2)

Appropriated 
for Future 

Expansion Unappropriated
Balances at January 1, 2011 P1,053,438,818 (P17,177,884) P2,773,682,164 (P317,022,645) P107,164,577 (P542,764,486) P1,200,000,000 P13,042,709,169 (P180,511,491) P17,119,518,222 P561,924,546 P17,681,442,768
Net income 3,231,666,940 3,231,666,940 22,135,984 3,253,802,924
Other comprehensive income (loss)
 Translation adjustments – – – 129,835,793 – – – – – 129,835,793 3,370,833 133,206,626
 Unrealized loss on available-for-sale financial 

assets – – – – (4,537,748) – – – – (4,537,748) – (4,537,748)
Total comprehensive income (loss) – – – 129,835,793 (4,537,748) – – 3,231,666,940 – 3,356,964,985 25,506,817 3,382,471,802
Movements in other equity accounts
 Issuances of and subscriptions to capital stock 1,514,415 – 67,185,580 – – – – – – 68,699,995 – 68,699,995
 Cost of stock options granted – – 73,596,181 – – – – – – 73,596,181 – 73,596,181
 Cash dividends - P1.07 a share (Note 19) – – – – – – – (1,100,016,861) – (1,100,016,861) – (1,100,016,861)
 Arising from business combination – – – – – – – – – – 73,838,539 73,838,539
 Arising from incorporation of a subsidiary – – – – – – – – – – 4,000,043 4,000,043
 Additional investments during the year – – – – – – – – – – 38,421,300 38,421,300

1,514,415 – 140,781,761 – – – – (1,100,016,861) – (957,720,685) 116,259,882 (841,460,803)
Balances at December 31, 2011 P1,054,953,233 (P17,177,884) P2,914,463,925 (P187,186,852) P102,626,829 (P542,764,486) P1,200,000,000 P15,174,359,248 (P180,511,491) P19,518,762,522 P703,691,245 P20,222,453,767

Balances at January 1, 2010 P1,051,458,156 (P17,177,884) P2,635,662,843 (P101,234,002) P89,904,594 (P543,978,573) P1,200,000,000 P12,147,867,997 (P180,511,491) P16,281,991,640 P3,214,087 P16,285,205,727
Net income – – – – – – – 3,197,793,977 – 3,197,793,977 14,742,019 3,212,535,996
Other comprehensive income (loss)
 Translation adjustments – – – (215,788,643) – – – – – (215,788,643) 410,942 (215,377,701)
 Unrealized gain on available-for-sale financial 

assets – – – – 17,259,983 – – – – 17,259,983 – 17,259,983
Total comprehensive income (loss) – – – (215,788,643) 17,259,983 – – 3,197,793,977 – 2,999,265,317 15,152,961 3,014,418,278
Movements in other equity accounts
 Issuances of and subscriptions to capital stock 1,980,662 – 72,361,459 – – – – – – 74,342,121 – 74,342,121
 Cost of stock options granted – – 65,657,862 – – – – – – 65,657,862 – 65,657,862
 Cash dividends - P2.25 a share (Note 19) – – – – – – – (2,302,952,805) – (2,302,952,805) – (2,302,952,805)
 Arising from business combination – – – – – – – – – – 491,774,405 491,774,405
 Arising from incorporation of a subsidiary – – – – – – – – – – 54,997,180 54,997,180
 Acquisition of non-controlling interests – – – – – 1,214,087 – – – 1,214,087 (3,214,087) (2,000,000)

1,980,662 – 138,019,321 – – 1,214,087 – (2,302,952,805) – (2,161,738,735) 543,557,498 (1,618,181,237)
Balances at December 31, 2010 P1,053,438,818 (P17,177,884) P2,773,682,164 (P317,022,645) P107,164,577 (P542,764,486) P1,200,000,000 P13,042,709,169 (P180,511,491) P17,119,518,222 P561,924,546 P17,681,442,768

Balances at January 1, 2009 P1,040,005,488 (P17,177,884) P2,245,675,482 P22,952,351 P19,880,054 (P543,978,573) P1,200,000,000 P10,349,648,543 (P180,511,491) P14,136,493,970 P3,337,451 P14,139,831,421
Net income – – – – – – – 2,664,623,109 – 2,664,623,109 2,276,636 2,666,899,745
Other comprehensive income (loss)
 Translation adjustments – – – (124,186,353) – – – – – (124,186,353) – (124,186,353)
 Unrealized gain on available-for-sale financial 

assets – – – – 70,024,540 – – – – 70,024,540 – 70,024,540
Total comprehensive income (loss) – – – (124,186,353) 70,024,540 – – 2,664,623,109 – 2,610,461,296 2,276,636 2,612,737,932
Movements in other equity accounts
 Issuances of and subscriptions to capital stock 11,452,668 – 242,465,182 – – – – – – 253,917,850 – 253,917,850
 Cost of stock options granted – – 147,522,179 – – – – – – 147,522,179 – 147,522,179
 Cash dividends - P0.85 a share (Note 19) – – – – – – – (866,403,655) – (866,403,655) (2,400,000) (868,803,655)

11,452,668 – 389,987,361 – – – – (866,403,655) – (464,963,626) (2,400,000) (467,363,626)
Balances at December 31, 2009 P1,051,458,156 (P17,177,884) P2,635,662,843 (P101,234,002) P89,904,594 (P543,978,573) P1,200,000,000 P12,147,867,997 (P180,511,491) P16,281,991,640 P3,214,087 P16,285,205,727

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Years Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax P4,357,670,309 P4,185,931,758 P3,655,179,260
Adjustments for:
 Depreciation and amortization (Notes 12, 13, 21 and 22) 2,401,593,897 1,978,005,994 2,085,949,869
 Interest expense (Note 23) 291,342,791 193,201,203 218,909,754
 Deferred rent amortization - net (Note 29) 182,565,058 168,527,509 (24,103,276)
 Loss on disposals and retirements of :
  Property, plant and equipment - net (Note 12) 216,294,908 183,846,481 363,767,120
  Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 10) 229,360 145,431 747,172
 Interest income (Note 23) (179,763,236) (163,081,118) (163,680,615)
 Pension expense (Note 25) 157,321,743 156,117,874 140,753,857
 Stock options expense (Note 26) 73,596,181 65,657,862 147,522,179
 Net unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) 4,582,117 (48,944,543) (46,455,820)
 Equity in net loss (earnings) of a joint venture (Note 11) (299,710) 2,181,411  –
 Reversals of impairment on investment properties (Note 13)  – (18,234,341)  –
 Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment (Notes 12 and 22)  –  – 86,408,877
Income before working capital changes 7,505,133,418 6,703,355,521 6,464,998,377
Decreases (increases) in:
 Short-term investment  –  – 20,002,018
 Receivables (314,201,325) 82,253,784 38,582,972
 Inventories (693,934,034) (314,493,616) 998,054,985
 Other current assets (227,403,532) (133,652,904) (128,602,837)
Increases (decreases) in:
 Trade payables and other current liabilities 783,520,729 201,815,255 547,063,191
 Provisions  –  – (15,808,350)
Net cash generated from operations 7,053,115,256 6,539,278,040 7,924,290,356
Interest received 105,417,626 142,162,966 139,171,673
Contributions to plan assets (Note 25) (70,977,928) (108,668,770) (353,871,159)
Income taxes paid (1,206,994,209) (1,068,556,299) (932,576,795)
Net cash provided by operating activities 5,880,560,745 5,504,215,937 6,777,014,075

(Forward)
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Years Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of:
 Property, plant and equipment (Note 12) (P3,700,449,259) (P2,553,449,151) (P2,575,116,986)
 Subsidiaries - net of cash acquired (Note 11) (815,787,543) (2,714,811,144) (835,282,824)
 Investment properties (Note 13) (8,011,386) (30,662,281)  –
 Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 10)  – (3,940,000) (9,193,912)
Contribution to a joint venture (Note 11)  – (5,000,000)  –
Increase in long-term loan receivable (Note 15) (1,753,600,000)  –  –
Deposit for future business transaction (Note 15) (1,096,000,000)  –  –
Decrease (increase) in other noncurrent assets (11,750,343) 106,128,447 (122,020,031)
Proceeds from disposals of:
 Property, plant and equipment 31,976,343 96,029,926 22,394,454
 Investment properties  – 277,200  –
Collection from (advances to) a joint venture 18,733,666 (18,803,882)  –
Net cash used in investing activities (7,334,888,522) (5,124,230,885) (3,519,219,299)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of:
 Cash dividends (1,196,621,682) (2,556,643,476) (843,906,023)
 Short-term debt (Note 18) (342,030,865) (305,024,016) (407,197,154)
 Long-term debt (Note 18) (2,379,825,785) (53,697,466) (37,769,129)
Proceeds from:
 Short-term debt (Note 18) 900,000,000 1,842,030,865 305,024,016
 Long-term debt (Note 18) 3,131,020,350  –  –
 Issuances of and subscriptions to capital stock 68,699,995 27,886,621 82,609,866
Interest paid (284,118,329) (189,703,359) (226,068,886)
Contributions from non-controlling interests 42,421,343 54,997,180  –
Acquisition of non-controlling interests  – (2,000,000)  –
Net cash used in financing activities (60,454,973) (1,182,153,651) (1,127,307,310)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,514,782,750) (802,168,599) 2,130,487,466

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (393,676) (4,600,496) (12,078,126)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 8,170,489,301 8,977,258,396 6,858,849,056

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR (Note 6) P6,655,312,875 P8,170,489,301 P8,977,258,396

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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coRpoRate inFoRMation1. 

Jollibee Foods Corporation (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the Philippines.  The Parent Company 
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Jollibee Group”) are involved primarily in the development, 
operation and franchising of Quick Service Restaurants (QSR) under the trade names “Jollibee”, “Chowking”, 
“Greenwich”, “Red Ribbon”, “Yong He King”, “Hong Zhuang Yuan”, “Mang Inasal” and “Burger King”.  The other 
activities of the Jollibee Group include manufacturing and property leasing in support of the QSR systems and 
other business activities (see Notes 2 and 5).  

The common shares of the Parent Company were listed and have been traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange 
(PSE) beginning July 14, 1993.

The registered office address of the Parent Company is 10th Floor, Jollibee Plaza Building, No. 10 Emerald Avenue, 
Ortigas Centre, Pasig City.

The consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and for each of the three years in the 
period ended December 31, 2011 were reviewed and recommended for approval by the Audit Committee 
on April 2, 2012.  The same consolidated financial statements were also approved and authorized for issuance 
by the Board of Directors (BOD) on April 12, 2012. 

baSiS oF pRepaRation, StateMent oF coMpliance, cHangeS in accounting policieS, 2. 
ReStateMent oF 2010 coMpaRatiVe Financial StateMentS and baSiS oF conSolidation

Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Jollibee Group have been prepared on the historical cost basis, 
except for certain available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets, which are measured at fair value.  The consolidated 
financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Parent Company’s functional and presentation 
currency under Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).  All values are rounded to the nearest peso, 
except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with PFRS.  PFRS 
also includes Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations from International Financial 
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council 
(FRSC).

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the adoption 
of the following new, amended and improved PFRS and Philippine Interpretations that the Jollibee Group 
adopted starting January 1, 2011.  

New Interpretation

	 Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments, effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2010

Amendments to Standards and Interpretation

	 PAS 24 (Amended), Related Party Disclosures, effective for annual periods beginning on or after  
January 1, 2011

	 PAS 32 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Presentation - Classification of Rights Issues, effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after February 1, 2010

	 Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 14, Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement (Amendment), effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011

Improvements to PFRS (Effective 2011)

	 PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Measurement options available for non-controlling interest
	 PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Contingent consideration arising from business combination prior to 

adoption of PFRS 3 (as revised in 2008)
	 PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Un-replaced and voluntarily replaced share-based payment awards, 

applicable for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2010
	 PFRS 7, Financial Instruments - Disclosures
	 PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements
	 PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
	 PAS 34, Interim Financial Statements
	 Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes - determining the fair value of award 

credits

The adoption of these new and amended standards and interpretations did not have a significant impact on the 
Jollibee Group’s consolidated financial statements. 

Future Changes in Accounting Policies
The Jollibee Group will adopt the following standards and Philippine interpretations when these become 
effective.  Except as otherwise indicated, the Jollibee Group does not expect the adoption of these new and 
amended standards to have significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

New Standards and Amendments

PFRS 9,	  Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement, will become effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2015.  PFRS 9 reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39, 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and applies to classification and measurement of 
financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in PAS 39.  In subsequent phases, hedge accounting 
and impairment of financial assets will be addressed with the completion of this project expected on the 
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first half of 2012.  The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and 
measurement of the Jollibee Group’s financial assets, but will potentially have no impact on classification 
and measurements of financial liabilities.  The Jollibee Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with 
the other phases, when issued, to present a comprehensive picture.

PFRS 10, 	 Consolidated Financial Statements, will become effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after January 1, 2013.  PFRS 10 replaces the portion of PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements.  It also includes the 
issues raised in Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) 12, Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities.  
PFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities.  
The changes introduced by PFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant judgment to 
determine which entities are controlled, and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent, 
compared with the requirements that were in PAS 27.

PFRS 11, 	 Joint Arrangements, will become effective for annual periods beginning on or after  
January 1, 2013.  PFRS 11 replaces PAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-13, Jointly-controlled Entities -  
Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers.  PFRS 11 removes the option to account for jointly controlled 
entities (JCEs) using proportionate consolidation.  Instead, JCEs that meet the definition of a joint venture 
must be accounted for using the equity method.  The application of this new standard will have no impact 
on the financial position of the Jollibee Group as it accounts for its JCEs using the equity method.

PFRS 12, 	 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, will become effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2013.  PFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures that were previously in PAS 27 related to 
consolidated financial statements, as well as all of the disclosures that were previously included in PAS 31 
and PAS 28, Investments in Associates.  These disclosures relate to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint 
arrangements, associates and structured entities.  A number of new disclosures are also required.  

PFRS 13, 	 Fair Value Measurement, will become effective for annual periods beginning on or after  
January 1, 2013.  PFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under PFRS for all fair value measurements.  
PFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on 
how to measure fair value under PFRS when fair value is required or permitted.  

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, 	 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, covers accounting for 
revenue and associated expenses by entities that undertake the construction of real estate directly 
or through subcontractors.  The interpretation requires that revenue on construction of real estate be 
recognized only upon completion, except when such contract qualifies as construction contract to 
be accounted for under PAS 11, Construction Contracts, or involves rendering of services in which case 
revenue is recognized based on stage of completion.  Contracts involving provision of services with the 
construction materials and where the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to the buyer on a 
continuous basis will also be accounted for based on stage of completion.  The SEC and the FRSC have 
deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the final revenue standard is issued by International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and an evaluation of the requirements of the final revenue standard 
against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is completed.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 20, 	 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine, will become 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.  IFRIC 20 applies to waste removal 
costs that are incurred in surface mining activity during the production phase of the mine (“production 
stripping costs”) and provides guidance on the recognition of production stripping costs as an asset and 
measurement of the stripping activity asset.

Amendments to Standards and Interpretation

PAS 1, 	 Presentation of Financial Statement (Amendment) - Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive 
Income, will become effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012.  The amendments 
to PAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in other comprehensive income.  Items that could be 
reclassified (or “recycled”) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, upon derecognition or 
settlement) would be presented separately from items that will never be reclassified.  The Jollibee Group is 
in the process of assessing the impact of this amendment on its consolidated financial statements.

PAS 12, 	 Income Taxes (Amendment) - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets, will become effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2012.  It provides a practical solution to the problem 
of assessing whether recovery of an asset will be through use or sale.  It introduces a presumption that 
recovery of the carrying amount of an asset will normally be through sale.

PAS 19,	  Employee Benefits (Amendment), will become effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2013.  Amendment includes removing the corridor mechanism and the concept of expected 
returns on plan assets to simple clarifications and re-wording.  The Jollibee Group is in the process of 
assessing the impact of this amendment on its consolidated financial statements.

PAS 27, 	 Separate Financial Statements (Amendment), as revised in 2011 will become effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.  As a consequence of the new PFRS 10 and PFRS 12, what 
remains of PAS 27 is limited to accounting for subsidiaries, JCEs, and associates in separate financial 
statements.

PAS 28, 	 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011) will become effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.  As a consequence of the new PFRS 11 and PFRS 12, PAS 28 
has been renamed PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, and describes the application of 
the equity method to investments in joint ventures in addition to associates.  The Jollibee Group is in the 
process of assessing the impact of this amendment on its consolidated financial statements.

PAS 32, 	 Financial Instruments: Presentation (Amendment) - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, 
will become effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014, with retrospective 
application.  These amendments to PAS 32 clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right 
to offset” and also clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsetting criteria to settlement systems (such as 
central clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous.  

PFRS 7, 	 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendment) - Enhanced Derecognition Disclosure Requirements, 
will become effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2011.  The amendment requires 
additional disclosure about financial assets that have been transferred but not derecognized to enable the 
user of the Jollibee Group’s financial statements to understand the relationship with those assets that have 
not been derecognized and their associated liabilities.  In addition, the amendment requires disclosures 
about continuing involvement in derecognized assets to enable the user to evaluate the nature of, and 
risks associated with, the entity’s continuing involvement in those derecognized assets.

PFRS 7, 	 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendment) - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, 
are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.  The amendment 
requires an entity to disclose information about rights of set-off and related arrangements (such as 
collateral agreements).  The new disclosures are required for all recognized financial instruments that are 
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set-off in accordance with PAS 32.  These disclosures also apply to recognized financial instruments that 
are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or ‘similar agreement’, irrespective of whether 
they are set-off in accordance with PAS 32.  The amendments require entities to disclose, in a tabular 
format unless another format is more appropriate, the following minimum quantitative information.  This 
is presented separately for financial assets and financial liabilities recognized at the end of the reporting 
period: 

(a) the gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilities;
(b) the amounts that are set-off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when determining the net 

amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
(c) the net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
(d) the amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that are 

not otherwise included in (b) above, including: 
 i. amounts related to recognized financial instruments that do not meet some or all of the 

offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and 
 ii. amounts related to financial collateral (including cash collateral); and 

(e) the net amount after deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in (c) above.  

The Jollibee Group is in the process of assessing the impact of these amendments on its consolidated 
financial statements. 

Restatement of Comparative 2010 Financial Statements
On November 22, 2010, the Jollibee Group, through its Parent Company, acquired 70% of the issued and 
outstanding shares of Mang Inasal from Injap Investments, Inc. (the seller), owner and operator of Mang Inasal 
restaurant business in the Philippines, for a total acquisition cost of P2,976.2 million.  Goodwill, amounting to 
P2,814.4 million was recognized provisionally in 2010.

In 2011, the valuation of the assets of Mang Inasal Philippines Inc. (Mang Inasal) was completed resulting to the 
recognition of a trademark and a corresponding reduction in the amount of goodwill provisionally recognized 
of P2,004.3 million and P1,033.1 million, respectively. In accordance with PFRS 3, the Jollibee Group restated its 
comparative 2010 financial statements to reflect the results of the valuation of the assets as if the information 
existed as of the acquisition date.  Consequently, the balances of goodwill and other intangible assets, deferred 
tax liabilities and non-controlling interests were restated to reflect this information.

Basis of Consolidation from January 1, 2010
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its 
subsidiaries as at December 31, 2011.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Jollibee Group 
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.  The financial 
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent Company, using 
consistent accounting policies.  All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealized gains and losses resulting from 
intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of comprehensive income and net assets not held by the Jollibee 
Group and are presented separately in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income and within equity 
in the consolidated statements of financial position, separately from equity attributable to equity holders of the 
Parent Company.  Acquisition of non-controlling interests is accounted for using the entity concept method, 
whereby the difference between the cost of acquisition and the carrying value of the share of the net assets 
acquired is recognized as a direct deduction from the equity section of the consolidated statements of financial 
position as “Excess of cost over the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired”.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if these result in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, is accounted for as an equity 
transaction.  If the Jollibee Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

	 derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
	 derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;
	 derecognizes the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity;
	 recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;
	 recognizes the fair value of any investment retained;
	 recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss;
	 reclassifies the Parent Company’s share of components previously recognized in other comprehensive 

income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate.

Basis of Consolidation Prior to January 1, 2010
Some of the above-mentioned requirements were applied on a prospective basis.  The following differences, 
however, are carried forward in certain instances from the previous basis of consolidation:

Losses applicable to the non-controlling interest in a consolidated subsidiary may exceed the  	
non-controlling interest in the subsidiary’s equity.  The excess, and any further losses applicable to the 
non-controlling interest, are allocated against the controlling interest except to the extent that the 
non-controlling interest has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover 
the losses.  If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, such profits are allocated to the controlling 
interest until the non-controlling interest’s share of losses previously absorbed by the controlling 
interest has been recovered.  There were no losses prior to January 1, 2010 that requires allocation 
between non-controlling interests and equity holders of the Parent Company.
The income and expenses of a subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements until the 	
date on which the Jollibee Group ceases to control the subsidiary.  The difference between the proceeds 
from the disposal of the subsidiary and its carrying amount as of the date of disposal, including the 
cumulative amount of any exchange differences that relate to the subsidiary recognized in equity, is 
recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income as the gain or loss on the disposal 
of the subsidiary.
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The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and the following  
wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries:

Country of
Percentage 

of Ownership
Incorporation Principal Activities 2011 2010 2009

Fresh N’ Famous Foods, Inc. (Fresh N’ Famous) - Philippines Food service 100 100 100
 Chowking Food Corporation USA United States of 

America (USA) Holding company 100 100 100
Zenith Foods Corporation (Zenith) Philippines Food service 100 100 100
Freemont Foods Corporation Philippines Food service 100 100 100
RRB Holdings, Inc. (RRBHI): Philippines Holding company 100 100 100
 Red Ribbon Bakeshop, Inc. (RRBI) Philippines Food service 100 100 100
 Red Ribbon Bakeshop, Inc. USA (RRBI USA) USA Food service 100 100 100
Mang Inasal Philippines Inc. (Mang Inasal) Philippines Food service 70 70 –
Grandworth Resources Corporation (Grandworth): Philippines Leasing 100 100 100
 Adgraphix, Inc. (Adgraphix) Philippines Digital printing 100 100 60
 IConnect Multimedia Network, Inc. (IConnect) Philippines Advertising 60 60 60
Honeybee Foods Corporation (Honeybee) - USA Food service 100 100 100
 Tokyo Teriyaki Corporation (TTC) USA Food service 100 100 100
Jollibee Worldwide Pte. Ltd. (JWPL): Singapore Holding company 100 100 100
 Regional Operating Headquarters of JWPL (JWS) Philippines Accounting service 100 100 100
 Golden Plate Pte. Ltd. (GPPL) Singapore Holding company 100 100 100
 Beijing New Hongzhuangyuan Food and 
  Beverage Management Co., Ltd. 
  (Hong Zhuang Yuan)

Peoples’ Republic 
 of China (PRC) Food service 100 100 100

 Southsea Binaries Ltd. (Southsea) British Virgin 
Island (BVI) Holding company 100 100 100

 Shanghai Yong He King Food & Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Food service 100 100 100
 Beijing Yong He King Food and Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Food service 100 100 100
 Shenzhen Yong He King Food and 
  Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Food service 100 100 100
 Hangzhou Yongtong Food and Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Food service 100 100 100
 Hangzhou Yonghe Food & Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Food service 100 100 100
 Wuhan Yonghe Food and Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Food service 100 100 100
 Tianjin Yong He King Food and Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Food service 100 100 100
 Jollibee Foods Processing Pte. Ltd. (JFPPL) - Singapore Holding company 70 70 –
  Jollibee Foods Processing Co. Ltd. (Anhui) PRC Food service 100 100 –
 Kuai Le Feng Food & Beverage (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. PRC Dormant 100 100 100
 JSF Investments, Pte. Ltd. (JSF) Singapore Holding company 99 – –
 Chow Fun Holdings LLC (Chow Fun) USA Food service 81 14 13
 Beijing Shang Shi Lin Food & Beverage
  Management Company Ltd. PRC Holding company 100 – –
 Shanghai Chunlv Co. Ltd. PRC Management 

company 100 100 100
 Jollibee International (BVI) Ltd. (JIBL): BVI Holding company 100 100 100
  Jollibee Vietnam Corporation Ltd. Vietnam Food service 100 100 100
  PT Chowking Indonesia Indonesia Food service 100 100 100
  PT Jollibee Indonesia Indonesia Dormant 100 100 100
  Jollibee (Hong Kong) Limited - Hong Kong Dormant 85 85 85
   Hanover Holdings Limited (Hanover) Hong Kong Dormant 100 100 100
  Belmont Enterprises Ventures Limited (Belmont): BVI Holding company 100 100 100
	 	  Shanghai Belmont Enterprises Management 
   and Adviser Co., Ltd. (SBEMAC)

PRC Business 
management 
service 100 100 100

   Yong He Holdings Co., Ltd.: BVI Holding company 100 100 100
    Centenary Ventures Limited BVI Holding company 100 100 100
    Colossus Global Limited BVI Holding company 100 100 100
    Granite Management Limited BVI Holding company 100 100 100
    Cosmic Resources Limited BVI Holding company 100 100 100

Country of
Percentage 

of Ownership
Incorporation Principal Activities 2011 2010 2009

   All Great Resources Limited: BVI Holding company 100 100 100
    Eastpower Resources Limited - BVI Holding company 100 100 100
     Shanghai Yongjue Foods &   
     Beverage Co., Ltd PRC Holding company 100 100 100
    Eaglerock Development Limited BVI Holding company 100 100 100
Chanceux, Inc. - Philippines Holding company 100 – –
 BK Titans, Inc. - Philippines Holding company 54 – –
  PFN Holdings, Corp. - Philippines Holding company 99 – –
   Perf Restaurants, Inc. (a) Philippines Food Service 100 – –
Donut Magic Phils., Inc. (Donut Magic)(b) Philippines Dormant 100 100 100
Ice Cream Copenhagen Phils., Inc. (ICCP)(b) Philippines Dormant 100 100 100
Mary’s Foods Corporation (Mary’s)(b) Philippines Dormant 100 100 100
QSR Builders, Inc. Philippines Inactive 100 100 100
Jollibee USA USA Dormant 100 100 100

(a) Perf Restaurants, Inc. also holds shares in PERF Trinoma and PERF MOA.
(b) On June 18, 2004, the stockholders of the Jollibee Group approved the Plan of Merger of the three dormant companies.  The application 

is pending approval from the SEC as of April 12, 2012.

SuMMaRy oF SigniFicant accounting policieS3. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks.  Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial Instruments

Date of Recognition.  The Jollibee Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the consolidated 
statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of an instrument.  In the 
case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, is done 
using trade date accounting.  A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset under a 
contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time frame established generally by regulation or 
convention in the market place concerned.

Financial instruments are classified as liability or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual 
arrangement.  Interest, dividends, gains or losses relating to financial instruments or a component that is 
financial liability are reported as expense or income.  Distribution to holders of financial instruments classified 
as equity is charged directly to equity, net of any related income tax benefits.

Initial Recognition and Measurement.  Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value, which is the 
fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability).  Transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instruments are included in the initial 
measurement of all financial assets and liabilities, except for financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value 
through profit or loss (FVPL).

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Jollibee Group classifies its financial instruments in the following categories: 
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS 
financial assets and other financial liabilities.  The classification depends on the purpose for which the instruments 
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are acquired and as liabilities were incurred whether they are quoted in an active market.  Management 
determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, 
re-evaluates this classification at every reporting date.

Determination of Fair Value.  The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets at reporting date is 
based on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short 
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.  When current bid and asking prices are not available, the 
price of the most recent transaction provides evidence of the current fair value as long as there has not been a 
significant change in economic circumstances since the time of the transaction.

For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by using 
appropriate valuation techniques.  Valuation techniques include net present value techniques, comparison to 
similar instruments for which observable market prices exist, option pricing models and other relevant valuation 
models.

Determination of Amortized Cost.  The amortized cost of financial instruments is computed using the effective 
interest method less any allowance for impairment.  The calculation takes into account any premium or discount 
on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are integral part of the effective interest.

“Day 1” Difference.  Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other 
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose 
variables include only data from observable market, the Jollibee Group recognizes the difference between the 
transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1” difference) in profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition as some 
other type of asset or liability.  In cases where unobservable data is used, the difference between the transaction 
price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the 
instrument is derecognized.  For each transaction, the Jollibee Group determines the appropriate method of 
recognizing the “Day 1” difference amount.

Financial Assets

Financial Assets at FVPL.  Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held-for-trading and financial assets 
designated as at FVPL upon initial recognition.  

Financial assets are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.  
Gains or losses on investments held-for-trading are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets may be designated as at FVPL at initial recognition if the following criteria are met:

the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise 	
from measuring the assets or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis; 

the assets are part of a group of financial assets which are managed and their performance evaluated on 	
a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management strategy; or 

the financial asset contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative does not significantly 	
modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analysis, that it would not be separately recorded.

The Jollibee Group has no financial assets at FVPL as of December 31, 2011 and 2010. 

Loans and Receivables.  Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market.  They are not entered into with the intention of immediate 
or short-term resale and are not designated as AFS financial assets or financial assets at FVPL.  After initial 
measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method, less any impairment in value.  Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the loans and 
receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

Loans and receivables are classified as current assets when the Jollibee Group expects to realize or collect the 
asset within 12 months from the reporting date.  Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

The Jollibee Group’s cash and cash equivalents, receivables, long-term loan receivable and security and other 
deposits are classified under this category.

HTM Investments.  Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are 
classified as HTM when there is a positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.  Financial assets intended to 
be held for an undefined period are not included in this category.  HTM investments are subsequently measured 
at amortized cost.  This cost is computed as the amount initially recognized minus principal repayments, plus or 
minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between the initially 
recognized amount and the maturity amount less allowance for impairment.  Gains and losses are recognized 
in profit or loss when the financial assets are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization 
process.  Assets under this category are classified as current assets if maturity is within 12 months from reporting 
date and as noncurrent assets if maturity date is more than a year from reporting date.

The Jollibee Group has no HTM investments as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.

AFS Financial Assets.  AFS financial assets are nonderivative financial assets that are designated in this category or 
are not classified in any of the other categories.  AFS financial assets include equity and debt securities.  Equity 
investments classified as AFS are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and are 
neither classified as held-for-trading nor designated as at FVPL.  Debt securities are those which are intended to 
be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to needs of liquidity or in response 
to changes in market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealized gains 
or losses recognized as “Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale financial assets - net” account in other 
comprehensive income until the financial asset is derecognized or determined to be impaired at which time 
the accumulated gains or losses previously reported in other comprehensive income are included in profit or 
loss.  If the fair value cannot be measured reliably, AFS financial assets are measured at cost, being the fair value 
of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment, less any impairment in value.  All transaction 
costs directly attributable to the acquisition are also included in the cost of investment. 

Assets under this category are classified as current assets if expected to be realized within 12 months from 
reporting date and as noncurrent assets.  Otherwise, these are classified as non-current assets.

The Jollibee Group’s investments in club shares and shares of public utility companies are classified under this 
category as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.



2011 Annual Report 43

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities at FVPL.  Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities that are held-for-trading and 
financial liabilities designated as at FVPL upon initial recognition.

Financial liabilities are classified as held-for-trading if acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.  
Gains or losses on liabilities held-for-trading are recognized in profit or loss.

The Jollibee Group has no financial liability classified under this category as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Other Financial Liabilities.  This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held-for- trading or not 
designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability where the substance of the contractual arrangements 
results in the Jollibee Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, 
or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with the holder under conditions that are potentially 
unfavorable to the Jollibee Group.  These include liabilities arising from operations or borrowings.

Other financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently carried at amortized cost, 
taking into account the impact of applying the effective interest method of amortization (or accretion) for any 
related premium, discount and any directly attributable transaction costs.  Gains and losses are recognized in 
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized, as well as through the amortization process.

This category includes short-term debt, long-term debt (including current portion), liability for acquisition of 
businesses (including current portion) and trade payables and other current liabilities (excluding local and other 
taxes and unearned revenue from gift certificates).

The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are accounted for 
separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after deducting from the instrument 
as a whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the liability component on the date of issue.

Debt Issue Costs
Debt issue costs are deducted against long-term debt and are amortized over the terms of the related borrowings 
using the effective interest method.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Jollibee Group assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is 
impaired.  A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if there is objective evidence 
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an 
incurred loss event) and that the loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial 
asset or a group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.  Objective evidence of impairment may include 
indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or 
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial 
reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future 
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Loans and Receivables.  The Jollibee Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists 
individually for financial assets that are individually significant or collectively for financial assets that are not 
individually significant.  If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually 
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar 
credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment.  Factors 
considered in individual assessment are payment history, past-due status and term, development affecting 

companies and specific issues with respect to the accounts.  The collective assessment would require the 
Jollibee Group to group its receivables based on the credit risk characteristics (customer type, payment history, 
past-due status and term) of the customers.  Changes in circumstances may cause future assessment of credit 
risk to be materially different from current assessments, which could require an increase or decrease in the 
allowance account.  The Jollibee Group also considers factors, such as, the type of assets, the financial condition 
or near term prospect of the related company or account, and the intent and ability to hold on the assets long 
enough to allow any anticipated recovery.  Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an 
impairment loss is, or continues to be recognized, are not included in the collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables has been incurred, the amount 
of loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s 
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).  If a loan has a 
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.  
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of loss is 
recognized in profit or loss under  “General and administrative expenses”  account.  Interest income continues 
to be recognized based on the original effective interest rate of the asset.  Loans and receivables, together with 
the associated allowance, are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.  

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because an event occurring 
after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed.  Any subsequent 
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, to the extent that carrying value of asset does not 
exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. 

Quoted AFS Equity Investments.  In the case of equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, an objective 
evidence of impairment would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments 
below its cost.  ‘Significant’ is to be evaluated against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against 
the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost.  When there is evidence of impairment, the 
cumulative loss which is measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, 
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in other comprehensive income under 
“Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale financial assets”, is removed from equity and recognized in the profit 
or loss.  Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss; increases in fair value 
after impairment are recognized directly as other comprehensive income.

Unquoted AFS Equity Investments.  If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred in an 
unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, 
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, 
the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Assets.  A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is derecognized when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;(a) 

the Jollibee Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to (b) 
pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or
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the Jollibee Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (i) has transferred (c) 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (ii) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Jollibee Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has entered into a 
“pass-through” arrangement, and neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Jollibee Group’s continuing 
involvement in the asset.  In that case, the Jollibee Group also recognizes an associated liability.  The transferred 
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Jollibee 
Group has retained.  

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower 
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of the consideration that the Jollibee 
Group could be required to pay.

Financial Liabilities.  A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, 
cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a 
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statements 
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.  

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.  Costs are accounted for as follows:

Processed inventories - First-in, first-out basis.  Cost includes direct materials, labor 
and a proportion of manufacturing overhead costs based on 
normal operating capacity.

Food supplies, packaging, store and 
other supplies, and novelty items 

- Purchase cost on a first-in, first-out basis.

Net realizable value of processed inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.  

Net realizable value of food supplies, packaging, store and other supplies is the current replacement cost.

Net realizable value of novelty items is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.  

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, except land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization 
and any accumulated impairment in value.  Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of property, plant  
and equipment at the time that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of 
day-to-day servicing.  Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment consists of its purchase price, including import duties and 
taxes and any other costs directly attributable in bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its 
intended use.  Expenditures incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, 
such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to income in the year in which the costs are incurred.  
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the 
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment 
beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional costs of 
property, plant and equipment. 

Depreciation and amortization are calculated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives 
of the assets:

Land improvements  5 years
Plant, buildings, condominium units and 

improvements  5–40 years
Leasehold rights and improvements  2–10 years or term of the lease, 

whichever is shorter
Office, store and food processing equipment  2–15 years
Furniture and fixtures  3–5 years
Transportation equipment  3–5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use or disposal.  Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the 
difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in 
the period the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, if any, useful lives and depreciation and amortization method of the assets are reviewed 
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each financial period. 

When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the property, plant 
and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.  Fully depreciated assets are retained 
in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further depreciation is credited or charged to profit or 
loss.

Construction in progress represents structures under construction and is stated at cost less any impairment in 
value.  This includes the cost of construction and other direct costs.  Cost also includes interest on borrowed 
funds incurred during the construction period.  Construction in progress is not depreciated until such time that 
the relevant assets are completed and put into operational use.

Investment Properties
Investment properties consist of land and land improvements, and buildings and building improvements 
held by the Jollibee Group for capital appreciation and rental purposes.  Investment properties, except land, 
are carried at cost, including transaction costs, less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any 
impairment in value.  Cost also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the 
time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an 
investment property.  Land is carried at cost less any impairment in value.
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The depreciation of land improvements and buildings and building improvements are calculated on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets which are five (5) to twenty (20) years.

The residual values, if any, useful lives and method of depreciation and amortization of the assets are reviewed 
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each financial year-end.

Investment property is derecognized when either it has been disposed of or when the investment property 
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.  Any gains 
or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in profit or loss in the year of 
retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to investment property only when there is a change in use, evidenced by ending of 
owner-occupation, or commencement of an operating lease to another party.  Transfers are made from 
investment property only when there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation 
or commencement of development with a view to sell.

Business Combinations

Business Combinations from January 1, 2010.  Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition 
method.  Applying the acquisition method requires the (a) determination whether the Jollibee Group will 
be identified as the acquirer, (b) determination of the acquisition-date, (c) recognition and measurement 
of the identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and  
(d) recognition and measurement of goodwill or a gain from a bargain purchase.

The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the (a) consideration transferred by the Jollibee 
Group, measured at acquisition-date fair value, (b) amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree 
and (c) acquisition-date fair value of the Jollibee Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree in a 
business combination achieved in stages.  Acquisition costs incurred are expensed and included in “General 
and administrative expenses” account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Initial Measurement of Non-controlling Interest.   For each business combination, the Jollibee Group measures the 
non-controlling interest in the acquiree using the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Business Combination Achieved in Stages.  In a business combination achieved in stages, the Jollibee Group 
remeasures its previously held equity interests in the acquiree at its acquisition-date fair value and recognizes 
the resulting gain or loss, if any, in profit or loss.

Contingent Consideration.  Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Jollibee Group will be 
recognized at fair value at the acquisition-date.  Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent 
consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability, will be recognized either in profit or loss or as a 
change to other comprehensive income.  If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it should not be 
remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.

Business Combinations prior to January 1, 2010.  Business combinations were accounted for using the purchase 
method.  For purchase method of accounting, the cost of acquisition is the aggregate of the fair values, at 
the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by 
the acquirer, in exchange for control over the net assets of the acquired entity.  Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition formed part of the acquisition costs.  The non-controlling interest was measured 
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.  The identifiable assets, liabilities and 

contingent liabilities that satisfy certain recognition criteria have to be measured initially at their fair values at  
acquisition-date, irrespective of the extent of any non-controlling interest.  

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for as separate steps.  Any additional acquired share 
of interest does not affect previously recognized goodwill.  

Contingent consideration was recognized if, and only if, the Jollibee Group had a present obligation, the 
economic outflow was more likely than not and a reliable estimate was determinable.  Subsequent adjustments 
to the contingent consideration were recognized as part of goodwill.

Goodwill

Initial Measurement of Goodwill or Gain on a Bargain Purchase.   Goodwill is initially measured by the Jollibee Group 
at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognized for  
non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.  If this consideration is 
lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in profit or loss 
as gain on a bargain purchase.   Before recognizing a gain on a bargain purchase, the Jollibee Group determines 
whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and recognize any 
additional assets or liabilities that are identified in that review. 

Subsequent Measurement of Goodwill.  Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any 
accumulated impairment losses. 

Impairment Testing of Goodwill.  For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business 
combination is, from the acquisition-date, allocated to each of the Jollibee Group’s cash-generating units (CGU), 
or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether 
other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units or groups of units.  Each unit or group of units 
to which the goodwill is allocated: 

represents the lowest level within the Jollibee Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal 	
management purposes; and 

is not larger than an operating segment as defined in PFRS 8, 	 Operating Segments, before aggregation.

Frequency of Impairment Testing.  Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the Jollibee 
Group tests goodwill acquired in a business combination for impairment annually.

Allocation of Impairment Loss.  An impairment loss is recognized for a CGU if the recoverable amount of the unit 
or group of units is less than the carrying amount of the unit or group of units.  The impairment loss is allocated 
to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the unit or group of units first to reduce the carrying amount of 
goodwill allocated to the CGU or group of units and then to the other assets of the unit or group of units pro rata 
on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or group of units.

Measurement Period.  If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting 
period in which the combination occurs, the Jollibee Group reports in its consolidated financial statements 
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.  The measurement period ends as 
soon as the Jollibee Group receives the information it was seeking about facts and circumstances that existed 
as of the acquisition-date or learns that more information is not obtainable.  The measurement period does not 
exceed one year from the acquisition-date.
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Goodwill Included in a Disposal Group Classified as Held for Sale.  Where goodwill forms part of a CGU and part of 
the operation within the unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in 
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.  Goodwill 
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the 
portion of the CGU retained.

When subsidiaries are sold, the difference between the selling price and the net assets plus cumulative translation 
adjustments and goodwill is recognized in profit or loss.

Intangible Assets
The cost of trademarks and brand names acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of 
acquisition.  The Jollibee Group assessed the useful life of the trademarks and brand names to be indefinite 
because based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors; there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which 
the asset is expected to generate cash inflows for the Jollibee Group.

Trademarks and brand names with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are tested for impairment 
annually either individually or at the cash generating unit level.  The useful life of an intangible asset is assessed 
as indefinite if it is expected to contribute net cash inflows indefinitely and is reviewed annually to determine 
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable.  If not, the change in the useful life 
assessment from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the consolidated statements of 
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized.

Common Control Business Combinations
A business combination involving entities or businesses under common control is a business combination in 
which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both 
before and after the business combination, and that control is not transitory.  The Jollibee Group accounts for a 
business combination between entities under common control by applying the pooling of interests method.  
Under this method, the assets, liabilities and equity of the acquired companies for the reporting period in which 
the common control business combinations occur, and for any comparative periods presented, are included in 
the consolidated financial statements at their carrying amounts as if the combinations had occurred from the 
date when the acquired companies first became under the control of the Jollibee Group.

Interest in and Advances to a Joint Venture.  
This account consists of interest in and advances to a joint venture. 

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties (venturers) undertake an economic 
activity that is subject to joint control.  Joint control exists only when the strategic financial and operating 
decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of the venturers.  A jointly controlled entity is a 
joint venture that involves the establishment of a company, partnership or other entity to engage in economic 
activity that the Jollibee Group jointly controls with its fellow venturer.  

The Jollibee Group has interest in a joint venture which is a jointly controlled entity.  The Jollibee Group’s interest 
in a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method based on the percentage share of capitalization in 
accordance with the joint venture agreements.  Under the equity method, the interest in joint venture is carried 
in the consolidated statements of financial position at cost plus the Jollibee Group’s share in post-acquisition 

changes in the net assets of the joint venture, less any impairment in value.  The consolidated statements of 
comprehensive income include the Jollibee Group’s share in the results of operations of the joint venture.  

When the Jollibee Group’s share of losses in the joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture, 
including any other unsecured receivables, the Jollibee Group does not recognize further losses, unless it 
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.  Where there has been a change 
recognized directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Jollibee Group recognizes its share in any changes and 
discloses this, when applicable, in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

The reporting dates of the joint venture and the Parent Company are identical and the joint venture’s accounting 
policies conform to those used by the Parent Company for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.  
Unrealized gains arising from transactions with the joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Jollibee 
Group’s interests in the joint ventures against the related investments.  Unrealized losses are eliminated similarly 
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment in the asset transferred.

The Jollibee Group ceases to use the equity method of accounting on the date from which it no longer has joint 
control, or significant influence in the joint venture or when the interest becomes held for sale.

Upon loss of joint control, the Jollibee Group measures and recognizes its remaining investment at its fair value.  
Any difference between the carrying amount of the former joint controlled entity upon loss of joint control and 
the fair value of the remaining investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.  When the 
remaining investment constitutes significant influence, it is accounted for as investment in an associate.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
The carrying values of interests in a joint venture, property, plant and equipment, investment properties, 
goodwill and other intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.  If any such indication exists, and if the carrying value 
exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or CGU are written down to their recoverable amounts.  
The recoverable amount of the asset is the greater of fair value less costs to sell or value in use.  The fair value 
less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s-length transaction between 
knowledgeable, willing parties, less costs of disposal.  In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows 
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.  For an asset that does not generate largely 
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.  
Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of 
the impaired asset.

For nonfinancial assets, excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there 
is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.  If 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.  A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed 
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last 
impairment loss was recognized.  If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable 
amount.  That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. 

Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss.  After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future 
periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value on a systematic basis over its 
remaining useful life.
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Equity

Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital.  Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued.  Incremental 
costs incurred directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from 
proceeds, net of tax.  Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received in excess of par value, if any, are 
recognized as additional paid-in capital.

Retained Earnings and Dividend on Capital Stock of the Parent Company.  The amount included in retained earnings 
includes profit attributable to the Parent Company’s equity holders and reduced by dividends on capital stock.  
Dividends on capital stock are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by 
the shareholders of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries.  Dividends for the year that are approved after the 
financial reporting date are dealt with as an event after the reporting period.

Treasury Shares.  Acquisitions of treasury shares are recorded at cost.  The total cost of treasury shares is shown 
in the consolidated statements of financial position as a deduction from the total equity.  Upon re-issuance 
or resale of the treasury shares, cost of common stock held in treasury account is credited for the cost of the 
treasury shares determined using the simple average method.  Gain on sale is credited to additional paid-in 
capital.  Losses are charged against additional paid-in capital but only to the extent of previous gain from original 
issuance, sale or retirement for the same class of stock.  Otherwise, losses are charged to retained earnings.

Revenue
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the 
transaction will flow to the Jollibee Group and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured.  Revenue is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates, sales taxes and duties.  
The Jollibee Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is 
acting as principal or agent.  The Jollibee Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue 
arrangements. 

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of Goods.  Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of 
the goods have passed to the customers, which is normally upon delivery.  Sales returns and sales discounts are 
deducted from sales to arrive at net sales shown in profit or loss. 

Royalty Fees.  Revenue from royalty fees is recognized as the royalty accrues based on certain percentages of the 
franchisees’ net sales.

Franchise Fees.  Revenue from franchise fees is recognized when all services or conditions relating to a transaction 
have been substantially performed.  

Service Fees.  Revenue is recognized in the period in which the service has been rendered.

Dividend Income.  Dividend income is recognized when the Jollibee Group’s right as a shareholder to receive the 
payment is established.  

Rent Income.  Rent income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.  
For income tax reporting, rent income is continued to be recognized on the basis of the terms of the lease 
agreements.

Interest Income.  Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the effective yield on 
the asset.

Cost and Expenses
Cost and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outflows 
or decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than those relating 
to distributions to equity participants.  Cost and expenses included under “Cost of sales” and “General and 
administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income are recognized as incurred.

Pension Benefits
The Jollibee Group has a number of funded, non-contributory pension plans, administered by trustees, 
covering the permanent employees of the Parent Company and its Philippine-based subsidiaries.  The cost 
of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit actuarial 
valuation method.  Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or expense when the net cumulative 
unrecognized actuarial gains and losses for the plans at the end of the previous reporting year exceeds 10% 
of the higher of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at that date.  These gains or 
losses are recognized over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in 
the plans.

Past service cost, if any, is recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the average period until the 
benefits become vested.  If the benefits are already vested immediately following the introduction of, or 
changes to, a pension plan, past service cost is recognized immediately.

Pension liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and actuarial gains and 
losses not recognized, and reduced by past service cost not yet recognized and the fair value of plan assets out 
of which the obligations are to be settled directly.  If such aggregate is negative, the asset is measured at the 
lower of such aggregate or the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past service cost 
and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions 
in the future contributions to the plans. 

If the asset is measured at the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past service cost 
and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions 
in the future contributions to the plan, net actuarial losses of the current period and past service cost of the 
current period are recognized immediately to the extent that they exceed any reduction in the present value 
of those economic benefits.  If there is no change or an increase in the present value of the economic benefits, 
the entire net actuarial loss of the current period and past service cost of the current period are recognized 
immediately.  Similarly, net actuarial gain of the current period after the deduction of past service cost of 
the current period exceeding any increase in the present value of the economic benefits stated above are 
recognized immediately if the asset is measured at the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net actuarial 
losses and past service cost and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds 
from the plans or reductions in the future contributions to the plans.  If there is no change or a decrease in the 
present value of the economic benefits, the entire net actuarial gain of the current period after the deduction 
of past service cost of the current period are recognized immediately.

The Jollibee Group also participates in various government defined contribution schemes for the PRC-based 
and USA-based subsidiaries.  Under these schemes, pension benefits of existing and retired employees are 
guaranteed by the local pension benefit plan, and each subsidiary has no further obligations beyond the 
annual contribution.
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Share-based Payments
The Jollibee Group has stock option plans granting its management and employees an option to purchase a 
fixed number of shares of stock at a stated price during a specified period (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of the options granted to the Jollibee Group’s management and employees that becomes vested is 
recognized in profit or loss over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, 
ending on the date on which the relevant management and employees become fully entitled to the award 
(“vesting date”).

The fair value is determined using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model.   The cumulative expense recognized 
for the share-based transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the 
vesting period has expired and the Jollibee Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that 
will ultimately vest.   The charge or credit in profit or loss or the investment account for a period represents the 
movement in cumulative expense recognized as of the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional 
upon a market condition, which are treated as vested irrespective of whether or not the market condition is 
satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of a share-based award are modified, as a minimum, an expense is recognized as if the terms 
had not been modified.  In addition, an expense is recognized for any modification, which increases the total 
fair value of the share-based payment agreement, or is otherwise beneficial to the management and employee 
as measured at the date of modification.  

Where a share-based award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any 
expense not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately.  However, if a new award is substituted for 
the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and 
new awards are treated as if there were a modification of the original award.

Research and Development Costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred.  Development cost incurred on an individual project is capitalized 
when its future recoverability can reasonably be regarded as assured.  Any expenditure capitalized is amortized 
in line with the expected future sales from the related project. 

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the agreement 
at inception date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or 
assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Jollibee Group as Lessee.  Leases which do not transfer to the Jollibee Group substantially all the risks and benefits 
of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases.  Operating lease payments are recognized as expense 
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, 
are expensed as incurred. 

Jollibee Group as Lessor.  Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits of 
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases.  Rent income from operating leases is recognized as 
income in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating 
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term 
on the same bases as rent income.  Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are 
earned. 

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Jollibee Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  If the effect of the 
time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a 
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks 
specific to the liability.  Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognized as interest expense.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Parent Company’s functional 
and presentation currency.   Each entity in the Jollibee Group determines its own functional currency and items 
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.  Transactions 
in foreign currencies are recorded in Philippine peso using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.  
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated using the closing rate of exchange 
at reporting date.  All differences are recognized in profit or loss.  Non-monetary items that are measured in 
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial 
transactions. 

The functional currencies of the Jollibee Group’s foreign operations are US dollar (USD), PRC renminbi (RMB), 
Indonesia rupiah, Vietnam dong and Hong Kong dollar.  As of the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of 
foreign subsidiaries are translated into the presentation currency of the Parent Company at the rate of exchange 
ruling at the reporting date while the income and expense accounts are translated at the weighted average 
exchange rates for the year.  The resulting translation differences are included in the consolidated statements 
of changes in equity under the account “Cumulative translation adjustments of foreign subsidiaries” and in 
other comprehensive income.  On disposal of a foreign subsidiary, the accumulated exchange differences are 
recognized in profit or loss as a component of the gain or loss on disposal.

Taxes

Current Tax.  Current tax liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be 
paid to the tax authority.  The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted at reporting date.

Deferred Tax.  Deferred tax is provided using balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences at 
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of unused 
tax credits from excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and 
net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of excess of MCIT over RCIT and NOLCO 
can be utilized except:

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial 	
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of 
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interest in 	
a joint venture, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary 
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differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the 
temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets 
to be utilized.  Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized 
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be 
recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in 	
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transactions, affects neither the 
accounting profit nor taxable profit; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interest in a 	
joint venture, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is 
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the 
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially 
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

Value Added Tax.   Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of tax, except:

where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, 	
in which case the tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense 
item as applicable; and

receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included. 	

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of “Other current 
assets” or “Trade payables and other current liabilities” accounts in the consolidated statements of financial 
position.

Earnings per Share (EPS) Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net income for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Parent 
Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year, after considering 
the retroactive effect of stock dividend declaration, if any.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net income for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Parent 
Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for any 
potential common shares resulting from the assumed exercise of outstanding stock options.  Outstanding stock 
options will have dilutive effect under the treasury stock method only when the average market price of the 
underlying common share during the period exceeds the exercise price of the option.

Where the EPS effect of the shares to be issued to management and employees under the stock option plan 
would be anti-dilutive, the basic and diluted EPS would be stated at the same amount.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed unless the 
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.  Contingent assets are not 
recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is 
probable.

Business Segments
The Jollibee Group is organized and managed separately according to the nature of business.  The three major 
operating businesses of the Jollibee Group are food service, franchising and leasing.  These operating businesses 
are the basis upon which the Jollibee Group reports its primary segment information presented in Note 5.

Events after the Reporting Period
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Jollibee Group’s financial position at 
reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the Jollibee Group’s consolidated financial statements.  Post 
year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements 
when material.

SigniFicant accounting JudgMentS, eStiMateS and aSSuMptionS4. 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts on the consolidated financial statements and related notes 
at the end of the reporting period.

Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience 
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Jollibee Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following 
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Functional Currency.  Management has determined that the functional and presentation currency of the Parent 
Company and its Philippine-based subsidiaries is the Philippine peso, being the currency of the primary 
environment in which the Parent Company and its major subsidiaries operate.  The functional currencies 
of its foreign operations are determined as the currency in the country where the subsidiary operates.  For 
consolidation purposes, the foreign subsidiaries’ balances are translated to Philippine peso which is the Parent 
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Operating Lease Commitments - Jollibee Group as Lessee.  The Jollibee Group has entered into commercial property 
leases for its QSR and offices as a lessee.  Management has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and 
condition of the arrangements that all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of these properties, which 
the Jollibee Group leases under operating lease arrangements, remain with the lessors.  Accordingly, the leases 
are accounted for as operating leases.
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Rent expense amounted to P5,131.8 million, P4,092.8 million and P3,542.0 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, 
respectively (see Notes 21, 22 and 29).

Operating Lease Commitments - Jollibee Group as Lessor.  The Jollibee Group has entered into commercial property 
leases on its investment property portfolio and various sublease agreements.  Management has determined, 
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that the Jollibee Group retains all the 
significant risks and benefits of ownership of the properties which are leased out.  Accordingly, the leases are 
accounted for as operating leases.

Rent income amounted to P88.4 million, P88.6 million and P78.7 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively 
(see Notes 13, 20 and 29).

Impairment of AFS Financial Assets - Significant or Prolonged Decline in Fair Value and Calculation of Impairment 
Loss.  The Jollibee Group determines that an AFS financial asset is impaired when there has been a significant 
or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost.  The Jollibee Group determines that a decline in fair value 
of greater than 20% of cost is considered to be a significant decline and a decline for a period of more than 
12 months is considered to be a prolonged decline.  This determination of what is significant or prolonged 
requires judgment.  In making this judgment, the Jollibee Group evaluates, among other factors, the normal 
volatility in price.  In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the 
financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance. 

To compute for the impairment of AFS equity instruments, the Jollibee Group expands its analysis to consider 
changes in the investee’s industry and sector performance, legal and regulatory framework, changes in 
technology, and other factors that affect the recoverability of the Jollibee Group’s investments. 

For unquoted equity shares, the Jollibee Group estimates the expected future cash flows from the investment 
and calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the present value of expected future cash 
flows from the investment and its acquisition cost and recognizes the amount in the consolidated statements 
of comprehensive income.

There were no provisions for impairment loss on AFS financial assets in 2011, 2010 and 2009.  The carrying 
amount of AFS financial assets amounted to P120.6 million and P176.3 million as of December 31, 2011 and 
2010, respectively (see Note 10).

Estimates and Assumptions
The key estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at 
reporting date that has a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Impairment Loss on Receivables.  The Jollibee Group maintains an allowance for impairment losses at a level 
considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables.  The level of allowance is evaluated on 
the basis of factors that affect the collectability of the accounts.  These factors include, but are not limited to, the 
length of the Jollibee Group’s relationship with the customers and counterparties, average age of accounts and 
collection experience.  The Jollibee Group performs a regular review of the age and status of these accounts, 
designed to identify accounts with objective evidence of impairment and provide the appropriate allowance 
for impairment losses.  The review is done quarterly and annually using a combination of specific and collective 
assessments.  The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the Jollibee Group 
made different judgments or utilized different methodologies.  An increase in allowance account would increase 
general and administrative expenses and decrease current and noncurrent assets.

Provision for impairment loss on receivables in 2011, 2010 and 2009 amounted to P35.4 million, P50.3 million 
and P50.5 million, respectively, resulting from specific and collective assessments.  The carrying amount of 
receivables amounted to P2,388.6 million and P2,098.9 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively 
(see Note 7).

Net Realizable Value of Inventories.  The Jollibee Group writes down inventories to net realizable value, through 
the use of an allowance account, whenever the net realizable value of inventories becomes lower than the cost 
due to damage, physical deterioration, obsolescence, changes in price levels or other causes.  

The estimates of net realizable value are based on the most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates 
are made of the amounts the inventories are expected to be realized.  These estimates take into consideration 
fluctuations of prices or costs directly relating to events occurring after reporting date to the extent that such 
events confirm conditions existing at reporting date.  The allowance account is reviewed on a regular basis to 
reflect the accurate valuation in the financial records. 

The Jollibee Group assessed that the net realizable value for some inventories is lower than cost, hence, it 
recognized provision for inventory obsolescence amounting to P19.5 million, P5.9 million and P181.3 million 
in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.  The Jollibee Group wrote-off allowance for inventory obsolescence 
amounting to P70.0 million, nil, and P42.8 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.  The carrying amount of 
inventories amounted to P2,860.1 million and P2,134.5 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively 
(see Note 8).

Estimation of Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties.  The Jollibee Group 
estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and investment properties based on the period 
over which the property, plant and equipment and investment properties are expected to be available for use 
and on the collective assessment of the industry practice, internal technical evaluation and experience with 
similar assets.  The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and investment properties are 
reviewed periodically and updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, 
technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits in the use of property, plant and equipment and 
investment properties.  However, it is possible that future financial performance could be materially affected by 
changes in the estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above.  The amount and timing 
of recording the depreciation and amortization for any period would be affected by changes in these factors 
and circumstances.  A reduction in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and investment 
properties would increase the recorded depreciation and amortization and decrease noncurrent assets.

There was no change in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and investment properties 
in 2011 and 2010.  

Impairment of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.  The Jollibee Group determines whether goodwill and other 
intangible assets with indefinite useful life is impaired at least on an annual basis or more frequently if events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.  This requires an estimation of the value 
in use of the CGU to which the goodwill is allocated.  Estimating the value in use requires the Jollibee Group to make 
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the CGU and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to 
calculate the present value of those cash flows.  

Management has determined that goodwill and other intangible assets are not impaired.  The carrying 
amount of goodwill and other intangible assets amounted to P8,584.1 million and P7,990.6 million as of 
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 14).
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Estimating the Fair Values of Acquiree’s Identifiable Assets and Liabilities.  Where the fair values of the acquiree’s 
identifiable assets and liabilities cannot be derived from active markets, the Jollibee Group determined the fair 
values using internal valuation techniques and generally accepted valuation approaches.  The inputs to these 
valuation approaches are taken from historical experience and observable markets where possible, but where 
this is not feasible, estimates are used in establishing fair values.  The estimates may include discount rates and 
assumptions used in cash flow projections. 

The fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired from BK Group, Chowking US Operations and Chow Fun 
amounted to P111.5 million, P260.0 million and P17.2 million, respectively (see Note 11).

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties.  The Jollibee Group performs impairment 
review of property, plant and equipment and investment properties when certain impairment indicators are 
present.  Determining the fair value of assets, which requires the determination of future cash flows expected 
to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets, requires the Jollibee Group 
to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the consolidated financial statements.  Future 
events could cause the Jollibee Group to conclude that the assets are impaired.  Any resulting impairment loss 
could have a material adverse impact on the Jollibee Group’s financial position and performance.

There were no provisions for impairment loss on property, plant and equipment in 2011 and 2010.  Provision 
for impairment loss amounted to P86.4 million in 2009. The aggregate carrying values of property,  
plant and equipment and investment properties amounted to P11,329.9 million and P9,548.2 million as of 
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Notes 12 and 13). 

Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets.  The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting date is reviewed 
and reduced to the extent that there are no longer sufficient taxable profits available to allow all or part of the 
deferred tax assets to be utilized.  The Jollibee Group’s assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets on 
deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of excess of MCIT over RCIT and NOLCO is based 
on the forecasted taxable income.  This forecast is based on past results and future expectations on revenue 
and expenses.  

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets amounted to P967.6 million and P920.1 million as of  
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 24).  

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation.  The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number 
of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions.  These assumptions 
include, among others, discount rate, expected rate of return on plan assets and rate of salary increase.  Actual 
results that differ from the Jollibee Group’s assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods 
and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future periods.

The assumption on the expected return on plan assets is determined on a uniform basis, taking into 
consideration the long-term historical returns, asset allocation and future estimates of long-term investment 
returns.

The Jollibee Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year.  It is the interest rate that 
should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to 
settle the pension obligations.  In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Jollibee Group considers the 
interest rates on government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, 
and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditions.

While Jollibee Group’s assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in actual experience 
or significant changes in assumptions may materially affect pension and other pension obligations.

The carrying amount of pension liability amounted to P278.7 million and P212.1 million as of December 31, 2011 
and 2010, respectively.  Unrecognized net actuarial gains amounted to P293.8 million and P48.4 million as of 
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 25).

Share-based Payments.  The Parent Company measures the cost of its equity-settled transactions with 
management and employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.  
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determining the most appropriate valuation 
model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant.  The estimate also requires determining 
the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility 
and dividend yield and making assumptions about these inputs.  The fair value of the share option is being 
determined using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model.  The expected life of the stock options is based on the 
expected exercise behavior of the stock option holders and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns 
that may occur.  The volatility is based on the average historical price volatility which may be different from the 
expected volatility of the shares of the Parent Company.  

Total expense arising from share-based payment recognized by the Jollibee Group amounted to P73.6 million, 
P65.7 million and P147.5 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively (see Notes 22 and 26).

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities.  The Jollibee Group carries certain financial assets and liabilities at fair 
value, which requires extensive use of accounting estimates and judgments.  The significant components of fair 
value measurement were determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e., foreign exchange rates, interest 
rates, volatility rates).  The amount of changes in fair value would differ if different valuation methodologies and 
assumptions are utilized.  Any changes in the fair value of these financial assets and liabilities would directly 
affect profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are discussed in Note 31.

Provisions.  The Jollibee Group recognizes a provision for an obligation resulting from a past event when it 
has assessed that it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  These assessments are made based on available 
evidence, including the opinion of experts.  Future events and developments may result in changes in these 
assessments which may impact the financial condition and results of operations.

There were no additional provisions recorded in 2011 and 2010. Reversals, net of provisions, recognized in 2009 
amounted to P15.8 million.

Total outstanding provisions for legal claims and restructuring costs amounted to P30.5 million as of  
December 31, 2011 and 2010 (see Note 17).

Contingencies.  The Jollibee Group is currently involved in litigations, claims and disputes which are normal 
to its business.  The estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of these claims has been developed in 
consultation with the Jollibee Group’s legal counsels and based upon an analysis of potential results.  Except for 
those legal claims provided under Note 17, management believes that the ultimate liability, if any, with respect 
to the other litigations, claims and disputes will not materially affect the financial position and performance of 
the Jollibee Group.
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SegMent inFoRMation5. 

Business Segments
The Jollibee Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of the 
products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different 
products and serves different markets. 

The food service segment is involved in the operations of QSR and the manufacture of food products to 	
be sold to Jollibee Group-owned and franchised QSR outlets.

The franchising segment is involved in the franchising of the Jollibee Group’s QSR store concepts.	

The leasing segment leases store sites mainly to the Jollibee Group’s independent franchisees. 	

The following tables present certain information on revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and other segment 
information of the different business segments as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and for each of the three years 
in the period ended December 31, 2011:

2011
Food Service Franchising Leasing Eliminations Consolidated

(In Thousands)
Revenue from external 

customers P59,513,806 P2,893,497 P147,624 P– P62,554,927
Inter-segment revenue 8,331,488 448,801 1,000,582 (9,780,871) –
Segment revenue 67,845,294 3,342,298 1,148,206 (9,780,871) 62,554,927
Segment expenses (66,763,505) (448,801) (1,221,356) 9,780,871 (58,652,791)
Other segment income 557,955 – 9,159 – 567,114
Segment result P1,639,744 P2,893,497 (P63,991) P– P4,469,250

Interest income 179,763
Interest expense (291,343)
Income before income tax 4,357,670
Provision for income tax 1,103,867
Net income P3,253,803

Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets P37,559,530 P– P381,083 P– P37,940,613
Deferred tax assets 947,884 – 19,730 – 967,614
Consolidated assets P38,507,414 P– P400,813 P– P38,908,227

Segment liabilities P12,892,081 P– P143,048 P– P13,035,129
Deferred tax liabilities 771,538 – 4,345 – 775,883
Long-term debt - including 

current portion 4,720,044 – – – 4,720,044
Income tax payable 153,606 – 1,111 – 154,717
Consolidated liabilities P18,537,269 P– P148,504 P– P18,685,773

Other Segment Information
Capital expenditures P3,708,461 P– P– P– P3,708,461
Depreciation and amortization 2,393,467 – 8,127 – 2,401,594

2010
Food Service Franchising Leasing Eliminations Consolidated

(In Thousands)
Revenue from external 

customers P50,726,553 P2,478,141 P167,031 P– P53,371,725
Inter-segment revenue 14,670,445 519,205 957,085 (16,146,735) –
Segment revenue 65,396,998 2,997,346 1,124,116 (16,146,735) 53,371,725
Segment expenses (64,262,293) (519,205) (1,139,808) 16,146,735 (49,774,571) 
Other segment income 616,947 – 1,951 – 618,898
Segment result P1,751,652 P2,478,141 (P13,741) P– P4,216,052

Interest income 163,081
Interest expense (193,201)
Income before income tax 4,185,932
Provision for income tax (973,396)
Net income P3,212,536

Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets P32,461,107 P– P364,761 P– P32,825,868
Deferred tax assets 878,654 – 41,485 – 920,139
Consolidated assets P33,339,761 P– P406,246 P– P33,746,007

Segment liabilities P12,566,756 P– P168,961 P– P12,735,717
Deferred tax liabilities 760,320 – 8,061 – 768,381
Long-term debt - including 

current portion 2,392,714 – – – 2,392,714
Income tax payable 166,154 – 1,598 – 167,752
Consolidated liabilities P15,885,944 P– P178,620 P– P16,064,564

Other Segment Information
Capital expenditures P2,584,111 P– P– P– P2,584,111
Depreciation and amortization 1,972,717 – 5,289 – 1,978,006

2009
Food Service Franchising Leasing Eliminations Consolidated

(In Thousands)
Revenue from external 

customers P45,530,706 P2,298,778 P128,209 P– P47,957,693
Inter-segment revenue 6,562,262 452,475 781,373 (7,796,110) –
Segment revenue 52,092,968 2,751,253 909,582 (7,796,110) 47,957,693
Segment expenses (51,036,368) (452,474) (963,637) 7,796,110 (44,656,369) 
Other segment income 349,818 – 59,267 – 409,085
Segment result P1,406,418 P2,298,779 P5,212 P– P3,710,409

Interest income 163,681
Interest expense (218,910)
Income before income tax 3,655,180
Provision for income tax (988,280)
Net income P2,666,900

Other Segment Information
Capital expenditures P2,575,117 P– P– P– P2,575,117

Depreciation and amortization 2,082,033 – 3,917 – 2,085,950
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Geographical Segments
The Jollibee Group’s geographical segments are based on the location of the assets producing revenues in the 
Philippines and in other locations (which includes PRC and the U.S.).  Sales to external customers disclosed in the 
geographical segments are based on the geographical location of the customers.

Majority of the Jollibee Group’s revenues were generated from the Philippines, which is the Jollibee Group’s 
country of domicile.

The Jollibee Group does not have a single external customer which revenue amounts to 10% or more of the 
Jollibee Group’s revenues.

The following table presents revenues, segment assets and capital expenditures of the Jollibee Group’s 
geographical segments:

Philippines International Eliminations Consolidated
(In Thousands)

2011
Revenues P50,235,281 P12,475,708 (P156,062) P62,554,927
Segment assets 24,440,521 13,500,092 – 37,940,613
Capital expenditures 2,263,819 1,444,641 – 3,708,460

2010
Revenues 43,525,283 9,956,400 (109,958) 53,371,725
Segment assets 23,510,189 9,315,678 – 32,825,867
Capital expenditures 1,584,893 999,218 – 2,584,111

2009
Revenues 39,671,056 8,374,629 (87,992) 47,957,693
Capital expenditures 1,500,551 1,074,566 – 2,575,117

caSH and caSH eQuiValentS6. 

This account consists of:

2011 2010
Cash on hand P169,886,592 P130,303,379
Cash in banks 2,315,131,475 2,795,294,557
Short-term deposits 4,170,294,808 5,244,891,365

P6,655,312,875 P8,170,489,301

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective savings or special demand deposit rates.  

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash 
requirements of the Jollibee Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Interest income earned from cash in banks and short-term deposits amounted to P101.1 million, P138.1 million 
and P132.3 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note 23).

ReceiVableS7. 

This account consists of:

2011 2010
Trade P2,250,407,136 P1,973,793,420
Less allowance for impairment loss 164,744,992 136,082,073

2,085,662,144 1,837,711,347
Receivable from retirement fund 137,745,214 111,108,540
Advances to employees 100,368,090 95,726,858
Current portion of employee car plan receivables 43,901,365 43,811,032
Others 20,940,239 10,563,443

P2,388,617,052 P2,098,921,220

Trade receivables are noninterest-bearing and are generally on a 30-60 days term.

Receivable from retirement fund, advances to employees, current portion of employee car plan receivables and 
other receivables are expected to be collected within the next financial year. 

The movements in the allowance for impairment loss for trade receivables as of December 31 are as follows:

2011 2010
Balance at beginning of year P136,082,073 P99,709,174
Provisions (Note 22) 35,354,094 50,314,688
Reversals (Note 22) (1,711,028) (1,504,095)
Translation adjustments 19,853  –
Write-offs (5,000,000) (12,437,694)
Balance at end of year P164,744,992 P136,082,073

The provisions in 2011 and 2010 resulted from specific and collective impairment assessments performed by 
the Jollibee Group.

inVentoRieS 8. 

This account consists of:

2011 2010
At cost:
 Food supplies and processed inventories P2,659,794,971 P1,973,039,104
 Packaging, store and other supplies 176,813,937 155,773,504

2,836,608,908 2,128,812,608
At net realizable value - 
 Novelty items 23,494,371 5,654,551
Total inventories at lower of cost and net  

realizable value P2,860,103,279 P2,134,467,159
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The cost of novelty items carried at net realizable value amounted to P46.2 million and P92.3 million as of 
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The allowance for inventory obsolescence amounted to P22.7 million and P86.6 million as of December 31, 2011 
and 2010, respectively.

otHeR cuRRent aSSetS9. 

This account consists of:
2011 2010

Deposits to suppliers and others P653,903,361 P577,525,103
Prepaid expenses:
 Rent 364,942,365 281,393,792
 Insurance and other prepayments 170,509,345 130,129,134
 Taxes 112,741,258 107,447,393
Supplies 52,818,366 72,084,195

P1,354,914,695 P1,168,579,617

Deposits to suppliers and others are generally applied to purchase of inventories and availment of services and 
others within the next financial year.

Prepaid expenses and supplies are charged to operations in the next financial year as the related expenses are 
incurred.

aVailable-FoR-Sale Financial aSSetS10. 

This account consists of quoted and unquoted investment in club shares and shares of public utility companies 
are as follows:

2011 2010
Quoted equity shares - at fair value P120,649,438 P125,416,546
Unquoted equity shares - at cost  – 50,866,500

P120,649,438 P176,283,046

The movements on the carrying value of AFS financial assets are as follows:

2011 2010
Balance at beginning of year P176,283,046 P155,228,494
Additions  – 3,940,000
Write-offs (229,360) (145,431)
Reclassification (50,866,500)  –
Fair value changes (4,537,748) 17,259,983
Balance at end of year P120,649,438 P176,283,046

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the unrealized gain on AFS financial assets amounted to P102.6 million and 
P107.2 million, respectively. 

Reclassification out of the AFS category includes the previously held equity interest in Chow Fun Holdings which 
was increased to 80.55% in 2011 (see Note 11).

buSineSS coMbinationS, acQuiSition oF non-contRolling inteReStS, incoRpoRation  11. 
oF neW SubSidiaRieS and inteReSt in and adVanceS to a Joint VentuRe

Acquisitions in 2011

Business Combination through Acquisition of Equity Shares

Burger King.  On September 30, 2011, the Jollibee Group, through its Parent Company, acquired a majority 
ownership of the firm that operates Burger King in the Philippines.  The Parent Company invested P65.5 million 
to purchase 54% equity interest in BK Titans, Inc., owner of PERF Restaurants, Inc. (or collectively the BK Group), 
the sole franchisee of the Burger King Brand in the Philippines.

The Jollibee Group’s primary reason for the business combination is to gain presence in the premium price 
segment of the hamburger category in the fast food market.

Business Combination through Purchase of Assets

Chowking US operations.  On May 27, 2011, the Jollibee Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, TTC, entered 
into an Asset Purchase Agreement with Fortune Capital Corporation, owner and operator of all Chowking stores 
in the US as the master licensee therein, to purchase the latter’s property and equipment, inventories and 
security deposits of its twenty (20) existing stores.  The purchase consideration amounted to P693.3 million.  The 
Jollibee Group paid P520.0 million of the total consideration as of December 31, 2011.  The balance shall be paid 
over the next five (5) years. 

With this acquisition, the Jollibee Group will be poised to take a more active role to further the growth of the 
Chowking business in the USA.

Business Combination Achieved in Stages

Jinja Bar and Bistro.  On March 31, 2011, the Jollibee Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, JWPL, acquired 
from Aspen Partners, LLC 2,400 shares of Chow Fun Holdings, LLC (“Chow Fun”) for US$3,240,000 (P139.6 million), 
bringing up its equity share in Chow Fun to 80.55%.  The Jollibee Group (through JWPL) previously held 13.89% 
equity share in Chow Fun.  Chow Fun is the developer and owner of Jinja Bar and Bistro in New Mexico, USA.

The carrying amount of the previously held equity interest in Chow Fun was presented as part of AFS financial 
assets in 2010 (see Note 10).  Prior to the business combination, the previously held equity interest was remeasured 
at the acquisition-date fair value resulting to a loss amounting to P12.8 million which was recognized in the 
statements of comprehensive income under “General and administrative expenses” account. 
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The Jollibee Group’s objective in this venture is to enhance its capability in developing Asian food restaurant 
concepts for the mainstream consumers in the United States as part of its long-term strategy.

The fair values (provisionally determined to be equal to the book values at the date of acquisitions, except as 
otherwise indicated) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed from BK Group, Chowking US 
Operations, and Chow Fun as at the dates of acquisitions were as follows: 

BK Group
Chowking US 

Operations Chow Fun
Cash and cash equivalents P17,071,231 P– P4,870,336
Receivables 5,951,921 – 331,325
Inventories 13,302,567 14,515,550 3,883,969
Other current assets 3,245,199 – 3,073,027
Property, plant and equipment* 222,303,494 239,142,040 105,912,607
Deferred tax assets 3,323,559 – –
Other noncurrent assets 50,269,948 6,322,410 –
Total identifiable assets acquired 315,467,919 259,980,000 118,071,264
Less:
 Trade payables and other current liabilities 168,691,196 – 23,760,278
 Long-term liabilities – – 77,128,142
 Income tax payable 1,102,058 – –
 Deferred tax liabilities 30,976,291 – –
 Pension liability (Note 25) 3,199,600 – –
Total identifiable liabilities assumed 203,969,145 – 100,888,420
Net identifiable assets acquired P111,498,774 P259,980,000 P17,182,844
*The carrying amount of BK Group’s property, plant and equipment amounted to P 119,049,189 at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill acquired in the business combinations were determined as follows:

BK Group
(54.00%)

Chowking US 
Operations

(100.00%)
Chow Fun

(80.56%)
Fair value of consideration transferred:
 Cash P– P519,960,000 P139,644,000
 Advances 65,454,545 – –
 Liability – 173,320,000 –
Total 65,454,545 693,280,000 139,644,000
Non-controlling interests’ share in the net assets 

acquired 51,289,436 – 3,340,345
Previously held equity interests (13.89%) – – 29,092,500
Aggregate amount 116,743,981 693,280,000 172,076,845
Less acquisition - date fair value of net assets 

acquired 111,498,774 259,980,000 17,182,844
Goodwill P5,245,207 P433,300,000 P154,894,001

Advances were made to BK Group prior to its acquisition in 2011.

Goodwill comprises the value of expected synergies arising from the business combinations. 

The net cash outflows on the acquisitions are as follows:

BK Group
Chowking US 

Operations Chow Fun
Cash paid on acquisition P– P519,960,000 P139,644,000
Less cash acquired from subsidiary 17,071,231 – 4,870,336

(P17,071,231) P519,960,000 P134,773,664

BK Group, Chowking US Operations, and Chow Fun contributed P719.4 million and P23.6 million from the date 
of acquisition to December 31, 2011 to the consolidated revenue and net income for the period, respectively.  
If the business combinations had taken place at the beginning of 2011, consolidated revenue and net income 
for the year would have been P63,170.9 million and P3,262.1 million, respectively. 

Prior to 2011 acquisitions

Mang Inasal.  On November 22, 2010, the Jollibee Group, through its Parent Company, acquired 70% of the 
issued and outstanding shares of Mang Inasal from Injap Investments, Inc. (the seller), owner and operator of 
Mang Inasal restaurant business in the Philippines, for a total acquisition cost of P2,976.2 million.  The Jollibee 
Group paid P2,700.0 million as of December 31, 2010.  The present value of the remaining 10% of the purchase 
price amounting to P276.2 million is payable over a 3-year period until 2013.  Such amount was withheld as  
assurance for indemnification against the seller’s representations and warranties.  The first half of the remaining 
liability was paid in 2011.

Jollibee Group’s primary reason for the business combination is to grow Mang Inasal’s sales from existing stores 
through application of the Jollibee Group’s knowledge of consumers and available recipes and products, 
continued expansion of Mang Inasal’s store network, cost improvement on its raw materials and operational 
efficiency by applying the Jollibee Group’s technology and scale.

Mang Inasal contributed P432.2 million and P49.1 million from the date of acquisition to December 31, 2010 
to the consolidated revenue and net income for the period, respectively.  If the business combination had  
taken place at the beginning of 2010, consolidated revenue and net income for the year would have been 
P55,751.2 million and P3,392.4 million, respectively. 

Hong Zhuang Yuan and Southsea.  On August 23, 2008, the Jollibee Group, through JWPL, acquired 100% of 
the issued and outstanding shares of Hong Zhuang Yuan and Southsea, which operates the Hong Zhuang 
Yuan restaurant chain in PRC.  Total consideration paid amounted to P2,648.1 million resulting to total goodwill 
amounting to P2,497.3 million (see Note 14).

Hangzhou Yonghe.  On August 12, 2008, the Jollibee Group through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Shanghai 
Yong He King Food & Beverage Co., Ltd. (Shanghai Yong He), entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with 
Hangzhou Yonghe, a third party PRC company operating a fast food business, to purchase the latter’s lease 
right, trade name and other intellectual properties of its eight existing stores in the province of Hangzhou, 
except for the equipment used in the stores which are owned by another company.  The purchase consideration 
amounted to P6.9 million. 
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The equipment used in the eight stores are owned by Hangzhou Huadong Xianzhi Equipment Marketing 
(Hangzhou Huadong).  Accordingly, in relation to the Asset Purchase Agreement, Shanghai Yong He entered 
into an Equipment Purchase Agreement with Hangzhou Huadong to purchase the store equipment for a 
total consideration of P110.2 million.  Pursuant to the Equipment Purchase Agreement, ownership of the store 
equipment was transferred to and accepted by Shanghai Yong He upon the fulfillment by Hangzhou Yonghe of 
the following conditions for each store:

Assignment of the lease contracts to Shanghai Yong He, renewed for at least another five years based on a) 
the agreed rent fees; and

Transfer of all related business licenses and certificates to Shanghai Yong He.b) 

The lease contracts and store equipment of the eight (8) stores have been transferred to Shanghai Yong He in 
2009.  Pursuant to the agreements, Shanghai Yong He, however, will allow Hangzhou Yonghe to continue the 
operations of its existing franchise contracts with third parties until the termination of the contracts in 2013.

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of the leasehold rights of Hangzhou Yonghe is expected to benefit 
Yong He King stores in Hangzhou thus, cost was added to the goodwill from the acquisition of Belmont, the 
operator of Yong He King chain of restaurants.

The restated fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed from Mang Inasal, Hong Zhuang 
Yuan and Hangzhou Yonghe as at the dates of acquisitions were as follows:

Mang Inasal
Hong 

Zhuang Yuan
Hangzhou 

 Yonghe
Cash and cash equivalents P132,213,023 P182,049,407 P–
Receivables 113,733,554 483,296 –
Inventories 126,423,715 3,103,119 –
Other current assets 557,888 57,747,358 –
Property, plant and equipment* 263,083,640 185,401,252 –
Trademark 2,004,255,942 – –
Leasehold rights – – 15,442,438
Other noncurrent assets 26,086,618 11,451,011 –
Total identifiable assets acquired 2,666,354,380 440,235,443 15,442,438
Less:
 Trade payables and other current  
  liabilities 271,381,354 285,604,384 –
 Income tax payable 59,145,715 – –
 Deferred tax liabilities 628,717,866 3,755,095 4,632,732
Total identifiable liabilities assumed 959,244,935 289,359,479 4,632,732
Net identifiable assets acquired P1,707,109,445 P150,875,964 P10,809,706
*The carrying amount of Mang Inasal and Hong Zhuang Yuan’s property, plant and equipment amounted to P 171.6 million and 
P 172.9 million, respectively at the dates of acquisitions.

As discussed in Note 2, the valuation of the assets of Mang Inasal was completed in 2011 resulting to the 
recognition of a trademark and a corresponding reduction in the amount of goodwill provisionally recognized 
of P2,004.3 million and P1,033.1 million, respectively.  There was also a corresponding reduction in the amount 
of goodwill by P1,033.1 million from P2,814.4 million to P1,781.3 million (see Note 14).

Goodwill acquired in the business combinations were determined as follows:

Mang Inasal 
(70%)

Hong 
 Zhuang Yuan

(100%)

Hangzhou 
 Yonghe

(100%)
Fair value of consideration transferred:
 Cash P2,700,000,000 P2,501,104,716 P117,074,250
 Liability 276,243,250 147,024,154 –
Total 2,976,243,250 2,648,128,870 117,074,250
Non-controlling interests’ share in the net 

assets acquired 512,132,834 – –
Aggregate amount 3,488,376,084 2,648,128,870 117,074,250
Less acquisition-date fair value of net 

assets acquired 1,707,109,445 150,875,964 10,809,706
Goodwill P1,781,266,639 P2,497,252,906 P106,264,544

The net cash outflow on the acquisition is as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Cash paid
 Mang Inasal P146,459,707 P2,700,000,000 P–
 Hong Zhuang Yuan – 147,024,167 795,009,120
 Hangzhou Yonghe 31,665,403 – 40,273,704

178,125,110 2,847,024,167 835,282,824
Less cash acquired from subsidiary
 Mang Inasal – 132,213,023 –

P178,125,110 P2,714,811,144 P835,282,824

The rollforward analysis of the liability for acquisition of business follows:

Chowking US 
Operations Mang Inasal

Hangzhou 
Yonghe

Hong 
 Zhuang Yuan Total

Balance at January 1, 2010 P– P– P32,425,506 P147,024,167 P179,449,673
Additions – 279,783,543 – – 279,783,543
Payments – – – (147,024,167) (147,024,167)
Translation adjustments – – (760,103) – (760,103)
Balance at December 31, 2010 – 279,783,543 31,665,403 – 311,448,946
Accretion (see Note 23) – 11,953,746 – – 11,953,746
Additions 173,320,000 – – – 173,320,000
Settlements – (146,459,707) (31,665,403) – (178,125,110)
Acquisition price adjustment – (3,540,293) – – (3,540,293)
Translation adjustments 2,040,000 – – – 2,040,000
Balance at December 31, 2011 P175,360,000 P141,737,289 P– P– P317,097,289
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Acquisition of Non-controlling Interest

Adgraphix.  On January 1, 2010, the Jollibee Group, through Grandworth, a wholly-owned subsidiary, acquired 
the remaining 40% of the issued and outstanding shares of Adgraphix for a total consideration of P2.0 million 
which provided the Jollibee Group a 100% interest in Adgraphix.  The difference between the consideration and 
the carrying value of non-controlling interest acquired of P1.2 million is recorded as part of “Excess of cost over 
the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired” account in the consolidated statements of financial 
position.

Establishment of New Subsidiaries

JFPPL.  On July 27, 2010, the Jollibee Group, through JWPL, signed an agreement with Hua Xia Harvest Holdings 
Pte. Ltd. (Hua Xia Harvest), a Singapore-based company, to undertake food manufacturing operations to 
supply products to food service businesses primarily to entities within the Jollibee Group.  Under the terms 
of the agreement, the Jollibee Group and Hua Xia Harvest formed JFPPL in Singapore which is 70% owned 
by the Jollibee Group and 30% owned by Hua Xia Harvest.  JFPPL started commercial operation in the last 
quarter of 2011.

IConnect.  On August 26, 2009, Grandworth, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Parent Company, incorporated 
IConnect, a multimedia advertising company, with initial capital of P6.0 million, owning 60% of its issued and 
outstanding shares.  On December 23, 2010, Grandworth made additional investments of P3.0 million without 
change in the ownership percentage.

GPPL.  On January 1, 2009, the Jollibee Group through JWPL, incorporated GPPL, a Singapore-based holding 
company, with initial capital of US$0.8 million or P41.3 million, owning 100% of its issued and outstanding 
shares.

Interest in a Joint Venture

Coffeetap Corporation (Coffeetap).  On May 4, 2010, the Jollibee Group, through its Parent Company, entered into 
a joint venture agreement with its partners to become the master franchisee in the Philippines of “Caffe Ti-Amo”, 
a Korean restaurant brand offering coffee and gelato (Italian ice cream) in a casual dining format.  The joint 
venture entity, incorporated as Coffeetap Corporation, is 50%-owned by the Jollibee Group and 50%-owned by 
its partners, with an initial capitalization of P10.0 million.

On November 30, 2011, Coffeetap sold its assets to CaféFrance Corporation with cash proceeds of P20.8 million.  
The Company also terminated its franchise agreement with Caffe Ti-Amo Korea on the same date.  The dissolution 
plans for Coffeetap has been formally approved by the BOD on February 28, 2012.

The details of the Jollibee Group’s interest in and advances to the joint venture as of December 31, 2011 and 
2010 are as follows:

2011 2010
Interest in a joint venture - cost P5,000,000 P5,000,000
Cumulative equity in net loss:
 Balance at beginning of year (2,181,411)  –
 Equity in net earnings (loss) during the year 299,710 (2,181,411)
 Balance at end of year (1,881,701) (2,181,411)
Advances:
 Balance at beginning of year 18,803,882  –
 Payments during the year (18,733,666)  –
 Advances during the year  – 18,803,882
 Balance at end of year 70,216 18,803,882

P3,188,515 P21,622,471

The aggregate amounts in 2011 and 2010 related to the Jollibee Group’s 50% interest in Coffeetap follow:

2011 2010
Current assets P11,682,639 P17,980,629
Noncurrent assets  – 10,407,512
Total assets P11,682,639 P28,388,141

Current liabilities P5,446,041 P22,746,057
Noncurrent liabilities  – 4,906
Total liabilities P5,446,041 P22,750,963

Income P21,559,757 P8,362,370
Expenses (20,960,337) (12,725,192)
Net income (loss) P599,420 (P4,362,822)

Cessation of Operations of Manong Pepe Karinderia
On April 9, 2011, the Jollibee Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Fresh N’ Famous, discontinued 
the operations of its Manong Pepe Karinderia business unit.  The move is part of the Jollibee Group’s plan to 
concentrate resources in building larger QSR businesses.  The cessation of operation of Manong Pepe Karinderia 
did not have a material impact on the Jollibee Group’s consolidated financial statements. 

Sale of Delifrance Business Unit’s Assets
Fresh N’ Famous terminated its franchise agreement with Delifrance Asia Limited effective December 31, 2010.  
Assets of Delifrance Business Unit were sold to CaféFrance Corporation on December 31, 2010 with cash proceeds 
of P110.3 million.  The termination of the franchise agreement is part of the management’s intention to concentrate 
its resources in building larger QSR businesses.
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pRopeRty, plant and eQuipMent12. 

The rollforward analysis of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

2011

Land and 
Land 

Improvements

Plant, 
Buildings,  

Condominium 
Units and 

Improvements

Leasehold 
Rights and 

Improvements

Office, Store 
and Food 

Processing 
Equipment

Furniture and 
Fixtures

Transportation 
Equipment

Construction 
in Progress Total

(In Thousands)
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P657,165 P996,048 P9,126,262 P8,604,349 P611,650 P364,786 P205,466 P20,565,726
Additions – 3,675 1,520,970 1,078,019 171,422 75,017 851,346 3,700,449
Arising from business combination (Note 11) 21,826 – 571,204 312,014 158,214 6,018 7,234 1,076,510
Retirements and disposals (278) (36,698) (433,903) (873,487) (69,066) (42,364) (7,185) (1,462,981)
Reclassifications (Note 13) 541 2,359 337,400 44,583 6,017 (18) (386,678) 4,204
Translation adjustments – 1,449 81,507 22,463 (1,008) 1,258 2,616 108,285
Balance at end of year 679,254 966,833 11,203,440 9,187,941 877,229 404,697 672,799 23,992,193
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 6,674 680,629 4,568,886 5,843,478 456,008 239,532 – 11,795,207
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 21 and 22) 820 42,698 1,162,513 1,032,343 106,122 42,821 – 2,387,317
Arising from business combination (Note 11) – – 92,995 244,748 74,495 5,443 – 417,681
Retirements and disposals (274) (23,627) (295,297) (801,120) (53,213) (41,178) – (1,214,709)
Translation adjustments – 136 37,574 11,191 (393) 787 – 49,295
Balance at end of year 7,220 699,836 5,566,671 6,330,640 583,019 247,405 – 13,434,791
Net Book Value P672,034 P266,997 P5,636,769 P2,857,301 P294,210 P157,292 P672,799 P10,557,402

2010

Land and 
Land 

Improvements

Plant, 
Buildings,  

Condominium 
Units and 

Improvements

Leasehold 
Rights and 

Improvements

Office, Store 
and Food 

Processing 
Equipment

Furniture and 
Fixtures

Transportation 
Equipment

Construction 
in Progress Total

(In Thousands)
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P651,035 P1,042,691 P8,341,624 P8,016,620 P576,957 P335,723 P203,922 P19,168,572
Additions – 10,951 1,149,425 905,664 90,991 47,769 348,649 2,553,449
Arising from business combination (Note 11) 1,769 – 79,414 115,416 – 49,640 – 246,239
Retirements and disposals (3,118) (10,086) (650,944) (557,970) (60,822) (73,732) (4,908) (1,361,580)
Reclassifications (Note 13) 7,479 (47,508) 206,743 124,619 4,524 5,386 (342,197) (40,954)
Balance at end of year 657,165 996,048 9,126,262 8,604,349 611,650 364,786 205,466 20,565,726
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
Balance at beginning of year – 626,926 4,011,021 5,362,403 425,460 256,040 – 10,681,850
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 21 and 22) 1,416 51,392 890,801 911,954 87,217 33,853 – 1,976,633
Arising from business combination (Note 11) – – 23,075 35,019 – 12,737 – 70,831
Retirements and disposals – (4,978) (353,601) (463,365) (57,170) (66,442) – (945,556)
Reclassifications (Note 13) 5,258 7,289 (2,410) (2,533) 501 3,344 – 11,449
Balance at end of year 6,674 680,629 4,568,886 5,843,478 456,008 239,532 – 11,795,207
Accumulated Impairment Loss
Balance at beginning of year – – 89,629 46,381 18 121 – 136,149
Retirements – – (89,629) (46,381) (18) (121) – (136,149)
Balance at end of year – – – – – – – –
Net Book Value P650,491 P315,419 P4,557,376 P2,760,871 P155,642 P125,254 P205,466 P8,770,519
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The cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use amounted to P5,809.3 million and 
P5,256.1 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  

Loss on disposals and retirements of property, plant and equipment amounted to P216.3 million, P183.8 million 
and P363.8 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Construction in progress account mainly pertains to costs incurred for ongoing construction of a plant, 
properties and soon-to-open stores.

inVeStMent pRopeRtieS13. 

The rollforward analysis of this account follows:

2011

Land

Buildings 
and Building 

Improvements Total
(In Thousands)

Cost
Balance at beginning of year P684,853 P331,959 P1,016,812
Additions 8,005 6 8,011
Translation adjustments – 5,893 5,893
Reclassifications (Note 12) – (4,204) (4,204)
Balance at end of year 692,858 333,654 1,026,512
Accumulated Depreciation and 

Amortization
Balance at beginning of year – 213,822 213,822
Depreciation (Notes 21 and 22) – 14,277 14,277
Translation adjustments – 674 674
Balance at end of year – 228,773 228,773
Accumulated Impairment Losses
Balance at beginning and end of year 25,270 – 25,270
Net Book Value P667,588 P104,881 P772,469

2010

Land

Buildings 
and Building 

Improvements Total
(In Thousands)

Cost
Balance at beginning of year P669,119 P276,354 P945,473
Additions 16,011 14,651 30,662
Disposals (277) – (277)
Reclassifications (Note 12) – 40,954 40,954
Balance at end of year 684,853 331,959 1,016,812
Accumulated Depreciation and 

Amortization
Balance at beginning of year – 223,898 223,898
Depreciation (Notes 21 and 22) – 1,373 1,373
Reclassifications (Note 12) – (11,449) (11,449)
Balance at end of year – 213,822 213,822

(Forward)

2010

Land

Buildings 
and Building 

Improvements Total
(In Thousands)

Accumulated Impairment Losses
Balance at beginning of year P43,504 P– P43,504
Reversal (18,234) – (18,234)
Balance at end of year 25,270 – 25,270
Net Book Value P659,583 P118,137 P777,720

The accumulated impairment loss provided in the value of land amounting to P25.3 million as of  
December 31, 2011 and 2010 represents the excess of the carrying values over the estimated recoverable 
amounts of non-income-generating investment properties, which is its estimated fair value less costs to sell. 

The cost of fully depreciated buildings still being leased out by the Jollibee Group amounted to P202.0 million 
and P176.2 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The reversal of previously recognized impairment loss in 2010 resulted from the increase in fair value of land of 
P18.2 million as determined by an independent appraiser as of December 31, 2010.

The Jollibee Group’s investment properties have aggregate fair values P1,334.2 million as determined by 
independent appraisers in 2011.  

In determining the fair value of the investment properties, the independent appraisers used the market data 
approach which considered the local market conditions, the extent, character and utility of the property, sales 
and holding prices of similar parcels of land and the highest and best use of the investment properties.  The fair 
value represents the amount at which the assets can be exchanged between a knowledgeable, willing seller 
and a knowledgeable, willing buyer in an arm’s-length transaction at the date of valuation in accordance with 
International Valuation Standards.

Rent income derived from income-generating properties amounted to P73.5 million, P63.5 million and  
P76.1 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Notes 20 and 29).  

Direct operating costs relating to the investment properties that generated rent income recognized under 
“Cost of sales” and “General and administrative expenses” account in the statements of comprehensive income 
amounted to P27.1 million, P17.3 million and P20.8 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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goodWill and otHeR intangible aSSetS14. 

This account consists of goodwill and trademark acquired through business combinations related to the 
following food restaurant concepts:

2011
2010

(Note 2)
Goodwill:
 Hong Zhuang Yuan P2,497,252,906 P2,497,252,906
 Mang Inasal 1,781,266,639 1,781,266,639
 Red Ribbon Bakeshop:
  Philippine operations 737,939,101 737,939,101
  US operations 434,651,055 434,651,055
 Yong He King:
  Yong He King 429,016,109 429,016,109
  Hangzhou Yonghe 106,264,544 106,264,544
 Chowking US operations 433,300,000 –
 Jinja Bar & Bistro 154,894,001 –
 Burger King Philippines 5,245,207 –
Total goodwill 6,579,829,562 5,986,390,354
Trademark -
 Mang Inasal 2,004,255,942 2,004,255,942
Goodwill and other intangible assets P8,584,085,504 P7,990,646,296

The valuation of trademark of Mang Inasal was completed in 2011.  As a result, there was a corresponding 
reduction in the amount of goodwill by P1,033.1 million from P2,814.4 million to P1,781.3 million (see Notes 2 
and 11).

The rollforward analysis of this account follows:

2011
2010

(Note 2)
Balance at beginning of year P5,986,390,354 P4,205,123,715
Additions 593,439,208 1,781,266,639
Balance at end of year P6,579,829,562 P5,986,390,354

Impairment Testing of Goodwill
Goodwill acquired through business combinations have been allocated to eight CGUs, which are subsidiaries of 
the Parent Company, owned directly or indirectly.  The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined 
based on value in use calculations using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by senior 
management covering a five-year period.

The calculation of value in use is most sensitive to the following assumptions which vary per geographical 
location:

CGUs
Geographical 

Location
Pre-tax

Discount Rate
Long-term 

Growth Rate
Hong Zhuang Yuan PRC 11.91% 8.5%
Mang Inasal Philippines 14.54% 4.0%
Red Ribbon Bakeshop:
 Philippine operations Philippines 13.79% 0.0%
 US operations USA 13.75% 0.0%
Yong He King PRC 11.91% 8.5%
Chowking US operations USA 11.91% 0.0%

Key assumptions with respect to the calculation of value in use of the cash-generating units as of  
December 31, 2011 and 2010 on which management had based its cash flow projection to undertake 
impairment testing of goodwill are as follows:

Discount rates – discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each a) 
CGU, regarding the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets which have not 
been incorporated in the cash flow estimates.  The discount rate calculation is based on the specific 
circumstances of the Jollibee Group and its CGUs and derived from its weighted average cost of capital 
(WACC).  The WACC takes into account both debt and equity.  The cost of equity is derived using the 
Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM).  The cost of debt is based on the interest bearing borrowings the 
Jollibee Group is obliged to service.  CGU-specific risk is incorporated by applying individual beta factors.  
The beta factors are evaluated annually based on publicly available market data.

Long-term growth rates - rates are determined with consideration of historical and projected results, as b) 
well as the economic environment in which the CGUs operate.

Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) margin - is based on the most c) 
recent value achieved in the year preceding the start of the budget period, and adjusted for planned 
efficiency improvement, if any.

No impairment loss was recognized for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011.

otHeR noncuRRent aSSetS15. 

This account consists of:

2011 2010
Advances to SuperFoods Group P2,903,505,390 P–
Security and other deposits (Notes 30 and 31) 1,069,719,992 871,020,582
Noncurrent portion of:
 Rent and other long-term prepayments 219,830,829 212,322,392
 Employee car plan receivables (Notes 30 and 31) 92,835,860 86,584,129
Deferred rent expense 63,566,673 59,683,173
Deferred compensation 15,598,069 17,143,586
Other assets 251,975,279 236,779,654

P4,617,032,092 P1,483,533,516
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Advances to SuperFoods Group
On May 20, 2011, the Parent Company, through JWPL, signed a Framework Agreement with Viet Thai 
International Joint Stock Company and Viet Thai International Company Limited (collectively, “SuperFoods 
Group”) to establish jointly-controlled entities that will own and operate a portfolio of restaurants in various 
territories including Vietnam, Hong Kong, Macau and Southern China.  SuperFoods Group owns and operates 
various brands including Highlands Coffee Shops and Hard Rock Café franchised-stores in Macau, Hong Kong 
and Vietnam and Pho 24 brand.  

In accordance with the Framework Agreement, JWPL, through its 99%-owned subsidiary JSF, extended loans to 
the SuperFoods Group with details as follows:

Loan to future co-venturer
Loan to the owners of the SuperFoods Group amounting to $35.0 million (P1,534.4 million), extended on  
June 30, 2011, is payable in June 2016.  The loan bears interest of 5% per annum payable in lump sum also 
in June 2016.  The loan is agreed to be used for general corporate purposes.  Total interest from this loan 
amounted to P42.6 million.

Deposits for formation of joint ventures
As of December 31, 2011, the formation of the joint ventures in Vietnam and Hong Kong are in process  
pending fulfillment of certain legal and regulatory requirements.  JSF advanced a total amount of $25.0 million 
(P1,096.0 million) to gain 50% effective ownership of the joint ventures.  Before the formation of the joint 
ventures, the deposits are treated as advances bearing interests of 5% per annum.  Total interest from these 
deposits amounted to P5.2 million.

On January 20, 2012, the formation of these joint ventures was completed resulting to the reclassification of the 
carrying amount of these deposits amounting to P1,101.2 million to interests in joint ventures (see Note 32).

Loan to Blue Sky
On June 10, 2011, a loan was extended to Blue Sky, the Hong Kong-based entity, amounting to $5.0 million 
(P219.2 million) payable in June 2013.  The loan bears interest of 5% per annum payable also in June 2013.  Total 
interest from this loan amounted to P6.1 million.

Security and Other Deposits
Security and other deposits represent deposits for operating leases entered into by the Jollibee Group as lessee, 
including returnable containers and other deposits.  The security deposits are recoverable from the lessors at 
the end of the lease term.  These are presented at amortized cost.  The discount rates used range from 2% to 
22% in 2011 and 5% to 22% in 2010.  The difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the notional 
amount of the security deposits is charged to “Deferred rent expense” account and amortized on straight-line 
basis over the lease terms.  

Accretion of interest on financial assets amounted to P24.1 million, P22.2 million and P28.2 million in 2011, 2010 
and 2009, respectively (see Note 23).

tRade payableS and otHeR cuRRent liabilitieS16. 

This account consists of:

2011 2010
Trade P4,727,839,645 P3,601,600,450
Accruals for:
 Local and other taxes 1,218,775,444 1,150,671,727
 Salaries, wages and employee benefits 994,079,595 1,216,548,292
 Advertising and promotions 583,427,974 869,225,014
 Rent 375,760,995 336,956,709
 Utilities 205,784,551 182,225,295
 Freight 112,605,492 72,588,966
 Store operations, corporate events and others 1,336,924,567 1,058,713,869
Deposits 300,922,559 264,720,117
Unearned revenue from gift certificates 95,225,956 123,055,811
Dividends payable 6,563,034 103,167,855
Other current liabilities 207,685,057 193,229,606

P10,165,594,869 P9,172,703,711

Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled on a 30-day term.

Accruals, deposits, dividends payable, and other current liabilities are expected to be settled within the next 
financial year. 

Unearned revenue from gift certificates will be recognized as revenue as the gift certificates are redeemed.

pRoViSionS17. 

The Jollibee Group has outstanding provisions amounting to P30.5 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, 
consisting of provisions for legal claims and restructuring costs. 

Provisions for legal claims which amounted to P29.3 million include estimates of legal services, settlement 
amounts and other costs of claims made against the Jollibee Group.  Other information on the claims are not 
disclosed as this may prejudice the Jollibee Group’s position on such claims.  The Jollibee Group’s management, 
after consultation with its legal counsel, believes that the provisions are sufficient to meet the costs related to 
the claims.
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The provision for restructuring costs amounting to P1.2 million relates to the Jollibee Group’s Cost Improvement 
Program to improve the quality of services and reduce the costs of backroom operations for its various QSR 
systems.

SHoRt-teRM and long-teRM debtS18. 

Short-term Debt
Short-term debt consists of unsecured short-term bank loans of the Parent Company.  These loans are availed 
with maturities of one year or less with interest rates of 2.63% in 2011 and rates ranging from 2.49% to 3.85% 
in 2010.

Short-term debt amounted to P900.0 million and P1,842.0 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  
Interest expense recognized on short-term debt amounted to P78.9 million, P9.5 million, and P23.1 million in 
2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively (see Note 23).

Long-term Debt
The details of the Jollibee Group’s long-term debt as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

2011 2010
USD-denominated:
 Loan 1 P1,747,538,268 P–
 Loan 2 1,310,653,702 –
 Loan 3 19,973,021 37,252,065
PHP-denominated:
 Loan 4 1,492,650,649 –
 Loan 5 149,228,380 –
RMB-denominated:
 Loan 6 – 2,309,794,661
 Loan 7 – 45,666,920

4,720,044,020 2,392,713,646
Less current portion 777,301,991 2,341,125,065

P3,942,742,029 P51,588,581

USD-denominated loans of JWPL.  Loan 1 consists of a 3-year unsecured loan acquired from a local bank on  
April 29, 2011 amounting to US$40.0 million (or P1,712.0 million) with a fixed interest rate of 2.53%.  The principal 
is payable in 4 semi-annual installments commencing on October 29, 2012 up to April 28, 2014, the date of 
maturity.

Loan 2 consists of a 3-year unsecured loan acquired from a foreign bank on May 9, 2011 amounting to  
US$30.0 million (or P1,287.9 million) with a fixed interest rate of 2.72%.  The principal is payable in 4 semi-annual 
installments commencing on November 9, 2012 up to May 8, 2014, the date of maturity.

The loan agreements provide certain restrictions and requirements principally with respect to maintenance of 
required financial ratios and material change in ownership or control.  As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the 
Jollibee Group is in compliance with the terms of its loan covenants.

USD-denominated loan of RRBI USA.  Loan 3 consists of a 5-year unsecured loan acquired from a foreign bank 
in December 2007 amounting to US$1.9 million with an interest rate of 6.50%.  The principal is payable in  
60 monthly installments commencing on January 1, 2008 up to January 1, 2013, the date of maturity.  

PHP-denominated loan of the Parent Company.  Loan 4 resulted from the combination of extended short-term 
debts as of December 16, 2011 consisting of the remaining P700.0 million of the P1,000.0 million loan together 
with the 800.0 million loan to form a single long-term loan due on December 16, 2013.  The fixed interest rate 
on the loan is 3.9% payable on a quarterly basis.

PHP-denominated loan of PERF Restaurants, Inc.  Loan 5 was originally a five-year USD denominated loan 
availed on December 20, 2011 by PERF Restaurants, Inc.  On the same day, the loan of US$3.4 million was 
converted to P149.2 million bearing fixed interest rate of 5.32% per annum.

RMB-denominated loan of the Parent Company.  On September 8, 2008, the Parent Company entered into a 
Synthetic Credit Facility Agreement with several financial institutions to finance its investments in the PRC.  
The agreement covers a three-year loan amounting to RMB700.0 million at fixed interest rates for the Parent 
Company and at 2.25% above Libor floating rate for the lenders.  The difference between the rates is covered 
by a notional swap subject to the same 2002 ISDA Master Agreement. 

Loan 6 consists of Tranches A and B for RMB350.0 million each.  On September 26, 2008, the Parent Company 
drew the full amount of Tranche A at 6.85% fixed interest rate using RMB6.82:1USD as initial exchange rate.  The 
Parent Company did not avail of Tranche B.  The loan has been fully paid as of December 31, 2011.

RMB-denominated loan of Shanghai Yong He King Co., Ltd.  Loan 7 consists of a 5-year secured loan acquired from 
a foreign bank in February 2009 amounting to RMB10.6 million (P61.1 million) with an interest rate of 5.76%.  The 
loan was originally payable in quarterly installments up to 2014 but was fully settled in 2011.

The proceeds from the loan were used to finance the acquisition of a building floor space for research and 
development.  The same property was used as collateral for the loan.  Upon full payment, the bank’s lien and 
encumbrance on the property was terminated.

As of December 31, long-term debt consists of the following:

2011 2010
Principal P4,738,001,401 P2,399,798,806
Unamortized debt issue cost (17,957,381) (7,085,160)

P4,720,044,020 P2,392,713,646

The movements in unamortized debt issue cost in 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

2011 2010
Balance at beginning of year P7,085,160 P16,160,610
Additions 18,108,030  –
Amortization (7,235,809) (9,075,450)
Balance at end of year P17,957,381 P7,085,160
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The repayment schedule of the outstanding long-term debt as of December 31, 2011 is as follows:

2012 2013 2014 2016 Total
USD-denominated:
 Loan 1 P438,400,000 P876,800,000 P438,400,000 P– P1,753,600,000
 Loan 2 328,800,000 657,600,000 328,800,000 – 1,315,200,000
 Loan 3 18,386,342 1,586,679 – – 19,973,021
PHP-denominated:
 Loan 4 – 1,500,000,000 – – 1,500,000,000
 Loan 5 – – – 149,228,380 149,228,380

P785,586,342 P3,035,986,679 P767,200,000 P149,228,380 P4,738,001,401

Interest expense recognized on long-term debt amounted to P193.7 million, P180.6 million and P190.5 million 
in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note 23).

eQuity19. 

a. Capital Stock

The movements in the number of shares follow:

2011 2010
Authorized - 1 par value 1,450,000,000 1,450,000,000

Issued:
 Balance at beginning of year 1,051,429,521 1,049,448,859
 Issuances 1,514,415 1,980,662
 Balance at end of year 1,052,943,936 1,051,429,521

Subscribed:
 Balance at beginning of year 2,009,297 2,009,297
 Subscriptions 1,514,415 1,980,662
 Issuances (1,514,415) (1,980,662)
 Balance at end of year 2,009,297 2,009,297

1,054,953,233 1,053,438,818

On February 15, 1993, the SEC approved the increase of the Company’s authorized capital stock from  
P6.6 million shares, with a par value of P10 per share, to P750.0 million shares, with a par value of P1 per 
share, for the Company’s initial public offering (IPO).  The offer price of the shares for such IPO ranged 
from P7.50 to P10.50 per share.  

The total number of shareholders is 3,437 and 3,545 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

b. Treasury Shares

The cost of common stock held in treasury of P180.5 million consists of 16,447,340 shares as of  
December 31, 2011 and 2010. 

c. Excess of Cost over the Carrying Value of Non-controlling Interests Acquired

The amount of excess of cost over the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired as of  
December 31, 2011 and 2010, recognized as part of “Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent 
Company” section in the consolidated statements of financial position resulted from the following 
acquisitions of non-controlling interests:

20% of Greenwich in 2006 P168,257,659
15% of Belmont in 2007 375,720,914
40% of Adgraphix in 2010 (1,214,087)

P542,764,486

d. Retained Earnings

The Jollibee Group has a Cash Dividend Policy of declaring one-third of its net income for the year as 
cash dividends.  It uses best estimate of its net income as basis for declaring cash dividends.  Actual cash 
dividends per share declared as a percentage of the EPS are 34.1%, 72.2%, and 32.6% in 2011, 2010 and 
2009, respectively.

The retained earnings of the Parent Company is restricted to the extent of P1,380.5 million as of  
December 31, 2011 and 2010, representing appropriation for future expansion and cost of common stock 
held in treasury amounting to P1,200.0 million and P180.5 million, respectively.

Consolidated retained earnings include undeclared retained earnings of subsidiaries amounting to 
P593.2 million and P973.0 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  The Parent Company’s 
retained earnings available for dividend declaration, computed based on the guidelines provided  
in SEC Memorandum Circular No. 11, amounted to P14,076.4 million and P11,491.4 million as of  
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

As discussed in Note 32, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the appropriation of additional 
P3,800.0 million for future expansion on February 15, 2012.  Consequently, the appropriated retained 
earnings of the Parent Company will increase from P1,200.0 million to P5,000.0 million.

The Parent Company’s cash dividend declarations for 2011 and 2010 follow:

Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date
Cash Dividend 

per Share

Total Cash 
Dividends 
Declared

2011
April 13, 2011 May 5, 2011 May 31, 2011 P0.50 P513,586,071
November 4, 2011 November 22, 2011 December 16, 2011 0.57 586,430,790

P1.07 P1,100,016,861

2010
April 12, 2010 May 7, 2010 June 3, 2010 P1.43 P1,461,036,350
November 10, 2010 November 25, 2010 December 21, 2010 0.82 841,916,455

P2.25 P2,302,952,805

2009
April 28, 2009 May 14, 2009 June 5, 2009 P0.37 P376,514,171
November 5, 2009 November 23, 2009 December 15, 2009 0.48 489,889,484

P0.85 P866,403,655
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An important part of the Jollibee Group’s growth strategy is the acquisition of new businesses in  
the Philippines and abroad.  Examples were acquisitions of 85% of Yonghe King in 2004 in PRC  
(P1,200.0 million), 100% of Red Ribbon in 2005 (P1,700.0 million), the remaining 20% minority share in 
Greenwich in 2007 (P384.0 million), the remaining 15% share of Yonghe King in 2007 (P413.7 million), 100% 
of Hong Zhuang Yuan restaurant chain in PRC in 2008 (P2,600.0 million) and 70% of Mang Inasal in 2010 
(P2,979.8 million).

The Jollibee Group plans to continue to make substantial acquisitions in the coming years.  The Jollibee 
Group uses its cash generated from operations to finance these acquisitions and capital expenditures.  
These limit the amount of cash dividends that it can declare and pay making the level of the Retained 
Earnings higher than the paid-up capital stock.  

Royalty, FRancHiSe FeeS and otHeRS20. 

This account consists of:

2011 2010 2009
Royalty fees P2,832,972,317 P2,435,145,967 P2,292,121,832
Franchise fees 128,673,840 110,777,580 77,624,816
Rent income (Note 29) 88,362,582 88,587,881 78,720,435
Service fees 59,261,700 78,443,482 49,488,708
Other revenues 179,212,280 151,802,659 115,614,369

P3,288,482,719 P2,864,757,569 P2,613,570,160

coSt oF SaleS21. 

This account consists of:

2011 2010 2009
Cost of inventories P29,809,091,674 P24,900,006,693 P22,178,636,798
Personnel costs:
 Salaries, wages and employee   

 benefits 6,896,745,053 6,515,788,872 5,782,749,258
 Pension expense (Note 25) 82,500,195 78,542,800 74,930,373
Rent (Note 29) 4,830,622,917 3,903,657,688 3,359,382,394
Electricity and other utilities 2,738,766,887 2,491,684,514 2,081,613,784
Depreciation and amortization 

(Notes 12 and 13) 2,188,138,252 1,801,293,696 1,829,244,905
Supplies 1,438,771,466 1,244,811,120 1,036,947,263
Contracted services 947,634,730 707,195,005 654,434,173
Repairs and maintenance 605,944,943 515,366,896 468,109,510
Security and janitorial 295,104,115 243,980,998 225,145,839
Communication 109,814,775 104,033,676 109,664,719
Professional fees 87,121,446 76,501,931 76,027,727
Entertainment, amusement 

and recreation (EAR) 27,245,491 22,066,898 19,563,502
Others 1,345,856,874 649,799,673 491,878,009

P51,403,358,818 P43,254,730,460 P38,388,328,254

geneRal and adMiniStRatiVe expenSeS22. 

This account consists of:

2011 2010 2009
Personnel costs:
 Salaries, wages and employee 
  benefits P2,828,734,808 P2,477,525,828 P2,361,989,088
 Pension expense (Note 25) 74,821,548 77,575,074 65,823,484
 Stock options expense (Note 26) 73,596,182 65,657,862 147,522,179
Taxes and licenses 722,967,654 625,572,401 589,132,269
Rent (Note 29) 301,131,941 189,141,489 182,629,169
Professional fees 292,142,725 326,009,405 179,442,357
Transportation and travel 289,157,362 250,493,661 226,739,595
Depreciation and amortization 
 (Notes 12 and 13) 213,455,645 176,712,298 256,704,964
EAR 109,224,257 84,790,392 74,319,667
Communication 80,021,816 65,940,549 72,778,718
Supplies 60,553,898 46,652,158 57,269,728
Electricity and other utilities 57,143,954 52,076,181 44,715,764
Repairs and maintenance 49,141,586 35,286,344 50,413,062
Training 40,349,256 47,662,662 33,706,633
Impairment in value of:
 Receivables and inventories
   (Notes 7 and 8) 39,740,636 56,255,685 231,841,183
 Property, plant and equipment
   (Note 12) – – 86,408,877
Contracted services 37,878,401 34,570,979 36,776,355
Donations 37,125,360 26,668,997 46,373,823
Security and janitorial 26,209,649 35,886,424 35,882,287
Insurance 15,357,507 5,643,678 8,443,845
Corporate events and others 590,563,625 590,944,778 526,672,565

P5,939,317,810 P5,271,066,845 P5,315,585,612

inteReSt incoMe (expenSe) and otHeR incoMe23. 

2011 2010 2009
Interest income:
 Cash and cash equivalents:
  Cash in banks P14,079,032 P19,426,990 P11,371,809
  Short-term deposits 87,044,606 118,650,729 120,932,443
 Accretion of interest on financial  

 assets (Note 15) 24,062,575 22,219,843 28,208,279
 Loan and advances 54,577,023 2,783,556 2,405,324
 Short-term investment – – 762,760

P179,763,236 P163,081,118 P163,680,615
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2011 2010 2009
Interest expense:
 Long-term debt (Note 18) (P193,702,854) (P180,594,225) (P190,545,110)
 Short-term debt (Note 18) (78,916,052) (9,502,363) (23,086,379)
 Accretion of interest on financial  

 liabilities (18,723,885) (3,104,615) (5,278,265)
(P291,342,791) (P193,201,203) (P218,909,754)

Other income:
 Write-off of other liabilities P409,556,985 P331,926,520 P192,485,812
 Rebates and suppliers’ incentives 103,475,060 42,113,542 –
 Foreign exchange gain (loss) (63,571,440) 37,086,479 46,455,820
 Charges to franchisees 34,672,903 17,677,407 26,404,257
 Insurance claims 16,589,565 9,143,868 16,518,932
 Penalties and charges 16,135,487 11,060,166 8,082,410
 Pre-termination of operating leases 11,335,719 28,610,502 72,717,014
 Other rentals 9,881,900 7,814,942 4,670,831
 Gain on asset sale – 106,006,901 34,526,872
 Miscellaneous income 28,737,438 27,458,072 7,222,988

P566,813,617 P618,898,399 P409,084,936

incoMe taxeS24. 

The Jollibee Group’s provision for current income tax consists of the following:

2011 2010 2009
Final tax withheld on:
 Royalty and franchise fee income P566,346,862 P535,435,633 P496,153,214
 Interest income 17,314,010 20,458,463 22,984,385
RCIT:
 With itemized deduction 447,091,709 341,920,182 457,840,744
 With optional standard deduction 126,619,231 107,504,110 –
MCIT 30,192,053 35,609,591 9,049,550

P1,187,563,865 P1,040,927,979 P986,027,893

On December 18, 2008, the BIR issued Revenue Regulations No. 16-2008, which implemented the provisions of 
Republic Act 9504 (R.A. 9504) on Optional Standard Deduction (OSD).  This regulation allowed both individuals 
and corporate tax payers to use OSD in computing for taxable income.  Corporations may elect a standard 
deduction equivalent to 40% of gross income, as provided by law, in lieu of the itemized allowed deductions. 

For the year ended December 31, 2011, Zenith, Grandworth and RRBHI, wholly-owned subsidiaries elected to 
use OSD in computing for its taxable income.  In 2010, only ZFC elected to use OSD.  The total tax benefit from 
the availment of OSD amounted to P43.8 million and P35.7 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

The components of the Jollibee Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities follow:

2011
2010  

(Note 2)
Deferred tax assets:
 Operating lease payables P375,501,157 P341,711,440
 NOLCO:
  PRC-based entities 178,380,252 174,770,129
  Philippine-based entities 88,474,713 51,392,531
 Pension liability and other benefits 93,269,607 103,229,414
 Excess of MCIT over RCIT 67,210,194 41,579,894
 Unamortized past service costs 58,718,821 67,487,877
 Allowance for impairment loss on receivables 40,497,598 34,662,921
 Unaccreted discount on security deposits and 
  employee car plan receivables 25,835,415 26,011,175
 Accumulated impairment loss in value of property,
   plant and equipment, investment properties, and 
  other nonfinancial assets 14,883,112 22,470,114
 Provisions for legal claims and restructuring costs 9,150,192 9,150,192
 Allowance for inventory obsolescence 6,819,589 25,993,290
 Unrealized foreign exchange loss 1,622,647 14,196,618
 Others 7,251,187 7,483,776

967,614,484 920,139,371

Deferred tax liabilities:
 Excess of fair value over book value of property, plant 
  and equipment and other intangible assets of 
  acquired businesses 727,268,779 674,939,251
 Deferred rent expense 18,689,914 17,904,952
 Prepaid rent 16,683,538 21,063,776
 Operating lease receivables 4,210,150 8,783,367
 Unrealized foreign exchange gain 252,068 33,779,228
 Others 8,778,700 11,910,664

775,883,149 768,381,238
Deferred tax assets - net P191,731,335 P151,758,133

The rollforward analysis of the account follows:

2011
2010 

(Note 2)
Balance at beginning of year P151,758,133 P685,502,698
Provisions 83,696,480 67,532,217
Arising from business combination (Note 11) (55,093,816) (601,276,782)
Translation adjustments 11,370,538 –

P191,731,335 P151,758,133
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The availment of the OSD method also affected the recognition of several deferred tax assets and liabilities.  
Deferred tax assets and liabilities, for which the related income and expense are not considered in determining 
gross income for income tax purposes, are not recognized.  This is because the manner by which the Jollibee 
Group expects to recover or settle the underlying assets and liabilities, for which the deferred tax assets and 
liabilities were initially recognized, would not result to any future tax consequence under the OSD method.  
Meanwhile, deferred tax assets and liabilities, for which the related income and expense are considered 
in determining gross income for income tax purposes, are recognized only to the extent of their future tax 
consequence under OSD method.  Hence, the tax base of these deferred tax assets and liabilities is reduced by 
the 40% allowable deduction provided for under the OSD method.

Accordingly, the Jollibee Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities, which were not recognized due to the use of 
the OSD method in future years, are as follows:

2011 2010
Deferred tax assets:
 Operating lease payables P12,798,357 P–
 Allowance for impairment losses on: 
  Receivables 3,963,705 1,732,272
  Investment properties 3,980,982 –
  Other noncurrent assets 1,641,000 –
 Pension liability 1,696,689 1,571,669
 Unamortized past service costs 790,318 904,252
 Unaccreted discount on financial instruments 250,180 77,054
 Unrealized foreign exchange loss 4,056 –
 Others 185,968 –

25,311,255 4,285,247
Deferred tax liabilities:
 Operating lease receivables 2,251,507 –
 Deferred rent expense 380,088 –
 Others 345,778 77,054

2,977,373 77,054
P22,333,882 P4,208,193

As of December 31, 2011, NOLCO and excess of MCIT over RCIT of the Philippine-based entities that can be 
claimed as deductions from taxable income and income tax due, respectively, are as follows:

Year Incurred/Paid
Carry Forward 
Benefit Up to NOLCO

Excess of MCIT 
over RCIT

2011 December 31, 2014 P123,607,275 P31,785,395
2010 December 31, 2013 144,421,913 26,782,117
2009 December 31, 2012 26,886,523 8,642,682
2008 December 31, 2011 – 7,885,310

294,915,711 75,095,504
Less expired in 2011 – 7,885,310

P294,915,711 P67,210,194

The PRC enterprise income tax law provides that income tax rates are unified at 25%.  As of December 31, 2011, 
NOLCO of the PRC-based entities that can be claimed as deductions from taxable income are as follows:

Year Incurred
Carry Forward 
Benefit Up to Tax Losses

Deferred Tax 
 at 25%

2011 December 31, 2016 P293,103,064 P73,275,766
2010 December 31, 2015 111,775,152 27,943,788
2009 December 31, 2014 136,958,228 34,239,557
2008 December 31, 2013 113,216,809 28,304,202
2007 December 31, 2012 58,467,755 14,616,939

P713,521,008 P178,380,252

The following are the movements in NOLCO of the PRC-based entities:

2011 2010
Balance at beginning of year P174,770,129 P121,143,597
Additions 73,275,766 58,257,973
Increase in effective tax rate 1,250,624 2,037,076
Write-off (73,363,383) –
Expired (2,412,380) (1,130,621)
Translation adjustments 4,859,496 (5,537,896)

P178,380,252 P174,770,129

The reconciliation of provision for income tax computed at the statutory income tax rates to provision for income 
tax as shown in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income are as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Provision for income tax at statutory income tax 

rates P1,307,301,093 P1,255,779,527 P1,096,553,778
Income tax effects of:
 Effect of different tax rate for royalty and
  franchise fees and interest income (292,576,022) (279,194,311) (248,450,444)
 Expired/written off NOLCO and excess
   of MCIT over RCIT 83,661,073 11,959,542 90,371,430
 Difference between OSD and itemized
  deductions (43,785,314) (35,690,321) –
 Nondeductible expenses 38,688,395 25,168,148 44,256,654
 Net movement in unrecognized DTA 
  due to OSD 18,125,689 4,208,193 –
 Others (7,547,529) (8,835,016) 5,548,097

P1,103,867,385 P973,395,762 P988,279,515
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penSion coStS25. 

Defined Benefit Plan
The Parent Company and certain Philippine-based subsidiaries have funded, independently administered, 
non-contributory defined benefit plans covering all permanent and regular employees with benefits based on 
years of service and latest compensation.  

The following tables summarize the components of net pension expense recognized in the consolidated 
statements of comprehensive income and the funded status and amounts recognized in the consolidated 
statements of financial position for the plans.

2011 2010 2009
Current service cost P103,419,805 P91,496,560 P82,275,495
Interest cost 152,865,858 135,969,783 97,064,311
Expected return on plan assets (96,084,188) (71,412,182) (40,469,083)
Recognized net actuarial loss (gain) (2,879,732) 63,713 1,883,134

P157,321,743 P156,117,874 P140,753,857

Pension Liability

2011 2010
Present value of defined benefit obligation P1,301,088,666 P1,364,744,185
Fair value of plan assets (1,316,251,463) (1,201,052,350)
Present value of underfunded (overfunded) obligation (15,162,797) 163,691,835
Unrecognized net actuarial gains 293,837,311 48,397,353

P278,674,514 P212,089,188

The movements in the present value of benefit obligation are as follows:

2011 2010
Balance at beginning of year P1,364,744,185 P1,213,954,564
Interest cost 152,865,858 135,969,783
Current service cost 103,419,805 91,496,560
Arising from business combination (Note 11) 3,199,600  –
Actual benefits paid:
 Out of plan assets (103,908,857) (103,951,840)
 Out of Jollibee Group’s funds (22,958,089) (9,557,532)
Net actuarial loss (gain): 
 Due to experience adjustments (559,592,159) 36,832,650
 Due to change in assumptions 363,318,323  –
Balance at end of year P1,301,088,666 P1,364,744,185

The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

2011 2010
Balance at beginning of year P1,201,052,350 P973,263,844
Contributions 70,977,928 108,668,770
Expected return on plan assets 96,084,188 71,412,182
Actual benefits paid (103,908,857) (103,951,840)
Actuarial gain on plan assets 52,045,854 151,659,394
Balance at end of year P1,316,251,463 P1,201,052,350

Actual return on plan assets P148,130,042 P223,071,576

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

2011 2010
Investments in government debt securities 69.64% 59.80%
Investments in shares of stocks 19.42% 24.54%
Cash in banks 9.65% 13.75%
Loans and receivables 1.29% 1.91%

100.00% 100.00%

The Jollibee Group expects to contribute in 2012 an amount equivalent to the underfunded defined benefit 
obligation based on 2011 actuarial valuation.

The overall expected rate of return on plan assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that 
date, applicable to the period within which the obligation is expected to be settled.  The latest actuarial valuation 
of the defined benefit plan is as of December 31, 2011.  

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the principal actuarial assumptions used to determine pension benefits 
obligations are as follow:

2011 2010
Discount rate 6.50%–7.20% 11.00%–11.31%
Salary increase rate 5.00%–7.50% 8.00%
Rate of return on plan assets 5.00%–7.00% 8.00%

The amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Defined benefit obligation P1,301,088,666 P1,364,744,185 P1,213,954,564 P985,573,966 P896,922,683
Plan assets 1,316,251,463 1,201,052,350 973,263,844 531,760,226 433,325,653
Deficit (surplus) (P15,162,797) P163,691,835 P240,690,720 P453,813,740 P463,597,030

Experience adjustments on:
 Plan obligation P559,592,159 (P36,832,650) (P62,252,853) P– (P220,551,925)
 Plan assets 52,045,854 151,659,394 47,163,376 (34,311,708) 2,211,130
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Defined Contribution Plan
The employees of the PRC-domiciled and USA-based subsidiaries of the Jollibee Group are members of a 
state-managed pension benefit scheme operated by the local governments.  These subsidiaries are required 
to contribute a specified percentage of their payroll costs to the pension benefit scheme to fund the benefits.  
The only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the pension benefit scheme is to make the specified 
contributions.

The contributions made to the scheme and recognized as net pension expense amounted to P121.2 million, 
P94.9 million and P106.8 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Stock option planS26. 

Senior Management Stock Option and Incentive Plan
On December 17, 2002, the SEC approved the exemption requested by the Jollibee Group on the registration 
requirements of the 101,500,000 options underlying the Parent Company’s common shares to be issued pursuant 
to the Jollibee Group’s Senior Management Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the Plan).  The Plan covers selected 
key members of management of the Jollibee Group, certain subsidiaries and designated affiliated entities.  

The Plan is divided into two programs, namely, the Management Stock Option Program (MSOP) and the 
Executive Long-term Incentive Program (ELTIP).  The MSOP provides a yearly stock option grant program based 
on company and individual performance while the ELTIP provides stock ownership as an incentive to reinforce 
entrepreneurial and long-term ownership behavior of participants.

MSOP.  The MSOP is a yearly stock option grant program open to members of the corporate management 
committee of the Jollibee Group and members of the management committee, key talents and designated 
consultants of some of the business units.

Each MSOP cycle refers to the period commencing on the MSOP grant date and ending on the last day of the 
MSOP exercise period.  Vesting is conditional on the employment of the employee-participants to the Jollibee 
Group within the vesting period.  The options will vest at the rate of one-third of the total options granted on 
each anniversary of the MSOP grant date until the third anniversary.

The exercise price of the stock options is determined by the Jollibee Group with reference to prevailing market 
prices over the three months immediately preceding the date of grant for the 1st up to the 7th MSOP cycle.  
Starting with the 8th MSOP cycle, the exercise price of the option is determined by the Jollibee Group with 
reference to the market closing price as at date of grant.

The contractual term of each option is seven years.  The Jollibee Group does not pay cash as a form of 
settlement.

On July 1, 2004, the Compensation Committee of the Jollibee Group granted 2,385,000 options under the 1st 
MSOP cycle to eligible participants.  The options will vest at the rate of one-third of the total options granted on 

each anniversary date which will start after a year from the MSOP grant date.  One-third of the options granted, 
or 795,000 options, vested and may be exercised starting July 1, 2005 and will expire on June 30, 2012.  On July 
1, 2005 to 2011, the Compensation Committee granted series of MSOP grants under the 2nd to 8th MSOP cycle 
to eligible participants.  The options vest similar to the 1st MSOP cycle. 

The movements in the number of stock options outstanding and related weighted average exercise prices 
(WAEP) are as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Number of 

Options WAEP
Number of 

Options WAEP
Number of 

Options WAEP
Total options granted as of end of year 26,790,664 P46.89 23,273,694 P40.39 20,100,950 P37.65

Outstanding at beginning of year 15,904,997 P43.46 15,911,282 P39.43 13,354,348 P36.69
Options granted during the year 3,516,970 89.90 3,172,744 57.77 4,690,300 45.45
Options exercised during the year (1,507,813) 43.07 (2,730,984) 36.78 (1,093,943) 32.16
Options forfeited during the year (408,759) 62.03 (448,045) 42.36 (1,039,423) 39.00
Outstanding at end of year 17,505,395 P52.39 15,904,997 P43.46 15,911,282 P39.43

Exercisable at end of year 10,424,829 P40.10 8,234,603 P37.86 7,434,449 P33.96

The average share price is P85.48, P71.74, and P48.25 in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.  The weighted 
average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 
is 4.88 years, 5.31 years, and 5.59 years, respectively.

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted in 2011, 2010, and 2009 is P23.67, P22.77, and P13.11, 
respectively.  The fair value of share options as at the date of grant is estimated using the Black-Scholes Option 
Pricing Model, taking into account, the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.  The option 
style used for this plan is the American style because this option plan allows exercise before the maturity date.  
The inputs to the model used for the options granted on the dates of grant for each MSOP cycle are shown 
below:

MSOP  
Cycle Year of Grant

Dividend 
Yield

Expected 
Volatility

Risk-free 
Interest  

Rate

Expected 
 Life of  

the Option

Stock Price  
on Grant  

Date
Exercise 

Price
1st 2004 1.72% 36.91% 6.20% 5-7 years P24.00 P20.00
2nd 2005 1.72% 36.91% 6.20% 5-7 years 29.00 27.50
3rd 2006 1.72% 36.91% 6.20% 5-7 years 31.50 32.32
4th 2007 1.70% 28.06% 6.41% 3-4 years 52.50 50.77
5th 2008 1.80% 26.79% 8.38% 3-4 years 34.00 39.85
6th 2009 2.00% 30.37% 5.28% 3-4 years 48.00 45.45
7th 2010 2.00% 29.72% 5.25% 3-4 years 70.00 57.77
8th 2011 2.00% 34.53% 4.18% 3-4 years 89.90 89.90

The expected life of the stock options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily 
indicative of exercise patterns that may occur.  The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical 
volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily 
be the actual outcome. 
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ELTIP.   The ELTIP entitlement is given to members of the corporate management committee.  

Each ELTIP cycle refers to the period commencing on the ELTIP entitlement date and ending on the last day of 
the ELTIP exercise period.  Vesting is conditional upon achievement of the Jollibee Group’s minimum medium to 
long-term goals and individual targets in a given period, and the employment of the employee-participants to 
the Jollibee Group within the vesting period.  If the goals are achieved, the options will be granted.

The exercise price of the stock options is determined by the Jollibee Group with reference to prevailing market 
prices over the three months immediately preceding the date of entitlement.

The contractual term of each option is five years.  The Jollibee Group does not pay cash as a form of settlement.

On July 1, 2004, the Compensation Committee gave an entitlement of 22,750,000 options under the 1st ELTIP 
cycle to eligible participants.  The options will vest at the rate of one-third of the total options granted from 
the start of the grant date and on each anniversary of the ELTIP grant date.  One-third of the options granted, 
or 7,583,333 options, vested and may be exercised starting July 1, 2007 and will expire on June 30, 2012.  On  
July 1, 2008, a total entitlement of 20,399,999 options under the 2nd ELTIP cycle was given to eligible participants.  
The options vest similar to the 1st ELTIP cycle.  

The movements in the number of stock options outstanding and related WAEP are as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Number of 

Options WAEP
Number of 

Options WAEP
Number of 

Options WAEP
Total options given  

as of end of year 43,149,999 P29.38 42,399,999 P29.20 42,149,999 P29.14

Outstanding at beginning of year 30,661,735 P32.72 33,387,498 P31.53 37,170,830 P30.36
Options granted during the year 750,000 39.85 250,000 39.85 – –
Options exercised during the year (787,166) 20.00 (2,975,763) 20.00 (2,366,666) 20.00
Options forfeited during the year (2,950,000) 39.85 – – (1,416,666) 20.00
Outstanding at end of year 27,674,569 P32.52 30,661,735 P32.72 33,387,498 P31.53

Exercisable at end of year 10,224,570 P20.00 11,011,736 P20.00 13,987,499 P20.00

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding as of 2011, 2010, and 2009 is 
3.02 years, 3.74 years, and 3.95 years, respectively.

The fair value of stock options granted in 2011 and 2010 is P7.26.  The fair value of share options as at the date of 
grant is estimated using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and conditions 
upon which the options were granted.  The option style used for this plan is the American style because this 

option plan allows exercise before the maturity date.  The inputs to the model used for the options granted on 
the dates of grant for each ELTIP cycle are shown below:

ELTIP Cycle
Year of 

Grant
Dividend

yield
Expected 
volatility

Risk-free 
interest rate

Expected 
 life of  

the option

Stock price  
on grant  

date
Exercise 

price
1st 2004 1.72% 36.91% 6.20% 5 years P24.00 P20.00
2nd 2008 1.80% 26.79% 8.38% 3-4 years 34.00 39.85

The expected life of the stock options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily 
indicative of exercise patterns that may occur.  The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical 
volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily 
be the actual outcome.

The cost of the stock options expense charged to operations under “General and administrative expenses” 
account amounted to P73.6 million, P65.7 million and P147.5 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Related paRty tRanSactionS27. 

The Jollibee Group has transactions within and among the consolidated entities and related parties.  A related 
party is an entity that has the ability to control or exercise significant influence, directly or indirectly, over the 
other party in making financial and operating decisions.  Transactions between members of the Jollibee Group 
and the related balances are eliminated at consolidation and are no longer included in the disclosures.

Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Jollibee Group
The aggregate compensation and benefits to key management personnel of the Jollibee Group in 2011, 2010 
and 2009 are as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Salaries and short-term benefits P391,620,377 P389,010,761 P387,276,428
Stock options expense (Note 26) 73,596,182 65,657,862 147,522,179
Net pension expense from defined benefit 

plan 28,897,958 23,822,756 42,141,407
Employee car plan and other long-term 

benefits 25,322,690 23,818,817 23,454,128
P519,437,207 P502,310,196 P600,394,142
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eaRningS peR SHaRe28. 

Basic and diluted EPS are computed as follows:

2011 2010 2009
(a) Net income attributable to the equity 

holders of the Parent Company P3,231,666,940 P3,197,793,977 P2,664,623,109

(b) Weighted average number of shares  
 - basic 1,029,743,055 1,025,590,715 1,020,900,233

 Weighted average number of shares  
 exercisable under the stock  
 option plan 21,979,743 22,434,043 21,915,140

 Weighted average number of shares  
 that would have been purchased  
 at fair market value (7,827,084) (8,649,309) (10,348,245)

(c) Adjusted weighted average shares - 
diluted 1,043,895,714 1,039,375,449 1,032,467,128

EPS:
 Basic (a/b) P3.138 P3.118 P2.610
 Diluted (a/c) 3.096 3.077 2.581

In 2009, 1,287,108 options outstanding related to MSOP Cycle 4 were not included in the calculation of diluted 
EPS because they are anti-dilutive.  There were no anti-dilutive options outstanding as of December 31, 2011 
and 2010.

coMMitMentS and contingencieS29. 

Operating lease commitments - Jollibee Group as lesseea. 

The Jollibee Group has various operating lease commitments for QSR outlets and offices.  The 
noncancellable periods of the leases range from 3 to 20 years, mostly containing renewal options.  Some 
of the leases contain escalation clauses.  The lease contracts on certain sales outlets provide for the 
payment of additional rentals based on certain percentages of sales of the outlets.  Rent payments in 
accordance with the terms of the lease agreements amounted to P4,955.4 million, P3,936.0 million and 
P3,559.9 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The future minimum lease payments for the noncancellable periods of the operating leases follow:

2011 2010
Within one year P2,434,760,040 P2,267,533,317
After one year but not more than five years 8,818,752,035 8,426,563,541
More than five years 5,572,429,106 5,237,059,679

P16,825,941,181 P15,931,156,537

The difference of rent expense recognized under the straight-line method and the rent amounts due 
in accordance with the terms of the lease agreements amounting to P176.3 million and P156.8 million 
in 2011 and 2010, respectively, are charged to “Operating lease payables” account in the consolidated 
statements of financial position.  Rent expense recognized on a straight-line basis amounted to  
P5,131.8 million, P4,092.8 million and P3,542.0 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Notes 21 
and 22).

Operating lease commitments - Jollibee Group as lessorb. 

The Jollibee Group entered into commercial property leases for its investment property units and 
various sublease agreements.  Noncancellable periods of the lease range from 3 to 20 years, mostly 
containing renewal options.  All leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rent charges 
on an annual basis based on prevailing market conditions.  Rent income in accordance with the terms 
of the lease agreements amounted to P94.6 million, P100.3 million and P77.5 million in 2011, 2010 and 
2009, respectively.

The future minimum rent receivables for the noncancellable periods of the operating leases follows:

2011 2010
Within one year P41,985,306 P40,020,952
After one year but not more than five years 153,200,822 215,947,396
More than five years 43,667,310 68,268,412

P238,853,438 P324,236,760

The difference of rent income recognized under the straight-line method and the rent amounts in 
accordance with the terms of the lease agreements amounting to P6.2 million and P11.8 million in 2011 
and 2010, respectively, are included under “Operating lease receivables” account in the consolidated 
statements of financial position. Rent income recognized on a straight-line basis amounted to  
P88.4 million, P88.6 million and P78.7 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note 20).

Contingenciesc. 

The Jollibee Group is involved in litigations, claims and disputes which are normal to its business, except 
for the legal claims provided in Note 17.  Management believes that the ultimate liability, if any, with 
respect to these litigations, claims and disputes will not materially affect the financial position and results 
of operations of the Jollibee Group.

Financial RiSk ManageMent obJectiVeS and policieS30. 

The Jollibee Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which result from both its operating and investing 
activities.  The Jollibee Group’s risk management policies focus on actively securing the Jollibee Group’s  
short-term to medium-term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to financial markets.  The Jollibee Group 
does not actively engage in trading of financial assets for speculative purposes.
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The Jollibee Group’s principal financial instruments are cash and cash equivalents, trade payables and other 
current liabilities (excluding accruals for local and other taxes and unearned revenue from gift certificates) and 
short-term and long-term debts.  The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise financing for the 
Jollibee Group’s operations.  The Jollibee Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as receivables, 
long-term loan receivable, security and other deposits, AFS financial assets and liability for acquisition of 
businesses which arise from the Jollibee Group’s current operations.  The main risks arising from the Jollibee 
Group’s financial instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.  The Jollibee Group’s BOD 
and management review and agree on the policies for managing each of these risks as summarized below.

Equity Price Risk
The Jollibee Group is not exposed to significant equity price risk on its investment in quoted equity securities 
consisting of investment in club shares and shares of public utility companies.

Interest Rate Risk
The Jollibee Group is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as all of its interest-bearing short-term and  
long-term debts bear fixed interest rates.

Foreign Currency Risk
The Jollibee Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises from the Parent Company’s investments outside the 
Philippines, which are mainly in PRC and USA.  While the foreign businesses have been rapidly growing, the net 
assets of foreign businesses account for only 10.44% and 11.44% of the consolidated net assets of the Jollibee 
Group as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  Therefore, the total exposure to foreign exchange risk of 
the Jollibee Group is still not significant.

The Jollibee Group also has transactional foreign currency exposures.  Such exposure arises from the Jollibee 
Group’s Philippine operations’ cash and cash equivalents, receivables, and long-term debt in foreign currencies.

The following table shows the Jollibee Group’s Philippine operations’ foreign currency-denominated monetary 
assets and liabilities and their peso equivalents as of December 31:

2011 2010

USD RMB
PHP 

Equivalent USD RMB PHP Equivalent
Assets
Cash and cash 

equivalents 1,624,507 8,067 71,274,453 2,270,158 253,911,777 1,782,958,808
Receivables 140,089 – 6,141,502 10,593 – 464,397

1,764,596 8,067 77,415,955 2,280,751 253,911,777 1,783,423,205

Liabilities
Long-term debt – – – – (350,000,000) (2,320,500,000)

– – – – (350,000,000) (2,320,500,000) 
Net exposure 1,764,596 8,067 77,415,955 2,280,751 (96,088,223) (537,076,795)

Foreign Currency Risk Sensitivity Analysis
The Jollibee Group has recognized in its profit or loss, foreign currency exchange gain (loss) included under 
“Other income” account which amounted to (P63.6 million), P37.1 million and P46.5 million on its net foreign 
currency-denominated assets in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note 23).  This resulted from the 
movements of the Philippine peso against the USD and RMB as shown in the following table:

 Peso to
USD RMB

December 31, 2011 P43.84 P6.95
December 31, 2010 43.84 6.63

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and RMB to Philippine 
peso exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Jollibee Group’s income before income tax 
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) as of December 31:

2011 2010
Increase (Decrease) 

in  per Foreign Currency
Effect on Income 

Before Income Tax
Effect on Income 

Before Income Tax
 (In Thousands)

USD
P1.50 2,647 3,421
(1.50) (2,647) (3,421)
1.00 1,765 2,281
(1.00) (1,765) (2,281)

RMB
0.95 7.7 (91,284)
(0.95) (7.7) 91,284
0.63 5.1 (60,536)
(0.63) (5.1) 60,536

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty fails to fulfill its contractual obligations to the Jollibee 
Group.  This includes risk of non-payment by borrowers and issuers, failed settlement of transactions and default 
on outstanding contracts. 

The Jollibee Group has a very strict credit policy.  Its credit transactions are only with franchisees that have gone 
through rigorous screening before granting them the franchise.  The credit terms are very short, deposits and 
advance payments are also required before rendering the service or delivering the goods, thus, mitigating the 
possibility of non-collection.  In cases of defaults of debtors, the exposure is contained as transactions that will 
increase the exposure of the Jollibee Group are not permitted.  Significant credit transactions are only with 
related parties.

Credit Risk Exposure and Concentration.  The Jollibee Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with 
counterparty since it has short credit terms to franchisees, which it implements consistently.  In addition, the 
Jollibee Group’s franchisee profile is such that no single franchisee accounts for more than 5% of the total 
systemwide sales of the Jollibee Group.
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With respect to credit risk arising from financial assets of the Jollibee Group, the Jollibee Group’s exposure to 
credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of 
these instruments.

Credit Quality.  The tables below show the credit quality by class of financial assets that are neither past due nor 
impaired, based on the Jollibee Group’s credit rating system as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.

2011
Neither Past Due nor Impaired Past Due or 

ImpairedTotal A B C
(In Millions)

Loans and Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash 

on hand) P6,485.4 P6,485.4 P– P– P–
Receivables:
 Trade 2,250.4 1,249.8 159.2 12.0 829.4
 Receivable from retirement fund 137.7 137.7 – – –
 Employee car plan receivables* 136.7 136.7 – – –
 Advances to employees 100.4 100.4 – – –
 Other receivables 20.9 20.9 – – –
Other noncurrent assets:
 Long-term loan receivable 225.3 225.3 – – –
 Security and other deposits 1,069.7 1,069.7 – – –

P10,426.5 P9,425.9 P159.2 P12.0 P829.4
*Including noncurrent portion shown as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial 
position.

2010
Neither Past Due nor Impaired Past Due or 

ImpairedTotal A B C
(In Millions)

Loans and Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash 

on hand) P8,040.2 P8,040.2 P– P– P–
Receivables:
 Trade 1,973.8 1,065.0 89.1 5.9 813.8
 Employee car plan receivables* 130.4 130.4 – – –
 Receivable from retirement fund 111.1 111.1 – – –
 Advances to employees 95.7 95.7 – – –
 Others 10.6 10.6 – – –
Other noncurrent assets -
 Security and other deposits 871.0 854.6 – 16.4 –

P11,232.8 P10,307.6 P89.1 P22.3 P813.8
*Including noncurrent portion shown as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial 
position.

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Jollibee Group using internal credit ratings, as shown 
below:

A   - For counterparty that is not expected by the Jollibee Group to default in settling its obligations, 
thus, credit risk exposure is minimal.  This counterparty normally includes financial institutions, 
related parties and customers who pay on or before due date.

B   - For counterparty with tolerable delays (normally from 1 to 30 days) in settling its obligations to the 
Jollibee Group.  The delays may be due to cut-off differences and/or clarifications on contracts/
billings.

C   - For counterparty who consistently defaults in settling its obligation, but with continuing business 
transactions with the Jollibee Group, and may be or actually referred to legal and/or subjected to 
cash before delivery (CBD) scheme.  Under this scheme, the customer’s credit line is suspended 
and all subsequent orders are paid in cash before delivery.  The CBD status will only be lifted upon 
full settlement of the receivables and approval of management.  Thereafter, the regular credit term 
and normal billing and collection processes will resume.

The aging analyses of receivables are as follows:

2011
Neither 

Past Due 
nor Past Due but not Impaired (Age in Days)

Total Impaired 1-30 31-60 61-120 Over 120 Impaired
(In Millions)

Receivables:
 Trade P2,250.4 P1,421.1 P192.8 P115.0 P156.5 P200.3 P164.7
 Receivable from retirement  

 fund 137.7 137.7 – – – – –
 Employee car plan   

 receivables* 136.7 136.7 – – – – –
 Advances to employees 100.4 100.4 – – – – –
 Other receivables 20.9 20.9 – – – – –
Other noncurrent assets:
 Long-term loan receivable 225.3 225.3 – – – – –
 Security and other deposits 1,069.7 1,069.7 – – – – –

P3,941.1 P3,111.8 P192.8 P115.0 P156.5 P200.3 P164.7
*Including noncurrent portion shown as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial 
position.
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2010
Neither 

Past Due 
nor Past Due but not Impaired (Age in Days)

Total Impaired 1-30 31-60 61-120 Over 120 Impaired
(In Millions)

Receivables:
 Trade P1,973.8 P1,160.0 P207.6 P63.7 P84.1 P322.3 P136.1
 Employee car plan 
  receivables* 130.4 130.4
 Receivable from retirement 
  fund 111.1 111.1 – – – – –
 Advances to employees 95.7 95.7 – – – – –
 Other receivables 10.6 10.6 – – – – –
Other noncurrent assets - 
 Security and other   

 deposits 871.0 871.0 – – – – –
P3,192.6 P2,378.8 P207.6 P63.7 P84.1 P322.3 P136.1

*Including noncurrent portion shown as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Liquidity Risk
The Jollibee Group’s exposure to liquidity risk refers to the risk that its financial liabilities are not serviced in a timely 
manner and that its working capital requirements and planned capital expenditures are not met.  To manage 
this exposure and to ensure sufficient liquidity levels, the Jollibee Group closely monitors its cash flows.  

On a weekly basis, the Jollibee Group’s Cash and Banking Team monitors its collections, expenditures and any 
excess/deficiency in the working capital requirements, by preparing cash position reports that present actual 
and projected cash flows for the subsequent week.  Cash outflows resulting from major expenditures are planned 
so that money market placements are available in time with the planned major expenditure.  In addition, the 
Jollibee Group has short-term cash deposits and has available credit lines with accredited banking institutions, 
in case there is a sudden deficiency.  The Jollibee Group maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed 
sufficient to finance the operations.  No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes of the 
Jollibee Group during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. 

The Jollibee Group’s financial assets, which have maturity of less than 12 months and are used to meet its  
short-term liquidity needs, are cash and cash equivalents and receivables amounting to P6,655.3 million and 
P2,388.6 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2011.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Jollibee Group’s financial liabilities based on the 
contractual undiscounted cash flows as of December 31:

2011
Within 1 Year 2–3 Years 4–5 Years Total

Trade payables and other current liabilities* P8,851,593,469 P– P– P8,851,593,469
Short-term debt 923,670,000 – – 923,670,000
Long-term debt (including current portion) 806,816,334 3,904,007,733 157,167,330 4,867,991,397
Liability for acquisition of businesses  

(including current portion) 110,072,000 145,144,000 70,144,000 325,360,000
P10,692,151,803 P4,049,151,733 P227,311,330 P14,968,614,866

*Excluding accruals for local and other taxes and unearned revenue from gift certificates.

2010
Within 1 Year 2–3 Years 4–5 Years Total

Trade payables and other current liabilities* P7,898,976,173 P– P– P7,898,976,173
Short-term debt 1,897,730,865 – – 1,897,730,865
Long-term debt (including current portion) 2,501,278,495 50,992,704 3,715,180 2,555,986,379
Liability for acquisition of businesses 

(including current portion) 181,665,403 150,000,000 – 331,665,403
P12,479,650,936 P200,992,704 P3,715,180 P12,684,358,820

*Excluding accruals for local and other taxes and unearned revenue from gift certificates.

Capital Management
Capital includes equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company.

The primary objective of the Jollibee Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit 
rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.  The Jollibee 
Group has sufficient capitalization. 

The Jollibee Group generates cash flows from operations sufficient to finance its organic growth.  It declares 
cash dividends representing about one-third of its consolidated net income, a ratio that would still leave some 
additional cash for future acquisitions.  If needed, the Jollibee Group would borrow money for acquisitions of 
new businesses.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Jollibee Group’s debt ratio and net debt ratio are as follows:

Debt Ratio

2011 2010
Total debt (a) P18,685,773,452 P16,064,564,079
Total equity attributable to equity holders  

of the Parent Company 19,518,762,522 17,119,518,222
Total debt and equity attributable to equity 

holders of the Parent Company (b) P38,204,535,974 P33,184,082,301

Debt ratio (a/b) 49% 48%

Net Debt Ratio

2011 2010
Total debt P18,685,773,452 P16,064,564,079
Less cash and cash equivalents 6,655,312,875 8,170,489,301
Net debt (a) 12,030,460,577 7,894,074,778
Total equity attributable to equity holders  

of the Parent Company 19,518,762,522 17,119,518,222
Total net debt and equity attributable  

to equity holders of the Parent Company (b) P31,549,223,099 P25,013,593,000

Net debt ratio (a/b) 38% 32%
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FaiR Value oF Financial aSSetS and liabilitieS31. 

The following table sets forth the carrying values and estimated fair values of financial assets and liabilities, by 
category and by class, as of December 31.  There are no material unrecognized financial assets and liabilities as 
of December 31, 2011 and 2010.

2011 2010
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Loans and Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents P6,655,312,875 P6,655,312,875 P8,170,489,301 P8,170,489,301
Receivables:
 Trade 2,085,662,144 2,085,662,144 1,837,711,347 1,837,711,347
 Receivable from retirement fund 137,745,214 137,745,214 111,108,540 111,108,540
 Employee car  plan receivables* 136,737,225 152,335,294 130,395,161 147,538,747
 Advances to employees 100,368,090 100,368,090 95,726,858 95,726,857
 Other receivables 20,940,239 20,940,239 10,563,443 10,563,443
Other noncurrent assets:
 Long-term loan receivable 225,288,889 225,288,889 – –
 Security and other deposits 1,069,719,992 1,133,286,665 871,020,582 930,703,755

10,431,774,668 10,510,939,410 11,227,015,232 11,303,841,990
AFS Financial Assets
Investments in club shares and shares 

of public utility companies 120,649,438 120,649,438 176,283,046 176,283,046
P10,552,424,106 P10,631,588,848 P11,403,298,279 P11,480,125,039

Other Financial Liabilities
Trade payables and other current liabilities** P8,851,593,469 P8,851,593,469 P7,898,976,173 P7,898,976,173
Short-term debt 900,000,000 900,000,000 1,842,030,865 1,842,030,865
Long-term debt (including current portion) 4,720,044,020 4,738,001,401 2,392,713,646 2,483,536,758
Liability for acquisition of businesses 

(including current portion) 317,097,289 321,130,578 311,448,946 318,948,770
P14,788,734,778 P14,810,725,448 P12,445,169,630 P12,543,492,566

* Including noncurrent portion shown as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial  
 position.

** Excluding accruals for local and other taxes and unearned revenue from gift certificates.

Financial Instruments with Carrying Amounts Approximate Fair Value  
Management has determined that the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, trade 
payables and other current liabilities and short-term debt reasonably approximate their fair values because of 
their short-term maturities.

Financial Instruments Carried at other than Fair Value  
Management has determined that the estimated fair value of security and other deposits, noncurrent portion 
of employee car plan receivables, long-term debt and liability for acquisition of business (including noncurrent 
portion) are based on the discounted value of future cash flows using applicable rates as follows:

2011 2010
Security and other deposits 1.72%–7.64% 1.29%–7.67%
Employee car plan receivables 1.66%–5.08% 1.29%–4.97%
Long-term debt (including current portion) 1.78%–2.64% 1.30%–2.06%
Liability for acquisition of businesses 

(including current portion) 1.57%–2.11% 2.25%–4.70%

AFS Financial Assets
The fair value of investments that are traded in organized financial markets are determined by reference to 
quoted market bid prices at the close of business at reporting date.

Unquoted AFS financial assets are carried at cost less any impairment in value.  These financial assets are equity 
shares of private entities and are not traded in an active market, hence their fair value cannot be determined 
reliably.

The Jollibee Group does not have the intention to dispose these financial assets in the near term.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The Jollibee Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial 
instruments by valuation technique:

	 Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

	 Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded  fair 
value are observable, either directly or indirectly

	 Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value  that 
are not based on observable market data

The Jollibee Group’s quoted AFS financial assets amounting to P120.6 million and P125.4 million as of  
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, are the only financial instruments measured at fair value using  
Level 1 fair value measurement (see Note 10). 

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of 
Level 3 fair value measurements during the year.

eVentS aFteR tHe RepoRting peRiod32. 

Dividend Declaration
On April 12, 2012, the BOD of the Parent Company approved a regular cash dividend of P0.58 a share of 
common stock to all stockholders of record as of May 9, 2012.  The cash dividend is expected to be paid out by  
May 31, 2012.  The cash dividend is 16.0% higher than the P0.50 regular dividend a share declared in April 2011.

Completion of Acquisition of 55% of San Pin Wang Business
On March 9, 2012, Jollibee Foods Corporation (JFC), through JWPL, completed its acquisition of 55% of Guangxi 
San Pin Wang Food and Beverage Management Company Limited (“San Pin Wang”) which operates the San Pin 
Wang beef noodle business in South China.  The remaining 45% is held by Guangxi Zong Kai Food Beverage 
Investment Company Limited (“GZK”).

San Pin Wang is a fast food chain serving Chinese cuisine, primarily low-priced beef noodles.  It consists of  
34 stores located mostly in Nanning City in Guang Xi Province in South China.



2011 Annual Report 75

This acquisition is pursuant to the framework agreement which was signed on April 30, 2010 and the share 
purchase agreement signed on October 26, 2010.  JWPL is investing RMB30 million for its stake in San Pin Wang.  
As joint venture partners, JWPL and GZK will also place additional investments totaling RMB20 million into this 
fast food chain in anticipation of its expansion.

JFC and its partner GZK aim to serve high quality but low-priced noodles to consumers in urban areas in China.  
San Pin Wang plans to expand its operations to other cities in the years ahead.

Appropriation of Retained Earnings
On February 15, 2012, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the appropriation of additional P3,800.0 million 
for future expansion.  Consequently, the appropriated retained earnings of the Parent Company will increase 
from P1,200.0 million to P5,000.0 million.

Completion of Formation of Joint Ventures
On January 20, 2012, the Jollibee Group, through JWPL, acquired ownership of 50% share in the business 
of the SuperFoods Group through formation of joint ventures.  This consists of a 49% share in SF Vung Tau 
Joint Stock Company, organized in Vietnam, and a 60% share in Blue Sky Holding Limited in Hongkong.  The 
formation of joint ventures is an implementation of the Framework Agreement made on May 20, 2011 between 
the Jollibee Group, through JWPL and its partner, Viet Thai International Joint Stock Company and Viet Thai 
International Company Limited (collectively, “SuperFoods Group”).  The Framework Agreement provided for 
the Jollibee Group to contribute a total of P1,096.0 million to gain 50% effective ownership of the joint ventures.   
Total related long-term loan receivables and deposits to SuperFoods Group made in 2011 amounted to  
P2,849.6 million (see Note 15).  

non-caSH tRanSactionS33. 

The Jollibee Group’s principal non-cash transaction under financing activities pertains to the extension of the 
terms of two short-term loans that have both matured in 2011 totaling P1,500.0 million, combined to form a 
new loan which are now due to be paid in 2013, under a new loan agreement.

The Jollibee Group’s non-cash transaction under investing activities pertains to the acquisition of 54% equity 
interest in BK Group through advances given prior to 2011.

ReclaSSiFication34. 

In 2011, the Jollibee Group changed the presentation of its 2010 consolidated statement of financial position 
to conform with the 2011 presentation and classification and to provide more relevant information for the 
understanding of the Jollibee Group’s financial statements.  The Jollibee Group did not present a consolidated 
statement of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period since the reclassifications 
made were minimal and would not have an impact on the net income of the Jollibee Group.
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StockHoldeRS inQuiRieS
 Inquiries regarding dividend payments, account status, address 

changes, stock certificates and other pertinent matters may be 
addressed to the Company’s registrar and transfer agent:

 Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation
 Stock Transfer Office
 Ground Floor, West Wing
 Grepalife Building 
 221 Senator Gil Puyat Avenue
 Makati City

Sec FoRM 17-a
 The financial information in this report, in the opinion of 

Management, substantially conforms with the information 
required in the “17-A Report” submitted to the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. Copies of this report may be obtained 
free of charge upon written request to the Office of the Corporate 
Secretary.

coMpany HeadQuaRteRS
 10/F Jollibee Plaza Building
 #10 F. Ortigas Jr. Avenue
 Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Philippines 1605
 Telephone:  (632) 634-1111
 Facsimilie:  (632)  633-9504
 Website:  www.jollibee.com.ph

coMMon Stock
 Jollibee’s common stock is listed and traded on the Philippine 

Stock Exchange with the ticker symbol “JFC.”

 It is one of the companies which comprise the PSE Composite 
Index.

annual StockHoldeR’S Meeting
 The Annual Stockholders’ Meeting will be held on June 22, 2012, 

Friday at 2:00 P.M. (registration starts at 1:00 P.M.) at the 
Greenhills Christian Fellowship Auditorium, 2nd Floor, Ruby corner 
Garnet Roads, Ortigas Center, Pasig City.
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